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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report”) contains forward-looking statements about Spindle Inc.’s ("SPDL," "we,"
"us," or the "Company") business, financial condition and prospects that reflect management’s assumptions and beliefs based on
information currently available. We can give no assurance that the expectations indicated by such forward-looking statements will be
realized. If any of our management’s assumptions should prove incorrect, or if any of the risks and uncertainties underlying such
expectations should materialize, Spindle’s actual results may differ materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements express expectations of future events. All forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain as they
are based on various expectations and assumptions concerning future events and they are subject to numerous known and unknown risks
and uncertainties that could cause actual events or results to differ materially from those projected. Due to these inherent uncertainties, the
investment community is urged not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. In addition, we undertake no obligations to
update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes to
projections over time.
The key factors that are not within our control and that may have a direct bearing on operating results include, but are not limited
to, whether our services are accepted in the marketplace, our ability to expand our customer base, our management’s ability to raise capital
in the future, the retention of key employees and changes in the regulation of our industry.
There may be other risks and circumstances that management may be unable to predict. When used in this Annual Report, words
such as, "believes," "expects," "intends," "plans," "anticipates," "estimates" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements, although there may be certain forward-looking statements not accompanied by such expressions.
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PART I
Item 1. Business.
Company History
We were originally incorporated in the State of Nevada on January 8, 2007 as “Coyote Hills Golf, Inc.” We were previously an
online retailer of golf-related apparel, equipment and supplies. Prior to the acquisition of the assets of Spindle Mobile, Inc. (“Spindle
Mobile”), as described below, we generated minimal revenues from the golf-related business.
On December 2, 2011, we acquired certain assets and intellectual property from Spindle Mobile, a Delaware corporation in the
business of data processing, mobile payments fields and other related fields, in exchange for approximately 80% of our issued and
outstanding common stock of the Company, which shares were distributed to the stockholders of Spindle Mobile, Inc., pursuant to the
terms and conditions of an Asset Purchase Agreement (the "Spindle Mobile Agreement").
Concurrent with the closing of the Spindle Mobile Agreement, we amended our articles of incorporation to change our name from
"“Coyote Hills Golf, Inc." to "Spindle, Inc." Additionally, we changed our authorized capital from 100,000,000 shares of common stock
and 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value to 300,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value, and 50,000,000
preferred stock, $0.001 par value. The actions were approved on November 11, 2011, by the consent of the majority stockholders who
represented 90% of our issued and outstanding common stock, and were effective on December 2, 2011.
On December 31, 2012 (the “Parallel Acquisition Closing Date”), pursuant to that certain Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Parallel
Agreement”) by and between the Company and Parallel Solutions Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Parallel”), the Company acquired,
substantially all of Parallel’s assets used in connection with its business of facilitating electronic payment processing services to merchants
(the “Parallel Assets”), assumed certain specified liabilities and hired seven employees of Parallel in exchange for 538,570 unregistered
shares of common stock, of which 53,857 shares (the "Parallel Indemnification Escrow") and 100,000 shares (the "Parallel Deferred
Consent Escrow”) were deposited in escrow with our transfer agent. The Parallel Indemnification Escrow was released on January 23,
2014. On October 29, 2013, the Parallel Deferred Consent Escrow was released to Parallel after certain specified contract assignments and
residual revenue streams were assigned to the Company pursuant to the Parallel Agreement.
On March 20, 2013 (the “MeNetwork Closing Date”), the Company assumed certain liabilities and acquired substantially all of
the assets of MeNetwork, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“MeNetwork”), (2) on March 20, 2013, substantially all of the assets of
MeNetwork, Inc. (“MeNetwork”) used in connection with its business of developing, marketing and licensing a mobile marketing platform
for use by merchants and consumers (the “MeNetwork Assets”), pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement dated March 1, 2013 by and
between Spindle and MeNetwork (the “MeNetwork Agreement”). As consideration for the assumption of the liabilities and the acquisition
of the MeNetwork Assets, the Company issued an aggregate of 2,750,000 shares of common stock to the stockholders of MeNetwork, of
which 350,000 were deposited in escrow with our transfer agent for the purposes of satisfying any indemnification claims. The
MeNetwork Indemnification Escrow was released pursuant to the MeNetwork Agreement. On October 7, 2013, the Company issued an
additional 750,000 shares of common stock to Ashton Craig Page, the former director and Chief Operating Officer of MeNetwork and a
former director of the Company, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the MeNetwork Agreement. On December 12, 2014, the
Company, and Ashton Craig Page, in his capacity as the representative of MeNetwork and the MeNetwork Stockholders (the
“Representative”), entered into an Amendment and Waiver to Asset Purchase Agreement (the "Amendment”), pursuant to which the
Company agreed to issue and the Representative agreed to accept on behalf of MeNetwork and the MeNetwork Stockholders an
acceleration of the issuance of up to an aggregate of 1,000,000 Earnout Shares on or before December 31, 2014 in full satisfaction of all
obligations of the Company to issue the Earnout Shares pursuant to the Purchase Agreement during the Earnout Period. These shares were
issued on December 23, 2014.
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On January 3, 2014, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Y Dissolution, Inc., a Delaware corporation (formerly
known as Yowza International, Inc.) (“Yowza!!”), used in connection with the business of providing retail coupons through a mobile
application pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement, dated December 10, 2013, by and between the Company and Yowza!! in exchange
for $500,000 and 1,642,000 unregistered shares of the Company’s common stock issued to (1) the holders of Yowza!!’s outstanding capital
stock, and (2) certain executive management members and advisors of Yowza!!.
On October 23, 2015 (the “Closing Date”) the Company completed the acquisition of specific assets of Catalyst Business
Development, Inc. (“Catalyst”) pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement, dated September 14, 2015, by and between the Company and
Catalyst in exchange for 300,000 unregistered shares of the Company’s common stock issued to the holders of Catalyst stock. The
consideration amounted to $75,000 using a fair value of $0.25 per share at the Closing Date. The assets acquired include a white-labeled
license of the Merchant Partners solution and various assets related to branding, marketing and sales. Spindle will continue to operate the
gateway under the Catalyst brand.
As a result of the acquisitions described above, we have developed products and services that combine the benefits of a
commercial mobile marketing platform with a secure and fully-functioning mobile payment platform. Our services are targeted primarily
to small and medium sized businesses, which we define as businesses with less than $15 million in annual revenues and less than 250
fulltime employees, because these businesses may not have the financial resources to invest in the development of marketing applications
for use with mobile devices. Through the Yowza!! mobile marketing platform, which can be downloaded at no cost, we notify consumers
of geo-located special offers, discounts and events provided by nearby merchants or merchants the consumer “subscribes” to. We generate
revenue through processing payment card transactions and through monthly subscriber fees paid by small and medium sized businesses for
the use of our Yowza!! products.
Because we are still growing our business, we have not earned enough revenue to support our operations and we are not profitable.
To date, we have funded our operations through sales of our equity securities and loans from related parties. We cannot guarantee that we
will ever be profitable.
Business Description
Spindle provides commerce solutions for payment processing services, point-of-sale systems, and customer marketing to small and
medium sized businesses. Spindle enables businesses to sell their goods and services, accept payment, and create repeat sales though
payment processing and marketing and loyalty programs. Spindle has operated as a Payment Facilitator for all of 2015, which enables our
merchants to get the benefit of instant boarding, and we have also recently added traditional merchant services to our offering as a
registered Agent of Citizens Bank, N.A. Providence, RI (the “Sponsoring Bank”), which enables us to offer merchant services worldwide.
Spindle’s services are differentiated by our ability to offer fully integrated solutions. The Yowza!! branded Point-of-sale (“POS”)
platform supplies business with a full commerce solution which provides critical business functions, online ordering, inventory
management and menu management, on-line ordering, mobile payment acceptance, and EMV compliance. When coupled with our payment
processing capabilities and other Yowza!! marketing services, a business has a single source supplier that can positively impact the growth
and sustainability of their business. We believe this combination of services is unique in the market, providing us with competitive
advantages that have the potential to generate strong growth and profitability by enabling us to win business through our direct and indirect
sales channels.
Merchant Services
Payments platform
Spindle operates one of the few “self-service” Payment Facilitator platforms (“PF”) in the country. As a Payment Facilitator, we
provide services to merchants under a process defined by the card associations as “Aggregation” or “Master Merchant.” Spindle holds the
merchant relationship with our Sponsoring Bank, and bears the risk of underwriting and fraud. We use a single identified mark of “SPI*”
on the Visa, MasterCard, Discover, and American Express networks with our registered identification.
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Spindle PF platform provides all aspects required for payment processing, including merchant boarding, underwriting, fraud
monitoring, settlement, funding to the sub-merchant, and monthly reporting and statements. By providing all of the necessary services, we
are designated in the market as a “self-service” Payment Facilitator. Spindle controls all of these necessary aspects in the payment process,
and is then able to supply a one-step boarding process for our channel partners and value-added resellers. We streamline the underwriting
process for merchants, and leverage credit, funding, and transaction velocity to manage fraud to a very low level, compared to other
aggregators in the market. This capability also provides cost advantages, rapid response to market needs, simplified processes for boarding
business and a seamless interface for our merchant customers.
To expand beyond the market segments where Payment Facilitation is effective, Spindle executed a Member Service Provider
(“MSP”) agreement with Worldpay US, Inc. (“Worldpay”) and Citizen Bank, N.A. towards the end of 2015. As a result, Spindle is now a
registered Agent of Citizens Bank, N.A. Providence, RI which enables us to offer merchant services worldwide. As an MSP, Spindle
provides merchants with a broad range of credit, debit and prepaid payment processing services. We give them the ability to accept and
process Visa, MasterCard, American Express, Discover and PIN debit network card transactions originated at the point of sale, as well as
for ecommerce and mobile transactions. This service includes all aspects of card processing, including authorization and settlement,
customer service, chargeback and retrieval processing and network fee and interchange management.
Chip card upgrades in the United States drive another very important evolution in the payment processing market. The card
associations are actively promoting the move to the chip card infrastructure, also known as Eurocard-MasterCard-Visa (“EMV”) standard.
This is in response to many of the recent data breaches where credit card numbers have been stolen. The EMV standard helps to reduce the
ability to reproduce stolen credit cards by employing a secure interaction with the chip on the card. The card associations are driving the
move to EMV by shifting the liability to merchants who accept a fraudulent card when the card was issued as an EMV card, but accepted
as a mag strip transaction. It is anticipated that fraud will migrate to merchants who have not yet moved to EMV, thus increasing losses and
risk for those merchants.
Point of Sale
Spindle has developed a full function Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) point-of-sale solution that resides in the cloud and serves as
the entry point for merchants. Branded Yowza!! Point of Sale (“POS”), our payment acceptance platform, coupled with the Yowza!!
marketing platform, delivers hyperlocal identity, social media, and advertising for businesses.
Yowza!! POS serves as a cloud-based central management console for small and medium sized merchants, giving them instant
visibility into a number of mission-critical operations, including inventory across multiple locations, scheduling, and accounting functions.
The system offers integrated marketing functionalities such as the enabling of email, couponing and redemption campaigns, and reward and
loyalty program management that automatically synchronizes across all locations. Detailed reporting and analytics are also included to give
merchants insight into sales and performance rates. Yowza!! POS is a suite of tools that allow merchants to conduct and manage a full
range of business functions, including inventory management, order processing, workforce management, payment functionalities,
marketing, and other core business operations from an iOS and Android device.
Yowza!! POS has been tailored to work with specialized hardware that is designed for the needs of restaurant operators, delivering
a roster of sophisticated tools enhanced with the market's first integrated 15-inch Android station. The Yowza!! POS Restaurant platform
utilizes a large-format Android station with an easy-to-navigate, tiltable, resistive touch-screen display. Restive screens are necessary in a
restaurant environment compared to the capacitive touch technology employed by cellphone and table manufactures including Apple. The
POS station incorporates a cash drawer, optional bar code scanner, secure magnetic card reader or EMV terminal, customer facing display,
and a three-inch printer with auto-cutter, all delivered in a sleek, compact, and all-in-one footprint. The Yowza!! POS native application is
also iOS compatible with standard iPad tablets.
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The Yowza!! POS platform is one of a select few solutions that integrates table management, inventory management, mobileserver order-taking, digital menus, remote customer ordering and curbside pick-up, remote payment integration, kitchen-based printing,
support for loyalty and gift card programs, bill-splitting capabilities, and "omni-channel" functions that include a customer-facing web
portal and mobile-based support, plus multi-station support for restaurant, bar and take-out functions. Optional seven-inch tablets can be
deployed for server use and pay-at-the-table.
Integrated Payment Technology
Catalyst Gateway
The Catalyst Gateway was acquired by the Company as part of the Catalyst Business Development acquisition which closed on
October 23, 2015. The Catalyst Gateway is a white-labeled license of the Merchant Partners solution and contracted under Worldpay.
Spindle will continue to operate the gateway under the Catalyst brand delivering solutions to both direct merchants and merchants through
a network of resellers such as other MSPs looking for competitive EMV compliant solutions, telephonic sales, and effective payment
processing technology.
With our expansion of payment processing services enabled by our MSP registration, having access to a payment gateway is
critical to expanding our service offering. In addition, the EMV requirements are very specialized and require intensive certifications with
each processing platform. The Catalyst Gateway has EMV ready solutions and is managed by Worldpay, giving Spindle the ability to
service customers worldwide and with world-class technology.
The Catalyst Gateway offers the ability to board merchants with EMV compliant POS terminals from industry leading companies
such as Ingenico, Verifone, deploying Virtual or Web-based terminals, supplying e-commerce solutions that integrate with most of the
leading shopping carts, and enabling developers to integrate payments into their applications with the developer Application Program
Interface (“API”) and Software Development Kit (“SDK”) tools in many of the top programming languages. Additionally, developers have
access for boarding merchants on traditional acquiring platforms or on our aggregation platform.
Payment Facilitator Platform
Our Payment Facilitator platform functions as a self-service platform used internally by Spindle to service specialized market
segments where aggregation is required. These solutions usually involve a single software or service platform offering a business service to
downstream business that board their customers. Aggregation requires a special set of capabilities to control all of these necessary aspects
in the payment process. A viable solution must supply a one-stop boarding process, instant underwriting and leverage credit funding, and
transaction velocity to manage fraud and chargeback risk. Spindle offers aggregation processing services where Spindle is not the merchant
of record and financial risk is borne by the processing partner or software company.
Yowza!! Offers Marketing Platform
Spindle continues to grow the Yowza!! marketing platform acquired in January 2014. The system has had more than 2 million
downloads and today supports 19,000 brands with offers at 260,000 locations across the U.S. Yowza!! is an affiliate publisher for more
than ten affiliate content suppliers, and we offer our services directly for companies such as Big 5 Sporting Goods who leverage the
Yowza!! platform while placing our logo on their door and including the Yowza logo on their website.
The Yowza!! native mobile application for iOS and Android is designed to deliver offers, coupons, and promotions to consumers
based on geo-location. The app leverages both GPS and beacon-based technology to trigger location-based offers.
In 2015, Yowza!! was expanded to deliver on-line offers and is available through the web at www.yowzaoffers.com. The
combination of location-based offers and national online offers increases the value to consumers by delivering content that is relevant based
on the method of access; broad searchable content online, or geo-targeted content delivered in the app and during the shopping journey.
Retailers who leverage the geo-targeted capabilities of Yowza!! can experience a much greater level of consumer engagement with a
conversion rate of 37% to 44% for in-store offers.
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Yowza!! marketing services provides content delivery to consumers for affiliates advertisers through our multiple affiliate
publishing network relationships. Yowza!! is marketed on the local level directly to small and medium sized business to enable them to
engage their customers. Yowza!! app users gain both national affiliated and local content in a single distribution model. Local merchants
using Yowza!!, have the ability to leverage the social media integration, email marketing campaign management with MailChimp, and the
built in consumer messaging to their consumers who subscribed to their brand, locations, or offers. Additionally, Spindle supplies a
merchant marketing program to guide businesses on the best ways to grow sales through the use of the Yowza!! service by providing best
practices, samples, and schedules needed to generate sales.
Yowza!! services are a competitive advantage when marketing commerce solutions to business both big and small. The ability to
tie sales, marketing, point-of-sale, payment processing, mobile payments, and consumer loyalty into a single service is clearly market
leading.
Our Growth Strategy
Sales and Marketing
Spindle serves three categories of customers: 1) individual consumers; 2) individual businesses or merchants; and 3) third party
resellers, such as advertising and content media companies, and merchant services providers and other resellers such as MSPs and Value
Added resellers (“VARs”). We derive revenue from the sale of our services to merchants. Spindle’s services enable merchants to attract,
market to, and retain their customers though our Yowza!! marketing platform, as well as process payments for goods and services sold
through the Yowza!! POS platform, website based shopping cart, or by accepting card swipe transactions on the Yowza!! POS or enabled
reseller software services.
We reach merchants in two ways, primarily through direct sales or through our reseller channels. Direct sales are generated using
employees and contract labor, web or app store traffic, and by viral methods such as referrals from our customers and merchants.
Additionally, we have signed several reseller agreements to extend our reach into specialized markets leveraging the services of the
Catalyst Gateway. We consider our reseller agreements to be “indirect” sales. Our resellers fund the sales efforts and receive a wholesale
buy rate or revenue share for their sales efforts. The reseller delivers a bundled solution to their customers. Recently, resellers have begun
selling Yowza!! branded solution to leverage the national brand identity and unified commerce platform.
During 2015, Spindle focused on driving and increasing the revenue per unit by delivering a higher value suite of services. Instead
of servicing the “micro” merchant market—as was our focus for several years—we are now driving sales to the small-to-medium business
(“SMB”) community through the sale of our SaaS tablet-based Yowza!! POS, bundled with the Yowza!! marketing and couponing service,
and other commerce services described above.
Acquisitions
We plan and expect to grow not only through organic sales with the addition of merchants using our products and services, but also
by strategic acquisitions. In 2015, we acquired Catalyst Business Development Inc., in a move to acquire the Catalyst Gateway license and
add talent to our management team. We will continue to identify unique opportunities which we believe will enhance our product features
and functionality, revenue goals, and market penetration. Our acquisitions have generally been consummated through the issuance of our
common stock.
Market Conditions in the Payment Processing Industry
The payment processing industry will continue to adopt new technologies, develop new products and services, evolve new
business models and experience new market entrants and changes in the regulatory environment. In the near-term, merchants and acquiring
banks seek services that help them enhance their own offerings to consumers, including acceptance of Europay-MasterCard-Visa (“EMV”)
chip-based cards.
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As EMV is adopted the industry expects a redistribution of fraud to points left vulnerable, thus there will be a need for adapted security and
fraud management services, information services, and support for omni-commerce environments. To meet this evolving need, Spindle and
our partners are developing packaged solutions with end to end security, leveraging our tokenized infrastructure, and educating our
merchant base on ways to consume these services and protect their business.
Competition
Merchant Services
Our competitors in the merchant services business are plentiful. They range from the large acquiring banks like Bank of America
Merchant Services, to Chase Paymentech, to smaller MSPs who specialize in specific verticals. Most of our competitors follow traditional
sales and marketing approaches, including those acquirers who are reluctant to educate their merchants on the changes facing them with
respect to EMV and security. When a merchant finds it necessary to make a change to their processes, it usually is accompanied by a search
of other suppliers, new options, and the most current and cost effective solutions. It is this structural attrition forced by EMV compliance
that affords Spindle the market opportunity to move a merchant and deliver a better value proposition by updating their environment, and
delivering new payment technology. The most significant competitive factors in our segment are price, breadth of features and
functionality, data security, and system performance and reliability.
Marketing Services
Our competitors in the marketing space are diverse, ranging from Groupon to RetailMeNot to Coupons.com and print advertising
such as ReachLocal and ValPak. Few are direct overlaps of our packaged solution, however they do market to the same prospective
merchant base. It is the direct response nature of digital offers that allow for better consumer segmentation, targeting, tracking of
redemptions and automated attribution to specific promotional campaign spend that provides a ROI compared to more traditional
advertising channels. In addition, the speed and adaptability of digital offers allows retailers and brands to reach and influence consumers
while they are shopping. Digital offers allow for quick edits and modify the scale of campaigns dynamically based on consumer interest
and marketing budgets. This compares favorably to traditional print couponing, which requires longer lead times and is a more manual and
expensive process due to the print and physical distribution requirements of physical offers.
Our Strategy
We plan to grow our business by executing on the following four key strategies:
·
·
·
·

Invest in and leverage our direct sales model to drive organic sales growth;
Broaden and deepen our distribution channels to grow our reseller and subsequent merchant client base;
Differentiate through value-added services that address evolving client demands and provide additional cross-selling
opportunities, including marketing, fraud management, ease of connection and delivery, and support for omni-channel
environments; and
Enter new markets segments and expand sales capacity through strategic partnerships or acquisitions that enhance our client
base, and service capabilities.

Government Regulations
We are subject to regulations that affect the electronic payment industry in which our service is used. In particular, the banks and
financial institutions that we provide services to are subject to regulations applicable in the United States and abroad, and, consequently, we
may be affected by such regulations. Regulation of the financial services industry has seen rapid change in recent years, including the
passage of the Patriot Act and the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, including the Durbin Amendment
(the “Dodd-Frank Act”). The Dodd-Frank Act establishes regulation and oversight by the U.S. Federal Reserve Board of debit interchange
rates and certain other network industry practices.
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Among other things, it requires debit and prepaid “interchange transaction fees” (referred to in the Dodd-Frank Act as fees established,
charged or received by a payment card network for the purpose of compensating an issuer for its involvement in an electronic debit
transaction) to be “reasonable and proportional to the cost incurred by the issuer with respect to the transaction.” We believe that, as a small
issuer with less than $10 billion in assets, our payment service is exempt from this provision of the Dodd-Frank Act. If at any time these
regulations should change, there would be an impact on our business model due to the costs of compliance with such regulations.
Additionally, the Dodd-Frank Act provides that neither an issuer nor a payment card network may establish exclusive debit
network arrangements or inhibit the ability of a merchant to choose among different networks for routing debit transactions. Under
alternative rules proposed by the Federal Reserve, either (1) a debit card would meet the requirements of the Dodd-Frank Act as long as it
could be used in at least two unaffiliated networks, or (2) each debit card would be required to function in at least two unaffiliated networks
for each method of authorization that the cardholder could use for transactions (i.e., two signature and/or two PIN networks).
The Dodd-Frank Act also created two new independent regulatory bodies in the Financial Reserve System. The Consumer
Financial Protection Bureau has significant authority to regulate consumer financial products, including consumer credit, deposit, payment,
and similar products; although it is not clear whether and/or to what extent the Bureau will be authorized to regulate broader aspects of
payment card network operations. The Financial Stability Oversight Council is tasked, among other responsibilities, with identifying
“systemically important” payment, clearing and settlement systems that will be subject to new regulation, supervision and examination
requirements, although it is not clear whether Spindle would be deemed “systemically important” under the applicable statutory standard. If
Spindle were deemed to be “systemically important,” it could be subject to new risk management regulations relating to its payment,
clearing, and settlement activities. New regulations could address areas such as risk management policies and procedures; collateral
requirements; participant default policies and procedures; the ability to complete timely clearing and settlement of financial transactions;
and capital and financial resource requirements. In addition, a “systemically important” payment system could be required to obtain prior
approval from the U.S. Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or another federal agency for changes to its system rules,
procedures or operations that could materially affect the level of risk presented by that payment system. These developments or actions
could increase the cost of operating our business and may make payment card transactions less attractive to card issuers, as well as
consumers. This could result in a reduction in our payments volume and revenues.
We are also required to comply with Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) data protection policies. We employ an external PCI audit
firm to ensure that we are following best practices and have the required system reviews. We are currently certified by Megaplan IT to
operate as a Service Provider at Level 1, which is the highest certification.
Intellectual Property
Our intellectual property portfolio supports and enhances our enterprise payment solutions, which is developed both internally and
through acquisition. We own 4 patents and we have an additional 2 patent applications pending with the United States Patent & Trademark
Office (U.S.P.T.O). Our patent portfolio plays an integral role in technology platforms and services we believe foundational to the
methods used in networked payments. The patent portfolio includes one continuation patent in a family of patents related to “Processing
Payment on the Internet” now pending with the U.S.P.T.O. The issue date and expiration date of our issued US patents are included in the
table below.

U.S. Patent No.
5,822,737
5,963,917
5,991,738
6,381,584

Issue Date
10-13-1998
10-05-1999
11-23-1999
04-30-2002

Expiration
Date
10-13-2018
10-05-2019
11-23-2019
04-30-2022

Filing Date
02-05-1996
10-05-1998
11-12-1997
09-07-2000
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Title
Financial Transaction System
Financial System of Computers
Automated Credit Card Processing
Computers in a Financial System

Employees
We currently have 10 employees, including executive management, sales, client services, technology development and IT
infrastructure management and technical administration and implementation. We outsource some of our core technology development. We
have no labor union contracts and believe relations with our employees are satisfactory.
Item 1A. Risk Factors.
We are subject to various risks that may materially harm our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. An
investment in our common stock is speculative and involves a high degree of risk. In evaluating an investment in shares of our common
stock, you should carefully consider the risks described below, together with the other information included in this report.
The risks described below are not the only risks we face. If any of the events described in the following risk factors actually
occurs, or if additional risks and uncertainties later materialize, that are not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial,
then our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected. In that event, the trading
price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment in our shares. The risks discussed below include
forward-looking statements, and our actual results may differ substantially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements. Our
business is subject to numerous risks.
You should carefully consider the following risk factors and all other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Any of these risks could adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.
Risks Related to our Business
We have incurred losses since our inception and cannot assure you that we will achieve profitability.
The Company has an accumulated deficit of $19,112,115 and $15,252,417 as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
respectively. The extent of our future operating losses and the timing of profitability are highly uncertain and we may never achieve or
sustain profitability. We cannot assure you that we will ever generate sufficient revenues from our operations to achieve profitability. If
revenues grow slower than we anticipate, or if operating expenses exceed our expectations or cannot be adjusted accordingly, we may not
ever achieve profitability and the value of your investment could decline significantly. These factors create a substantial doubt about our
ability to continue as a going concern and our auditors have included a going concern qualification in their report on our audited financial
statements.
If we are unable to obtain additional capital, we may be unable to proceed with our long-term business plan, and we may be forced to
curtail or cease our operations.
The revenues we earn are not adequate to either sustain or expand our operations. During the year ended December 31, 2015, we
earned $521,037 in revenues, but our cost of sales and total expenses totaled $4,611,329, resulting in a net operating loss of $4,090,292.
We require additional working capital to support our business plan, which includes identifying suitable targets for horizontal or vertical
mergers or acquisitions, so as to enhance the overall productivity and benefit from economies of scale. We expect to pursue acquisitions of,
or investments in, businesses and assets in new markets that complement or expand our existing business. Our working capital
requirements and the cash flow provided by future operating activities, if any, will vary greatly from quarter to quarter, depending on the
volume of business during the period and payment terms with our channel partners. We may not be able to obtain adequate levels of
additional financing, whether through equity financing, debt financing or other sources. Additional financings could result in significant
dilution to our earnings per share or the issuance of securities with rights superior to our current outstanding securities. In addition, we may
grant registration rights to investors purchasing our equity or debt securities in the future. If we are unable to raise additional financing, we
may be unable to implement our long-term business plan, develop or enhance our products and services, take advantage of future
opportunities or respond to competitive pressures on a timely basis, if at all. In addition, a lack of additional financing could force us to
substantially curtail or cease operations.
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If we cannot keep pace with rapid developments, changes and consolidation occurring in our industry and provide new services to our
clients, the use of our services could decline, reducing our revenues.
The electronic payments market in which we operate is characterized by rapid technological change, new product and service
introductions, including ecommerce services, mobile payment applications, and prepaid services, evolving industry standards, changing
customer and consumer needs, the entrance of non-traditional competitors and periods of increased consolidation. In order to remain
competitive in this rapidly evolving market, we are continually involved in a number of projects to develop new and innovative services.
These projects carry risks, such as cost overruns, delays in delivery, performance problems and lack of market acceptance of new or in
services. Any delay in the delivery of new services or the failure to differentiate our services or to accurately predict and address market
demand could render our services less desirable, or even obsolete, to our clients. In addition, the new or innovated services we develop are
designed to process very complex transactions and provide information on those transactions, all at very high volumes and processing
speeds. Any failure to deliver reliable, effective and secure services that meet the expectations of our clients could result in increased costs
and/or a loss in business and revenues that could reduce our earnings. If we are unable to develop, adapt to or access technological changes
or evolving industry standards on a timely and cost effective basis, our business, financial condition and results of operations would be
materially adversely affected.
The payment processing industry is highly competitive, and we compete with certain firms that are larger and that have greater
financial resources. Such competition could adversely affect the transaction and other fees we receive from merchants, and as a result,
our margins, business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our competitors are well-established payment processing companies, Independent Sales Organizations (“ISO”), MSPs, and other
third party suppliers who include payment processing in their solution. Many of our competitors also have substantially greater financial,
technological and marketing resources than we have. In addition, our competitors are affiliated with the same acquiring banks and
processing services. Accordingly, these competitors may be able to offer more attractive fees to our current and prospective clients or other
services that we do not provide. Competition could result in a loss of existing clients, and greater difficulty attracting new clients.
Furthermore, if competition causes us to reduce the fees we charge in order to attract or retain clients, there is no assurance we can
successfully control our costs in order to maintain our profit margins. One or more of these factors could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations.
We may not be able to continue to expand our share of the existing payment processing markets or expand into new markets which
would inhibit our ability to grow and increase our profitability.
Our future growth and profitability depend upon the growth of the markets in which we currently operate and our ability to
increase our penetration and service offerings within these markets, as well as the emergence of new markets for our services and our
ability to penetrate these new markets. It is difficult to attract new clients because of cost, and operational impact associated with switching
payment processing vendors. We seek to overcome these factors by making investments to enhance the functionality of our software and
differentiate our services. However, there can be no assurance that our efforts will be successful, and this resistance may adversely affect
our growth.
Our expansion into new markets is also dependent upon our ability to adapt our existing technology and offerings or to develop
new or innovative applications to meet the particular service needs of each new market. In order to do so, we will need to anticipate and
react to market changes and devote appropriate financial and technical resources to our development efforts, and there can be no assurance
that we will be successful in these efforts. Furthermore, in response to market developments, we may expand into new geographical
markets in which we do not currently have any operating experience. We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully expand in
such markets due to our lack of experience and the multitude of risks associated with new operations.
Unauthorized disclosure of data, whether through cybersecurity breaches, computer viruses or otherwise, could expose us to liability,
protracted and costly litigation and damage our reputation.
We have responsibility for compliance under Visa, MasterCard and other payment network rules and regulations.
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We and certain of our associated participants process, sometimes store, and/or transmit sensitive cardholder data, such as names, addresses,
social security numbers, credit or debit card numbers, driver’s license numbers and bank account numbers, and we have ultimate liability to
the payment networks and member financial institutions that register us with Visa, MasterCard and other payment networks for our failure
or the failure of our associated participants to protect this data in accordance with payment network requirements. The loss of merchant or
cardholder data by us or our associated participants could result in significant fines and sanctions by the payment networks or governmental
bodies. A significant cybersecurity breach could also result in payment networks prohibiting us from processing transactions on their
networks or the loss of our financial institution sponsorship that facilitates our participation in the payment networks, which would have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. These concerns about security are increased when we
transmit information over the Internet. The techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service or sabotage systems
change frequently and are often difficult to detect. We subject to the threat of breaches of security by hackers. In such circumstances, our
encryption of data and other protective measures may not prevent unauthorized access service disruption or system sabotage. Although we
have not incurred losses or liabilities as a result of security breach attempt, we have experienced attempts to breach our system. Such an
event could be material and harm our reputation, deter clients and potential clients from using our services, increase our operating expenses,
expose us to uninsured losses or other liabilities, increase our risk of regulatory scrutiny, subject us to lawsuits, result in material penalties
and fines under state and federal laws or by the payment networks, and adversely affect our continued payment network registration and
financial institution sponsorship.
Our systems and our third party providers’ systems may fail due to factors beyond our control, which could interrupt our service, cause
us to lose business and increase our costs.
We depend on the efficient and uninterrupted operation of numerous systems, including our computer systems, software, data
centers and telecommunications networks, as well as the systems of third parties, in order to provide services to our clients. Our systems
and operations and those of our third party providers, could be exposed to damage or interruption from, among other things, fire, natural
disaster, power loss, telecommunications failure, unauthorized entry, security breach, computer viruses, defects and development delays.
Defects in our systems or those of third parties, errors or delays in the processing of payment transactions, telecommunications failures or
other difficulties could result in loss of revenues and clients, reputational harm, additional operating expenses in order to remediate the
failures, fines imposed by payment networks and exposure to other losses or other liabilities.
Any acquisitions, partnerships or joint ventures that we make could disrupt our business and harm our financial condition.
Acquisitions, partnerships and joint ventures are part of our growth strategy. We evaluate, and expect in the future to evaluate
potential strategic acquisitions and/or partnerships with complementary businesses, services, or technologies. However, we may not be able
to successfully integrate any businesses, services or technologies that we acquire or with which we form a partnership or joint venture, or
comply with applicable regulatory requirements. Furthermore, the integration of any acquisition may divert management’s time and
resources from our core business and disrupt our operations. Certain partnerships and joint ventures we make may also prevent us from
competing for certain clients or in certain lines of business. To the extent we pay the purchase price of any acquisition in cash, it would
reduce our cash reserves, and to the extent the purchase price is paid with our stock, it could be dilutive to our stockholders.
Changes in payment network rules or standards could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Payment network rules are established and updated semi-annually by each payment network as they may determine in their sole
discretion and with or without advance notice to their participants. The ability of the Payment networks to modify and enhance their rules in
their sole discretion may create a disadvantage to our ability to competitively sell or deploy our payment solutions. Any changes in
payment network rules or standards or the way they are implemented could increase our cost of doing business or limit our ability to
provide transaction processing services to or through our clients and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.
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If we fail to comply with the applicable requirements of the Visa, MasterCard or other payment networks, those payment networks could
seek to fine us, suspend us or terminate our registrations through our financial institution sponsors. These actions could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations, and if these registrations are terminated, we may not be able
to conduct our business.
In order to provide our transaction processing services, we are registered through our bank sponsorships with Visa, MasterCard,
and other payment networks as MSPs. We and our clients are subject to payment network rules. If we or our associated participants do not
comply with the payment network requirements, the payment networks could seek to fine us, suspend us or terminate our registrations. The
termination of our registration, or any changes in the payment network rules that would impair our registration could require us to stop
providing payment network services to the Visa, MasterCard or other payment networks, which would have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations.
If our agreements with financial institution sponsors and clearing service providers to process electronic payment transactions are
terminated or otherwise expire and we are unable to renew existing or secure new sponsors or clearing service providers, we will not be
able to conduct our business.
The Visa, MasterCard and other payment network rules such as National Automated Clearinghouse (“NACHA”) require us to be
sponsored by a member bank in order to process electronic payment transactions. Because we are not a bank, we are unable to directly
access these payment networks. We are currently registered with the Visa, MasterCard and other payment networks through Citizens Bank
N.A., and Florida Capital Bank for ACH. Our agreements give our sponsoring banks substantial discretion in approving certain aspects of
our business practices, including our solicitation, application and qualification procedures for merchants and the terms of our agreements
with merchants. Our financial institution sponsors’ discretionary actions under these agreements could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations. We also rely on our network partner Worldpay, and various other processors to
provide clearing and settlement services for our merchant customers. Without these sponsorships or clearing services agreements, we
would not be able to process Visa, MasterCard and other payment network transactions and our Merchant would not be able to submit
transactions for settlement which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Increased merchant, financial institution or referral partner attrition and decreased transaction volume could cause our revenues to
decline.
We experience attrition and declines in merchant credit, debit or prepaid card processing volume resulting from several factors,
including business closures, consolidations, loss of accounts to competitors, account closures that we initiate due to heightened credit risks,
and reductions in our merchants' sales volumes. Our referral partners, many of which are not exclusive, such as ISVs, VARs, ISOs and
trade associations are contributors to our revenue growth. If a referral partner switches to another transaction processor, shuts down or
becomes insolvent, we will no longer receive new merchant referrals from the referral partner, and we risk losing existing merchants that
were originally enrolled by the referral partner. We cannot predict the level of attrition and decreased transaction volume in the future and
our revenues could decline as a result of higher than expected attrition, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
A decline in the use of credit, debit or prepaid cards as a payment mechanism for consumers or adverse developments with respect to
the payment processing industry in general could have a materially adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.
If consumers do not continue to use credit, debit or prepaid cards as a payment mechanism for their transactions or if there is a
change in the mix of payments between cash, alternative currencies and technologies, credit, debit and prepaid cards, or the corresponding
methodologies used for each, which is averse to us, it could have a materially adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. Moreover, if there is an adverse development in the payments industry in general, such as new legislation or regulation that
makes it more difficult for our clients to do business, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.
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The consumer traffic to our websites and mobile applications may decline and our business may suffer if other companies copy
information from our platform and publish or aggregate it with other information for their own benefit.
We provide advertising content on our Yowza!! platform. Other companies provide similar information and may redistribute
Yowza!! content. Information or content from our platform, through website scraping, robots or other means, may be taken and published
or aggregated with other information for the benefit of a third party or competitor. When third parties copy, publish or aggregate content
from our platform, it makes them more competitive, and decreases the likelihood that consumers will visit our websites or use our mobile
applications to search and discover the information they seek, which could negatively affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition. We may not be able to detect such third-party conduct in a timely manner or at all and, even if we are able to identify
these situations, we may not be able to prevent them and have not always been able to prevent them in the past. In some cases, particularly
in the case of websites operating outside of the U.S., our available remedies may be inadequate to protect us against such practices. In
addition, we may be required to expend significant financial or other resources to successfully enforce our rights.
Governmental regulations designed to protect or limit access to consumer information could adversely affect our ability to effectively
provide our services to merchants.
Governmental bodies in the United States and abroad have adopted, or are considering the adoption of, laws and regulations
restricting the transfer of, and requiring safeguarding of, non-public personal information. For example, in the United States, all financial
institutions must undertake certain steps to ensure the privacy and security of consumer financial information. Although we have limited
our use of consumer information solely to providing services to other businesses and financial institutions, we are required by regulations
and contracts with our merchants and financial institution clients to provide assurances regarding the confidentiality and security of nonpublic consumer information. Our ability to maintain compliance with these standards and satisfy these audits will affect our ability to
attract and maintain business in the future. If we fail to comply with these regulations or requirements, we could be exposed to suits for
breach of contract or to governmental proceedings. In addition, our client relationships and reputation could be harmed, and we could be
inhibited in our ability to obtain new clients. If more restrictive privacy laws or rules are adopted by authorities in the future on the federal
or state level, our compliance costs may increase, our opportunities for growth may be curtailed by our compliance capabilities or
reputational harm and our potential liability for security breaches may increase, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.
Regulatory, legislative or self-regulatory developments regarding Internet privacy matters could adversely affect our ability to conduct
our business.
Consumer and industry groups have expressed concerns about online data collection and use by companies, which has resulted in
the release of various industry self-regulatory codes of conduct and best practice guidelines that are binding for member companies and that
govern, among other things, the ways in which companies can collect, use and disclose user information, how companies must give notice
of these practices and what choices companies must provide to consumers regarding these practices. We are obligated in certain cases to
comply with best practices or codes of conduct addressing matters, such as the online tracking of users or devices.
U.S. regulatory agencies have also placed an increased focus on online privacy matters and, in particular, on online advertising
activities that utilize cookies, which are small files of non-personalized information placed on an Internet user’s computer, and other online
tracking methods. On March 26, 2012, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) issued a report on consumer privacy intended to articulate
best practices for companies collecting and using consumer data. The report recommends companies adopt several practices that could
have an impact on our business, including giving consumers notice and offering them choices about being tracked across other parties’
websites and implementing a persistent “Do Not Track” mechanism to enable consumers to choose whether to allow tracking of their online
search and browsing activities, including on mobile devices. Various industry participants have worked to develop and finalize standards
relating to a Do Not Track mechanism, and such standards may be implemented and adopted by industry participants at any time. We may
be required or otherwise choose to adopt Do Not Track mechanisms, in which case our ability to use our existing tracking technologies and
permit their use by performance marketing networks and other third parties could be impaired. This could cause our net revenues to decline
and adversely affect our operating results.
13

U.S. and foreign governments have enacted, considered or are considering legislation or regulations that could significantly
restrict industry participants’ ability to collect, augment, analyze, use and share anonymous data, such as by regulating the level of
consumer notice and consent required before a company can employ cookies or other electronic tracking tools. A number of bills have
been proposed in the U.S. Congress in the past that contained provisions that would have regulated how companies can use cookies and
other tracking technologies to collect and use information about consumers. Some of those bills also contained provisions that would have
specifically regulated the collection and use of information, particularly geolocation information, from mobile devices. Failure to comply
may harm our business and our operating results could be adversely affected.
Changes in consumer sentiment or laws, rules or regulations regarding the use of cookies and other tracking technologies, advertising
blocking software and other privacy matters could have a material adverse effect on our ability to generate net revenues and could
adversely affect our ability to collect proprietary data on consumer shopping behavior.
Users of our Yowza!! services may become increasingly resistant to the collection, use and sharing of information online,
including information used to deliver advertising and to attribute credit to publishers such as us in performance marketing programs, and
take steps to prevent such collection, use and sharing of information. For example, consumer complaints and/or lawsuits regarding online
advertising or the use of cookies or other tracking technologies in general and our practices specifically could adversely impact our
business.
Consumers can currently opt out of the placement or use of most cookies for online advertising purposes by either deleting or
disabling cookies on their browsers, visiting websites that allow consumers to place an opt-out cookie on their browsers, which instructs
participating entities not to use certain data about consumers’ online activity for the delivery of targeted advertising, or by downloading
browser plug-ins and other tools that can be set to: identify cookies and other tracking technologies used on websites; prevent websites
from placing third-party cookies and other tracking technologies on the user’s browser; or block the delivery of online advertisements on
websites and applications.
We are dependent on performance marketing networks or in some instances, retailers, to place cookies on browsers of users that
visit our websites or to use other tracking mechanisms to allow retailer sales through our marketplace to be attributed to us, and if we are
restricted from allowing these or if they do not function in a manner that allows retailer sales through our marketplace to be attributed to us,
our ability to generate net revenues would be significantly impaired.
We may not be able to successfully manage our intellectual property and may be subject to infringement claims.
Third parties may challenge, invalidate, circumvent, infringe or misappropriate our intellectual property, or such intellectual
property may not provide us any competitive advantages, which could result in costly redesign efforts, discontinuance of certain service
offerings or other competitive harm. Our competitors could also independently develop similar technology, duplicate our services or design
around our intellectual property. We may be forced to litigate to enforce or determine the scope and enforceability of our intellectual
property rights, trade secrets and know-how, which is expensive, could cause a diversion of resources and may not prove successful. Also,
we may not be able to obtain or continue to obtain licenses and technologies from third parties on reasonable terms or at all. The loss of
intellectual property protection or the inability to obtain third party intellectual property could harm our business and ability to compete.
We may also be subject to costly litigation in the event our services and technology infringe upon or otherwise violate a third party’s
proprietary rights, or if a third party claims we have breached their copyright, trademark, license usage or other intellectual property rights.
Any claim from third parties may result in a limitation on our ability to use the intellectual property subject to these claims. Additionally,
we could be required to defend against individuals and groups who have been purchasing intellectual property assets for the sole purpose of
making claims of infringement and attempting to extract settlements from companies like ours. Claims of intellectual property infringement
also might require us to pay costly settlement or damage awards, or prevent us from marketing or selling certain of our services. If we
cannot redesign affected services or license the infringed technology on reasonable terms or substitute similar technology from another
source, our revenue and earnings could be adversely impacted. Finally, we could be subject to suits by parties claiming ownership of what
we believe to be open source software, which we use in connection with our technology and services.
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Despite our efforts to prevent it from occurring, we could be required by some of our open source software licenses to publicly disclose all
or part of the source code to such software and/or make available any derivative works of the open source code on unfavorable terms or at
no cost. Any requirement to disclose our proprietary source code could be harmful to our business, financial condition and results of
operations.
If we lose key personnel or are unable to attract, recruit, retain and develop qualified employees, our business, financial condition and
results of operations may be adversely affected.
We are dependent upon the ability and experience of a number of our key personnel who have substantial experience with our
operations. The loss of the services of one or a combination of our senior executives or key
managers, including William Clark, our chief executive officer, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations. Additionally, in order for us to successfully compete and grow, we must attract, recruit, retain and develop the
necessary personnel who can provide the needed expertise across the entire spectrum of our intellectual capital needs. Failure to retain or
attract key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our operating results are subject to seasonality, which could result in fluctuations in our quarterly net income.
We have experienced in the past, and expect to continue to experience, seasonal fluctuations in our revenues as a result of
consumer spending patterns. Historically revenues in the payments industry are strongest in fourth quarter, and weakest in first quarter. This
is due to the increase in the number and amount of electronic payment transactions related to seasonal retail events.
We may need to raise additional funds to finance our future capital needs, which may prevent us from growing our business.
We may need to raise additional funds to finance our future capital needs, including developing new services and technologies,
and to fund ongoing operating expenses. If we raise additional funds through the sale of equity securities, these transactions may dilute the
value of our outstanding common stock. We may also decide to issue securities, including debt securities that have rights, preferences and
privileges senior to our common stock. Any debt financing would increase our already high level of indebtedness and could negatively
affect our liquidity and restrict our operations. We may be unable to raise additional funds on terms favorable to us or at all. If financing is
not available or is not available on acceptable terms, we may be unable to fund our future needs. This may prevent us from increasing our
market share, capitalizing on new business opportunities or remaining competitive in our industry.
Our balance sheet includes significant amounts of goodwill and intangible assets. The impairment of a significant portion of these
assets would negatively affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our balance sheet includes goodwill and intangible assets that represent approximately 74% of our total assets at December 31,
2015. These assets consist primarily of goodwill and customer relationship intangible assets associated with our acquisitions. Additional
acquisitions may also result in our recognition of additional goodwill and intangible assets. Under current accounting standards, we are
required to amortize certain intangible assets over the useful life of the asset, while goodwill is not amortized. On at least an annual basis,
we assess whether there have been impairments in the carrying value of goodwill and certain intangible assets. If the carrying value of the
asset is determined to be impaired, then it is written down to fair value by a charge to operating earnings. An impairment of a significant
portion of goodwill or intangible assets could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.
Failure to maintain effective systems of internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures could adversely
affect the trading price of our common stock.
Effective internal control over financial reporting is necessary for us to provide accurate financial information. If we are unable to
adequately maintain effective internal control over financial reporting, we may not be able to accurately report our financial results, which
could cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information and negatively affect the trading price of our common stock.
15

Furthermore, we cannot be certain that our internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all
possible error and fraud. Because of inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance
that all control issues and instances of error or fraud, if any, in our company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the
realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake, which could
have an adverse impact on our business.
Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock
Our stock price is highly volatile.
The trading price of our common stock has been, and is likely to continue to be, highly volatile. Shares of our common stock have
traded in the range of $0.67 on January 2, 2015 to a low of $0.125 on December 23, 2015. The trading price of our stock has been and is
likely to continue to be subject to wide fluctuations in response to various factors, including the risk factors described in this section and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and other factors beyond our control. Factors affecting the trading price of our common
stock include:
·

variations in our actual or projected operating results or the operating results of similar companies;

·

announcements of technological innovations, new services or service enhancements and strategic alliances or agreements by us or
by our competitors;

·

marketing and advertising initiatives by us or our competitors;

·

the gain or loss of customer relationships;

·

threatened or actual litigation;

·

recruitment or departure of key personnel;

·

market conditions in our industry, the industries of our customers and the economy as a whole;

·

volatility in our stock price, which may lead to higher stock-based compensation expense under applicable accounting standards;

·

reaction to our press releases or other public announcements and filings with the SEC;

·

rumors and market speculation involving us or other companies in our industry;

·

raising additional capital from any equity or debt financing in the future; and

·

adoption or modification of regulations, policies, procedures or programs applicable to our business

In addition, the stock market in general and the market for companies in our particular segment, has experienced extreme price and
volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies. Broad market and
industry factors may harm the market price of our common stock regardless of our actual operating performance. Each of these factors,
among others, could adversely affect your investment in our common stock.
Our stock price could decline due to the large number of outstanding shares of our common stock eligible for future sale.
Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that these sales could occur, could cause
the market price of our common stock to decline. These sales could also make it more difficult for us to sell equity or equity-related
securities in the future at a time and price that we deem appropriate.
As of December 31, 2015 we had 64,296,519 shares of common stock outstanding. Shares beneficially owned by our affiliates and
employees are subject to volume and other restrictions under Rules 144 under the Securities Act of 1933. In addition, we will register
3,449,074 shares of common stock that we have issued and may issue under our equity plans as part of our November 17, 2015 private
placement offering. These shares are expected to become freely trading in the public market upon effective registration.
As of March 30, 2016, holders of approximately 5.1% of our common stock were entitled to rights with respect to the registration
of these shares under the Securities Act. If we register their shares of common stock, these stockholders could sell those shares in the public
market without being subject to the volume and other restrictions of Rule 144.
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Our responsibilities as a public company may cause us to incur significant costs, divert management’s attention and affect our ability to
attract and retain qualified board members and executives.
We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, including the
requirements of Section 404, as well as rules and regulations subsequently implemented by the SEC, the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board. Compliance with these public company requirements has made some activities more time-consuming. It has also
increased our legal and financial compliance costs and demand on our systems and resources. For example, we have created new board
committees and adopted new internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures. In addition, we have incurred and will continue to
incur incremental expenses associated with our SEC reporting requirements. Furthermore, if we identify any issues in complying with those
requirements (for example, if we or our auditors identify a material weakness or significant deficiency in our internal control over financial
reporting), we could incur additional costs rectifying those issues, and the existence of those issues could adversely affect us, our
reputation or investor perceptions of us. Advocacy efforts by stockholders and third parties may also prompt additional changes in
governance and reporting requirements, which could further increase our costs. It also may be more difficult for us to attract and retain
qualified persons to serve on our board of directors or as executive officers.
In addition, changing laws, regulations and standards relating to public disclosure and corporate governance are creating
uncertainty for public companies, increasing legal and financial compliance costs and making some activities more time consuming. These
laws, regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations, and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as
new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies. This could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and
higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to our disclosures and to our governance practices. We have invested, and intend to continue
to invest, resources to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards, and this investment may result in increased general and
administrative expenses and a diversion of management’s time and attention away from activities that generate revenue and help grow our
business.
If we fail to maintain proper and effective internal controls, our ability to produce accurate and timely financial statements could be
impaired, which could harm our operating results, our ability to operate our business and investors’ views of us.
Ensuring that we have adequate internal financial and accounting controls and procedures in place so that we can produce accurate
financial statements on a timely basis is a costly and time-consuming effort that needs to be re-evaluated frequently. Our internal control
over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP. We recently completed the process of documenting, reviewing and
improving our internal controls and procedures for compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which requires annual
management assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. During 2015, we had a change in our internal
control over financial reporting that occurred as a result of our implementation of a new enterprise resource planning, or ERP, system that
materially affected our internal control over financial reporting. If we are not able to maintain or document proper and effective internal
controls over financial reporting, or encounter difficulties in their implementation, it may cause us to be unable to report our financial
information on an accurate and timely basis, or may cause us to restate previously issued financial information, and thereby subject us to
adverse regulatory consequences. Furthermore, our independent registered public accounting firm would not be able to certify as to the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Any such failure could harm our operating results, harm our ability to operate
our business, and reduce the trading price of our stock.
We currently do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock and, consequently, your only opportunity to achieve a return on your
investment is if the price of our common stock appreciates.
We currently do not plan to declare dividends on shares of our common stock in the foreseeable future. Any payment of future
dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors, subject to compliance with certain covenants contained in our credit facility,
which limit our ability to pay dividends, and will depend on our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general
business conditions, and other factors that our board of directors may deem relevant. Consequently, your only opportunity to achieve a
return on your investment in our company will be if the market price of our common stock appreciates and you sell your shares at a profit.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
The registrant is a smaller reporting company and is not required to provide this information.
Item 2. Properties.
Our corporate office is located at 8700 E Vista Bonita Dr., Suite 260, Scottsdale, AZ 85255. Our corporate headquarters occupy
approximately 4,881 square feet of leased office space for which we pay a rate of $6,488 per month. The lease term is 40 months with an
expiration date of December 31, 2016.
Management does not currently have policies regarding the acquisition or sale of real estate assets primarily for possible capital
gain or primarily for income. The Company does not presently hold any investments or interests in real estate, investments in real estate
mortgages or securities of or interests in persons primarily engaged in real estate activities.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
On February 21, 2014, we filed an action against a former employee (the "Former Employee") in the United States District Court
for the District of Arizona. Prior to this suit, the Former Employee alleged that we owed him a bonus payment and certain stock options
stemming from his employment with us and that the termination of his employment violated Texas employment law. Our suit sought,
among other things, a declaratory judgment that no amounts were owed to the Former Employee. On April 14, 2014, the Former Employee
filed counterclaims for, among other things, wrongful termination, common law fraud and breach of contract. On June 20, 2014, we filed a
motion to dismiss the counterclaims. On October 2, 2014, the court entered an order that granted, in part, and denied, in part our motion.
Among other things, the court dismissed the Former Employee’s common law fraud counterclaim. Subsequent to the court’s order, the
Former Employee voluntarily dismissed his counterclaim for breach of contract, leaving the counterclaim for wrongful termination. On
December 11, 2015, a Confidential Settlement Agreement and Release of All Claims was executed by both parties.
On May 26, 2015, the Company entered into a loyalty agreement with Help Worldwide, Inc. (“HWW”) which provided that the
Company would join the HWW network and become a licensed Loyalty Program Operator (“LPO”) to enable delivery of a Yowza!! Points
program for consumers and merchants in the Yowza!! program. HWW was also to build a Yowza!! branded Rewards Mall for the
redemption of Yowza!! Points. On March 28, 2016, a settlement agreement was signed between the Company and HWW, terminating the
LPO license agreement executed in May 2015. The settlement agreement stipulates that on or about March 31, 2016, HWW will return
6,500,000 of the 7,000,000 shares of Spindle restricted common stock issued to HWW for the license fee. The LPO license agreement was
terminated amicably and not due to default or breach by any party.
There are no other material pending legal proceedings, to which the Company or any director, officer or affiliate of the registrant,
any owner of record or beneficially of more than five percent of any class of voting securities of the Company, or any associate of any such
director, officer, affiliate of the registrant, or security holder is a party or any of its subsidiaries is a party or of which any of their property
is the subject.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Market information
Our common stock, $0.001 par value per share, is quoted on the OTCQB marketplace operated by OTC Markets Group, Inc. under
the symbol “SPDL”. Our stock is thinly traded, and there is currently no active market in the trading of our stock. The high and low sales
prices of our common stock for the periods indicated follow.
Quarter Ended
March 31, 2014
June 30, 2014
September 30, 2014
December 31, 2014
March 31, 2015
June 30, 2015
September 30, 2015
December 31, 2015

High
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Low
2.95
2.20
1.45
1.00
0.74
0.39
0.49
0.27

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1.76
1.31
0.84
0.59
0.30
0.13
0.14
0.13

Dividend Policy
Historically, we have not declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. For the foreseeable future, we intend to retain
any earnings to finance the development and expansion of our business, and we do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common
stock. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will be dependent upon then
existing conditions, including our financial condition and results of operations, capital requirements, contractual restrictions, business
prospects and other factors that the Board of Directors considers relevant.
Holders
On March 30, 2016, Spindle, Inc. has 67,698,740 shares of $0.001 par value common stock issued and outstanding, held by
approximately 312 holders of record. The transfer agent for our common stock is Manhattan Transfer Registrar Company, Inc., 57
Eastwood Road Miller Place, NY 11764. (www.mtrco.com)
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans
On October 29, 2012, our stockholders approved the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) that governs equity awards to our
management, employees and directors and consultants. On November 7, 2013, our stockholders approved an amendment to the Plan which
increased the total authorized amount of common stock issuable under the Plan from 3,000,000 to 6,000,000 shares. There are 6,000,000
shares of common stock currently reserved for issuance under the Plan. As of December 31, 2015, options to purchase up to 3,590,000
shares of common stock have been granted of which 2,194,167 are vested.
Unless previously terminated, the Plan will terminate 10 years after the earlier of (i) the date the Plan was adopted by the Board of
Directors, or (ii) the date the Plan was approved by the stockholders. The types of awards permitted under the Plan include qualified
incentive stock options (ISOs), non-qualified stock options, and restricted stock. Each option will be exercisable at such times and subject
to such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may specify. Stock options generally vest over three years and expire no later than
ten years from the date of grant.
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On June 4, 2014, our Board of Directors approved the 2014 Consultants’ Compensation Plan (“Consultant’s Plan”) that governs
equity awards to compensate certain consultants and advisors of the Company, including but not limited to attorneys for services rendered
to the Company. Of the original 4,000,000 shares of common stock authorized, there are currently 2,297,042 shares currently reserved for
issuance under the Consultant’s Plan. As of December 31, 2015, 1,702,958 shares of common stock have been issued.
The following table provides information about shares of our common stock that may be issued upon the exercise of options under
all of our existing equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2015.

Plan Category
Equity compensation plans
approved by stockholders

Number of
shares of
common stock
to be issued
upon exercise
of outstanding
options

Weightedaverage
exercise
prices of
outstanding
options ($)

3,590,000

Equity compensation plans
not approved by stockholders (1)

$

0.44

2,410,000

-

2,297,042

0.44

4,707,042

3,590,000

Total

Number of
shares of
common stock
remaining
available for
future issuance
under equity
compensation
plans

$

(1) During 2015 and 2014 we issued 1,100,000 and 602,958 shares of common stock, respectively, to legal firms pursuant to the
Company’s 2014 Consultants’ Compensation Plan.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities and Use of Proceeds
During the three months ended December 31, 2015, the Company authorized the issuance of:
·
·
·
·
·
·

635,000 shares of common stock valued at $180,749 to two members of our Board of Directors in relation to
consulting agreements. As of December 31, 2015, these shares were unissued;
300,000 shares of its common stock valued at $75,000 for the Catalyst Acquisition;
240,000 shares of its common stock valued at $35,040 to several employees as a year-end bonus;
70,000 shares of its common stock valued at $15,000 to consultants and advisors for services. At December 31,
2015, 10,000 of these shares were unissued;
410,186 shares of common stock valued at $55,375 for cash proceeds from third-party investors;
10,941,217 shares of common stock valued at $1,477,064 to members of our Board of Directors as payment of
accrued Board of Director fees and as repayments for various advances they had made to the Company.

The Company relied on Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 for issuing the above securities, inasmuch as the offers and
sales were made solely to accredited investors and there was no form of general solicitation or general advertising relating to the offer.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data.
The registrant is a smaller reporting company and is not required to provide this information.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
The following discussion and analysis of our results of operations and financial condition for the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014 should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the notes to those financial statements that are included in this
report. When used in this document, the words “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “may,” “plans,” “project,” and similar expressions
are intended to be among the statements that identify forward-looking statements. Spindle’s results may differ significantly from the
results discussed in the forward-looking statements. Such statements involve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those
relating to costs, delays and difficulties related to the Company’s dependence on its ability to attract and retain skilled managers and other
personnel; the uncertainty of the Company’s ability to manage and continue its growth and implement its business strategy; its
vulnerability to general economic conditions; the accuracy of our accounting procedures and other estimates; the Company’s future
financial and operating results, cash needs and demand for services; and the Company’s ability to maintain its permits and licenses.
Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual outcomes may
vary materially from those projected.
Overview
We were originally incorporated in the State of Nevada on January 8, 2007 as “Coyote Hills Golf, Inc.” We were previously an
online retailer of golf-related apparel, equipment and supplies, however, we generated minimal revenues from that line of business. With
our acquisition of Spindle Mobile, Inc. in December 2011, we became a commerce-centric company with three primary customers: 1)
individual consumers (buyers); 2) individual businesses (merchants or sellers); 3) third party resellers, such as advertising and content
media companies, and merchant services providers and other resellers. We generate revenue under the Spindle product line through our
patented cloud-based payment processes. We believe that our secure payments process as well as coupons, offers and loyalty programs and
open consumer feedback about the products consumers purchase from the merchants we serve creates trust between consumers and
merchants. We provide the platform for the secure movement of funds between these parties as well as provide to brands, merchants, and
institutions the conversion tools necessary to deliver a seamless frictionless finance system.
We have been growing our business through acquisitions and we expect to continue to expand in this manner.
On December 31, 2012 (the “Parallel Acquisition Closing Date”), pursuant to that certain Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Parallel
Agreement”) by and between us and Parallel Solutions Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Parallel”), we acquired substantially all of the assets
used in connection with Parallel’s business of facilitating electronic payment processing services to merchants (the “Parallel Assets”),
assumed certain specified liabilities and hired seven Parallel employees in exchange for 538,570 unregistered shares of our common stock,
of which 53,857 shares (the “Indemnification Escrow”) and 100,000 shares (the “Deferred Consent Escrow”) were deposited in escrow with
our transfer agent. The Indemnification Escrow was held for a period of one year from the Parallel Acquisition Closing Date and was
available to compensate us, pursuant to the indemnification obligations of Parallel under the Parallel Agreement, and for any necessary
accounts receivable adjustment after the Parallel Acquisition Closing Date. The Indemnification Escrow has been terminated and the
common stock has been released. The terms of the Parallel Agreement provided that the Deferred Consent Escrow would be held for a
period of up to five years following the Parallel Acquisition Closing Date and would be released to Parallel or its legally permitted
assign(s) incrementally as and when certain specified contract assignments or residual revenue streams were properly assigned to us or the
residual revenue streams in respect of such specified contracts were bought out by the applicable third party. As of the date of this report,
these conditions have been satisfied and the Deferred Consent Escrow has been terminated and the common stock has been released.
On March 20, 2013 (the “MeNetwork Closing Date”), we assumed certain liabilities and acquired substantially all the assets of
MeNetwork, Inc. (“MeNetwork”) used in connection with its business of developing, marketing and licensing a mobile marketing platform
for use by merchants and consumers (the “MeNetwork Assets”), pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement, dated March 1, 2013 (the
“MeNetwork Agreement”).
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As consideration for the assumption of the liabilities and the acquisition of the MeNetwork Assets, we issued an aggregate of 2,750,000
shares of common stock to the stockholders of MeNetwork, of which 350,000 shares were held in escrow for a period of one year from the
MeNetwork Closing Date for the purposes of satisfying any indemnification claims. The escrow has been terminated and the shares of
common stock have been released. In addition, upon the earlier of 180 days following the MeNetwork Closing Date or a change in control
of Spindle, we agreed to issue an additional 750,000 shares of common stock to Ashton Craig Page; the director and Chief Operating
Officer of MeNetwork and a former director of Spindle. On October 7, 2013 the 750,000 shares were issued to Mr. Page pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the MeNetwork Agreement. On December 12, 2014, the Company, and Ashton Craig Page, in his capacity as the
representative of MeNetwork and the MeNetwork Stockholders (the “Representative”), entered into an Amendment and Waiver to Asset
Purchase Agreement (the "Amendment), pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and the Representative agreed to accept on behalf
of MeNetwork and the MeNetwork Stockholders an acceleration of the issuance of up to an aggregate of 1,000,000 Earnout Shares on or
before December 31, 2014 in full satisfaction of all obligations of the Company to issue the Earnout Shares pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement during the Earnout Period. These shares were issued on December 23, 2014.
On January 3, 2014 (the “Yowza Closing Date”), the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Yowza International Inc.
(renamed Y Dissolution, Inc.) (“Yowza!!) used in connection with its business of providing retail coupons through a mobile application (the
“Yowza Assets”), and assumed certain liabilities of Yowza!! in an amount equal to $15,000 for consideration equal to (1) $500,000 in cash
paid to Yowza!! and certain creditors and holders of outstanding promissory notes issued by Yowza!! and (2) an aggregate of 1,642,000
unregistered shares of our common stock (the “Aggregate Share Consideration”), issuable to the holders of Yowza!!’s outstanding capital
stock. Ten percent of the Aggregate Share Consideration was issued to certain executive management members and advisors of Yowza!! in
accordance with consulting or employment agreements and subject to certain vesting provisions. In addition, an aggregate of 197,052
shares of common stock (the “Indemnification Escrow”), representing approximately 12% of the Aggregate Share Consideration, was
deposited in escrow for a period of one year from the Yowza Closing Date for the purpose of satisfying Yowza!!’s indemnification
obligations under the Asset Purchase Agreement, and for any necessary accounts receivable adjustment after the Yowza Closing Date. The
Yowza!! Indemnification Escrow was released on January 12, 2015 and the escrow has been terminated.
On October 23, 2015 (the “Closing Date”) the Company completed the acquisition of specific assets of Catalyst Business
Development, Inc. (“Catalyst”) pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement, dated September 14, 2015, by and between the Company and
Catalyst in exchange for 300,000 unregistered shares of the Company’s common stock issued to the holders of Catalyst stock. The
consideration amounted to $75,000 using a fair value of $0.25 per share at the Closing Date. The assets acquired include a white-labeled
license of the Merchant Partners solution and various assets related to branding, marketing and sales. Spindle will continue to operate the
gateway under the Catalyst brand.
Because our operating expenses exceed our revenues, we have relied primarily on sales of our securities and loans from related
parties to fund our operations. We will continue to require substantial funds to support our operations and carry out our business plan. Our
working capital requirements and the cash flow provided by future operating activities, if any, will vary greatly from quarter to quarter,
depending on the volume of business during the period and payment terms with our channel partners. We may not be successful in raising
additional funds as needed or if, successful we may not be able to raise funds on terms that are favorable to us. We cannot guarantee that
we will ever be profitable. As a result, our independent registered accounting firm has expressed doubt about our ability to continue as a
going concern.
Our potential revenue streams are relatively new and have only recently begun to contribute materially to our operations. As a
result, we are unable to accurately forecast future revenue. Our management is hopeful that as our base of operations continues to grow, we
will see a corresponding increase in licensing and transactional revenue.
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Results of Operations
Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2015 to the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Revenues and Cost of Sales
Revenues from ongoing operations are derived from our patented conversion and networked payment processes under the Spindle
product line and licensing of our intellectual property. During the year ended December 31, 2015, we generated a total of $521,037 in
revenues and incurred $211,941 in cost of sales, which produced a gross profit of $309,096. In the year ended December 31, 2014, we
generated $868,462, in gross revenues and incurred $311,364 in cost of sales, which produced a gross profit of $557,908.
The year-over-year decrease in revenues and gross profit is due to the company’s inability to generate revenues as a Payment
Facilitator in our market. The mid-year 2015 sale of the PSI residual asset also contributed to the decline in revenue. The PSI residual asset
revenue was $170,378 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2015 compared to $783,644 for the twelve months ended December 31,
2014
Management also reviewed the profitability of our sub-merchant and reseller relationships, which resulted in the strategic
cancellation of contracts that did not generate positive cash flow to the Company. Management believes that the full technology platform
has now reached the stage where the Company can begin to aggressively sell its solutions to the market. We expect to see increase in
licensing and transactional revenue in future periods by bringing the full platform to market, and in a methodical and strategic manner.
As stated previously, we only recently changed our business direction by exiting the micro-merchant market in favor of traditional
brick-and-mortar and ecommerce merchants. Under our MSP sponsorship, our potential revenue streams are relatively new and have only
recently begun to contribute materially to our operations. As a result, we are unable to accurately forecast future revenue.
EBITDA
We define Adjusted EBITDA as operating income before depreciation, amortization of intangible assets, stock-based
compensation, and special charges. We use Adjusted EBITDA to evaluate the underlying performance of our business, and a summary of
Adjusted EBITDA, reconciling U.S. GAAP amounts to Adjusted EBITDA amounts (i.e., items included within Adjusted EBITDA as
defined directly above) for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 follows:
For the Year Ended December 31,
GAAP
Revenue
Sales income
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Promotional and marketing
Consulting
Salaries and wages
(including equity compensation)
Directors fees
Professional fees
General and administrative
Impairment losses
Total operating expenses
Net Operating Loss / Adjusted EBITDA

$

2015
Adjustments

521,037
211,941

Adjusted EBITDA
$

309,096

GAAP

2014
Adjustments

GAAP Change
$
%

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA
Change
$
%

521,037
211,941

$ 868,462
311,364

$ 868,462
311,364

$ (347,425) -40%
(99,425) -32%

$ (347,425) -40%
(99,423) -32%

309,096

557,098

557,098

(248,001) -45%

(248,001) -45%

592,137
126,215
2,377,212

(2,216,570)

126,215
160,642

(45,352) -8%
(78,730) -61%
(1,940,683) -82%

0%
(76,730) -61%
(41,833) -26%

546,785
49,475
436,529

(546,785)
(317,720)

49,475
118,809

1,601,751
167,900
374,021
261,984

(611,830)
(167,900)
(250,000)
-

989,921
124,021
261,984

3,050,064
174,839
1,100,240
566,618

(1,505,758
(174,839)
(816,524)
(8,000)

1,544,306
283,716
558,618

924,933

(924,933)

-

739,801

(739,801)

-

185,133 25%

4,399,388

(2,819,168)

1,580,220

8,727,126

(4,206,990)

4,520,226

(4,327,737) -50%

(2,940,005) -65%

$2,819,168

$(1,271,126)

$(8,170,028)

$ 4,206,900

$(3,963,128)

$4,079,736 -50%

$ 2,692,005 -42%

$(4,090,294)
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(592,137)

(1,448,313)
(6,939)
(726,219)
(304,634)

-47%
-4%
-66%
-54%

(554,385) -36%
0%
(159,695) -56%
(296,964) -53%
-

0%

We have presented Adjusted EBITDA above because we believe it conveys useful information to investors regarding our
operating results. We believe it provides an additional way for investors to view our operations, when considered with both our U.S. GAAP
results and the reconciliation to net income (loss). By including this information, we can provide investors with a more complete
understanding of our business. Specifically, we present Adjusted EBITDA as supplemental disclosure because of the following:
·
·
·

We believe Adjusted EBITDA is a useful tool for investors to assess the operating performance of our business without the effect of
interest, income taxes, and other non-operating expenses as well as depreciation and amortization which are non-cash expenses;
We believe that it is useful to provide to investors with a standard operating metric used by management to evaluate our operating
performance; and
We believe that the use of Adjusted EBITDA is helpful to compare our results to other companies.

Even though we believe Adjusted EBITDA is useful for investors, it does have limitations as an analytical tool. Thus, we strongly
urge investors not to consider this metric in isolation or as a substitute for net income (loss) and the other statement of operations data
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Some of these limitations include the fact that:
·
·
·
·
·
·

Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our cash expenditures or future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual
commitments;
Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs;
Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the significant interest expense, or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or
principal payments, on our debt;
Although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized will often have to be
replaced in the future, and Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect any cash requirements for such replacements;
Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect income or other taxes or the cash requirements to make any tax payments; and
Other companies in our industry may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently than we do, thereby potentially limiting its usefulness
as a comparative measure.

Because of these limitations, Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered a measure of discretionary cash available to us to invest
in the growth of our business or as a measure of performance in compliance with U.S. GAAP. We compensate for these limitations by
relying primarily on our U.S. GAAP results and providing Adjusted EBITDA only as supplemental information.
Operating Expenses
In the course of our operations, we incur operating expenses composed largely of general and administrative costs and professional
fees. General and administrative expenses are essentially the cost of doing business, and encompass, without limitation, the following:
research and development; licenses; taxes; general office expenses, such as postage, supplies and printing; utilities; bank charges; website
costs; and other miscellaneous expenditures not otherwise classified. Accounting fees include: auditing by our independent registered
public accountants, tax preparation fees for filing Federal and State income tax returns and other accounting-specific consulting services.
Professional fees include: transfer agent fees for printing stock certificates; consulting costs for marketing and advertising; general business
development; and costs related to the preparation and submission of reports and information statements with the SEC.
During the year ended December 31, 2015, operating expenses totaled $4,399,388. Comparatively, in the year ended December
31, 2014, we incurred $8,727,126 in operating expenses. Depreciation and amortization was $546,785 and $592,137 for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. General and administrative expenses were $261,984 in 2015 compared to $566,618 in 2014.
Consulting expenses decreased to $436,529 in 2015 from $2,377,212 in 2014, which included retainers and one-time common stock
expenses for rendered services.
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Salaries, wages, and benefits decreased to $1,601,751 in 2015 from $3,050,064 for the year ended December 31, 2014. The higher amount
in 2014 was primarily due to increased client services, management, and internal development resources, which included a non-cash stock
compensation expense of $1,505,758. Director fees increased slightly to $203,900 in 2015 from $174,839 in 2014. Promotional and
marketing expenses decreased to $49,485 in 2015 from $126,215 in 2014 and professional fees decreased slightly to $374,021 in 2015 from
$1,100,240 in 2014.
Other Expense
Net gain on the sale of assets in 2015 primarily relates to the PSI residual asset sale. To generate non-dilutive cash to increase
operations, the Company chose to sell the PSI assets acquired in December of 2012. The month-to-month cash flow generated by the
portfolio was not sufficient to cover expenses thus the sale of the portfolio and the resulting cash infusion was instrumental to sustaining
operations. The acquisition was accretive and the portfolio was sold at a profit. The gain on the PSI sale of $373,124 is offset by the
$103,307 write-off of inventory assets as described more fully in Note 1.
The Company recognized interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 of $1,612 compared to $1,994 for the year
ended December 31, 2014.
The Company is required to annually test the goodwill balance for impairment by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to
the carrying amount of the reporting unit. The Company estimated the fair value of the goodwill associated with the MeNetwork
acquisition and determined that the carrying value of the reported goodwill exceed the fair value. As a result, the Company recognized a
loss on the impairment of goodwill of $669,993 for each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.
The Company is required to review its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the historical cost carrying value may no longer be appropriate. During the year ended December 31, 2015, management reviewed the
carrying amount of the assets and determined as a result of changes in the focus of the Company’s current direction, certain costs that had
been capitalized to software development would not be used and no longer had value to the Company. As a result of this analysis,
$542,771 in costs were recorded as an impairment loss, net of $287,831 of amortization related to the assets. During the year ended
December 31, 2014, the Company estimated the carrying value of the license agreement associated with Spindle Mobile exceeded its
estimated fair value. As a result, the Company recognized an impairment loss for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 of $69,808.
Net Losses
Our net loss for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $3,859,698 compared to a net loss of $8,922,022 for the year ended
December 31, 2014.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash used in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2015 was $467,838 compared to $1,691,787 for the year
ended December 31, 2014.
Cash used in investing activities was $270,257 during the year ended December 31, 2014. Comparatively, cash used in investing
activities was $1,043,729 in the twelve months ended December 31, 2014. This use of cash in 2014 was specifically related to the purchase
of capitalized software and domain names.
During the year ended December 31, 2015, net cash provided by financing activities totaled $169,000, which consisted of
$175,000 received from investors purchasing shares of our common stock and $20,000 from the release of restricted cash, offset by $6,000
in payments on our notes receivable. During the year ended December 31, 2014, net cash provided by financing activities totaled
$2,205,000 of which $1,945,000 was received from investors purchasing shares of our common stock, $215,000 was received from
advances to the Company, and $100,000 in proceeds from notes payable to related parties. This was partially offset by a $55,000 repayment
against notes payable to related parties.
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As of December 31, 2015, we had $161,226 of cash on hand, none of which is restricted. Our management believes this amount is
not sufficient to maintain our operations for at least the next 12 months. We are actively pursuing opportunities to raise additional capital
through sales of our equity and/or debt securities for cash. We cannot assure you that any financing can be obtained or, if obtained, that it
will be on reasonable terms. As such, our principal accountants have expressed doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern
because we have limited operations and have not fully commenced planned principal operations.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations section discusses our financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U. S. GAAP. The preparation of the financial statements requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments, including
those related to revenue recognition, recoverability of intangible assets, and contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates and
judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The most significant accounting
estimates inherent in the preparation of our financial statements include estimates as to the appropriate carrying value of certain assets and
liabilities, which are not readily apparent from other sources, primarily the valuation of intangible assets and equity-based instruments. The
methods, estimates and judgments we use in applying these most critical accounting policies have a significant impact on the results we
report in our financial statements.
Critical Accounting Policies
Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon our financial statements,
which have been prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Certain accounting policies and estimates are particularly important to the
understanding of our financial position and results of operations and require the application of significant judgment by our management or
can be materially affected by changes from period to period in economic factors or conditions that are outside of our control. As a result,
they are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. In applying these policies, our management uses their judgment to determine the
appropriate assumptions to be used in the determination of certain estimates. Those estimates are based on our historical operations, our
future business plans and projected financial results, the terms of existing contracts, our observance of trends in the industry, information
provided by our customers and information available from other outside sources, as appropriate. Please see Note 1 to our financial
statements for a more complete description of our significant accounting policies.
Intangible assets
Management regularly reviews property, equipment, intangibles and other long-lived assets for possible impairment. This review
occurs annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable.
If there is indication of impairment, management prepares an estimate of future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and
its eventual disposition. If these cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized to write down
the asset to its estimated fair value. Management believes that the accounting estimate related to impairment of its property and equipment,
is a “critical accounting estimate” because: (1) it is highly susceptible to change from period to period because it requires management to
estimate fair value, which is based on assumptions about cash flows and discount rates; and (2) the impact that recognizing an impairment
would have on the assets reported on our balance sheet, as well as net income, could be material. Management’s assumptions about cash
flows and discount rates require significant judgment because actual revenues and expenses have fluctuated in the past and are expected to
continue to do so.
The Company reviews the carrying value of intangible assets for impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In
cases where undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to the amount
by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value. The factors considered by management in performing this assessment include current
operating results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the property is used, and the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and
other economic factors.
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Software development costs
The Company accounts for the cost of computer software developed or obtained for use of its application service by capitalizing
qualifying costs, which are incurred during the application development stage and amortizing them over the software’s estimated useful
life. Costs incurred in the preliminary and post-implementation stages of the Company’s products are expensed as incurred. The amounts
capitalized include external direct costs of services used in developing software and for payroll and payroll-related costs of employees
directly associated with the development activities. The Company amortizes capitalized software over the expected period of benefit, which
is five years, beginning when the software is ready for its intended use.
Revenue recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) there is persuasive evidence of an
arrangement; (2) the service has been provided to the customer; (3) the amount of fees to be paid by the customer is fixed or determinable;
and (4) the collection of our fees is probable.
Sales related to long-term contracts for services (such as engineering, product development and testing) extending over several
years are accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method of accounting. Sales under these contracts are recorded based on the
ratio of actual costs incurred to total estimated costs expected to be incurred related to the contract under the cost-to-cost method utilizing
budgeted milestones or tasks as designated per each contract. Anticipated losses on contracts are recognized in full in the period in which
losses become probable and estimable.
For all other sales of products or services the Company recognizes revenues based on the terms of the customer agreement. The
customer agreement takes the form of either a contract or a customer purchase order and each provides information with respect to the
product or service being sold and the sales price. If the customer agreement does not have specific delivery or customer acceptance terms,
revenue is recognized at the time of shipment of the product to the customer.
Stock-Based Compensation
The Company records stock based compensation in accordance with the guidance in Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”)
Topic 718 which requires the Company to recognize expense related to the fair value of its employee stock option awards. This eliminates
accounting for share-based compensation transactions using the intrinsic value and requires instead that such transactions be accounted for
using a fair-value-based method. The Company recognizes the cost of all share-based awards on a graded vesting basis over the vesting
period of the award.
The Company accounts for stock-based payments to non-employees in accordance with ASC 505-50, “Equity-Based Payments to
Non-Employees.” (“ASC 505-50”) Stock-based payments to non-employees include grants of stock, grants of stock options and issuances
of warrants that are recognized in the statement of operations based on the value of the vested portion of the award over the requisite
service period as measured at its then-current fair value as of each financial reporting date. The Company calculates the fair value of option
grants and warrant issuances utilizing the Black-Schools pricing model. The amount of stock-based compensation recognized during a
period is based on the value of the portion of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest. ASC 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated
at the time stock options are granted and warrants are issued to employees and non-employees, and revised, if necessary, in subsequent
periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The term “forfeitures” is distinct from “cancellations” or “expirations” and
represents only the unvested portion of the surrendered stock option or warrant.
Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ financial statements to conform to the current year presentation.
These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported results of operations or retained earnings.
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Recent Accounting Standards
See Note 1 “Organization of the Company and Significant Accounting Policies” to our financial statements included in this report
for discussion of recently issued accounting standards.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2015, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
The registrant is a smaller reporting company and is not required to provide this information.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
Our financial statements and supplementary data are included on pages F-1 to F-6 of this report.
Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in company reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls
and procedures include without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in company
reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive
Officer (principal executive officer) and our Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and accounting officer), as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
As required by Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act, we conducted an evaluation, with the participation of our Chief
Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer), of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2015. Due to the Company’s limited resources and number of employees, there is
limited segregation of duties which leads to the irregular review of various reconciliation and control procedures. Based on that evaluation,
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of December 31, 2015, our disclosure controls and procedures
were ineffective as a result of limited resources and personnel resulting in a lack of segregation of duties.
Internal Controls
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting (as defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act). Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and effected by our board of directors, management and other
personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of our financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control over financial reporting
includes policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of our assets; provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
our financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made
only in accordance with the authorization of our board of directors and management; and provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial
statements.
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Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”).
Based on this evaluation under the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was ineffective as of December 31, 2015. Management determined that the material weaknesses
that resulted in controls being ineffective are primarily due to lack of resources and number of employees. Material weaknesses exist in the
segregation of duties required for effective controls and various control procedures not regularly performed due to the lack of staff and
resources.
This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to an exemption
for non-accelerated filers set forth in Section 989G of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fourth quarter of 2015 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
The following table sets for the names and ages of our directors and executive officers:

Name

Age

Position

William Clark

58

President, Chief Executive Officer
And Chairperson of the Board of Directors

John Devlin

71

Interim Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer,
Chairman of the Audit Committee and Director

Glenn Bancroft

59

Secretary, Chairman of the Compensation
Committee and Director

Jack Scott

62

Chairman of Nominating Committee and Director

Tony VanBrackle

57

Director

Francis Knuettel II

49

Director

Terms of Office
Our directors are elected by the stockholders and serve until their successors are elected and qualified, or until he or she resigns or
is removed in accordance with our bylaws and the provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes.
Our officers are appointed by our Board of Directors and serve at the pleasure of the Board or until the officer’s resignation.
Background of Executive Officers, Directors, Promoters and Control Persons
William Clark has served as our President since January 18, 2012, as our Chief Executive Officer since April 17, 2013 and as a
director since February 27, 2014. From January 18, 2012 until April 15, 2014, he also served as our Principal Financial Officer. He joined
Spindle in January 2011, and through his leadership, we have developed a unique mobile commerce solution that combines multiple aspects
of mobile payments and mobile marketing technologies. Mr. Clark achieved this by combining our custom built payment platform with
capabilities acquired through targeted acquisitions of four leading technology companies. Before joining Spindle, from April 2005 to
January 2011, Mr. Clark served as executive vice president and general manager for Apriva’s Point of Sale division, where he led Apriva’s
expansion to become North America’s leading provider of wireless payment technology. Prior to Apriva, Mr. Clark served as general
manager of wireless products for First Data Merchant Services. During his 17-year tenure with First Data, he pioneered the delivery and
sales of emerging technologies over a wide range of markets, including Internet banking, electronic bill presentment, web-based merchant
services, chip cards, and the release of Internet and wireless acquiring products. Mr. Clark holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Electronics and Management from Southern Illinois University and an MBA from University of Nebraska Omaha. Mr. Clark’s extensive
experience in wireless payment technology led us to believe that he should serve as a director.
John Devlin has served as a director and Chairman of the audit committee since October 31, 2011. From October 31, 2011 until
June 19, 2014, he also served as our Secretary and Treasurer, and as our Chief Financial Officer since August 31, 2015. From February
2009 to February 2015, Mr. Devlin served as a Director and Audit Committee Chairman of Hipcricket, Inc. (formerly Augme Technologies,
Inc.), a publicly traded company specializing in mobile technology.
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Mr. Devlin has been in the investment and asset management business for over 33 years. From October 2008 to October 2011, he served as
the Managing Director/Financial Consultant of the American Irish Historical Society (“AIHC”), responsible for managing day-to-day
operations, administration and financial oversight of the AIHC and its Fifth Avenue Brownstone headquarters. From October 2003 to
October 2008, Mr. Devlin was the Vice Chairman of McKim & Company LLC, a venture capital source firm for start-up companies in the
$1 million to $20 million bracket, where he was responsible for providing strategic planning and direction. From 1986 to 2003, he was
with J.P. Morgan Investment Management, where he started as a Fixed Income Trader, was later selected for a Special Overseas
Assignment and later became a Senior Relationship Manager. Mr. Devlin was also the Committee Chairman for client portfolio guidelines,
compliance and performance review for J.P. Morgan accounts with an asset size over $200 billion. Before retiring from J.P. Morgan
Investment Management, he held various positions with U.S. Steel Corporation and the Carnegie Pension Fund between 1974 to 1986,
where he was involved in directing investment activity of the U.S. Steel & Carnegie Pension Funds with an asset size of over $7 billion.
Mr. Devlin received an MBA from Pace University and completed his undergraduate degree in Finance at Georgetown University. Mr.
Devlin’s education and his experience in the finance industry led us to believe that he should serve as a director.
Glenn Bancroft has served as a director since December 6, 2011. Mr. Bancroft is the Chief Executive Officer of Bancroft &
Associates, a real estate investment and management firm which Mr. Bancroft founded in 1981. Under Mr. Bancroft’s management,
Bancroft & Associates has represented over $250 million in sales, and has directed a portfolio of more than $500 million in property
management. Mr. Bancroft is an entrepreneur and investment professional with more than thirty years of experience in domestic and
international real estate. Mr. Bancroft was the former Chief Financial Officer of NetMoney Inc., which was acquired by Spindle Mobile,
Inc., and actively provides management consulting to corporations, and successfully runs a large real estate investment firm. His
contribution as a director of Spindle Mobile, Inc. led to his appointment to Spindle, Inc.’s board of directors. Mr. Bancroft’s skills and
experience in his consulting practice with organizational development, and personnel profiling and placement led us to conclude that he
should serve as a director.
Dr. Jack Scott has served as a director since September 1, 2014. Dr. Scott has a diverse technical and business background
spanning more than 35 years that includes applied research, consulting, sales and sales management, executive positions, and ownership of
a group of eight recycling and manufacturing businesses, including two joint ventures, through a holding company, Canadus Technologies,
LLC. Dr. Scott is a founding member of Canadus Technologies, LLC since February 2000. Prior to his experience with Canadus
Technologies, LLC, from February 1997 to January 2000, Dr. Scott was President and CEO of Encycle, Inc., a $300 million recycling
company with more than 1,000 employees. Prior to Encycle, Inc., Dr. Scott held various senior management positions with several other
companies in the recycling and manufacturing industries. Dr. Scott’s extensive business experience led us to conclude that he should serve
as a director.
Tony VanBrackle has served as a director since November 14, 2014. Mr. VanBrackle’s career in the payments sector extends
back well over three decades. Since 2011, Mr. VanBrackle has been the managing member of Payment Ventures, LLC, an investment firm
that specializes in the mobile commerce and payment sectors. In 2000, Mr. VanBrackle founded Solveras Payment Solutions and served as
its Chief Executive Officer until its sale in 2011. Mr. VanBrackle serves as a board member for Phoenix Managed Networks, a provider of
secure data transaction solutions, since 2011, and is a member of the advisory board for MicroVentures, an online equity crowdfunding
platform for startups and investors, since 2012. He also serves on the boards of several other businesses, including Convexcel Group, and
Cardflight, since 2012 and 2011, respectively. Previously, Mr. VanBrackle served as chairman of the board for several industry-leading
businesses, including Electronic Check Alliance Processing, and Smart Pay Solutions. Mr. VanBrackle’s extensive knowledge of the
electronic payments industry led us to conclude that he should serve as a director.
Francis Knuettel II has served as a director since October 21, 2015. Mr. Knuettel has a diverse business background spanning
close to 20 years as Chief Financial Officer at various public and private technology firms, including work in the electronic payments field.
Mr. Knuettel is currently the CFO of NASDAQ listed Marathon Patent Group, Inc. Prior to Marathon, Mr. Knuettel served as Managing
Director and CFO of Greyhound IP, which invests capital to cover costs of patent litigation enforcement, and was previously CFO of IP
Commerce, a Software as a Service (SaaS) platform connecting electronic payment service providers and payment-enabled software
applications. Mr. Knuettel also serves on the board of directors for Colorado Outward Bound School as the Chairman of its Audit
Committee. He received an MBA in Finance and Entrepreneurial Management from the Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania
and holds a BA in Economics from Tufts University.
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Family Relationships
There are no family relationships among our directors and executive officers.
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
To the best of our knowledge, none of our directors or executive officers has, during the past ten years, been involved in any legal
proceedings described in subparagraph (f) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K.
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
None of our directors or executive officers serves as a member of the board of directors or compensation committee of any other
entity that has one or more of its executive officers serving as a member of our board of directors.
Material Changes to Procedures by which Stockholders May Recommend Nominees to the Board of Directors
We do not have a policy relating to the procedures by which our stockholders may recommend nominees to our board of directors
and that has not changed.
Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expert
Our board of directors has an Audit Committee which has three members, John Devlin, William Clark and Francis Knuettel II.
The main functions of the Audit Committee are to oversee our accounting and financial reporting processes, our internal systems of
control, independent auditor relationships and the audits of our financial statements. The Board of Directors has determined Mr. Devlin to
be an audit committee financial expert.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s officers and directors, and persons who beneficially own more than ten
percent of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities, to file reports of securities ownership and changes in such ownership of our
securities with the SEC. Officers, directors, and greater than ten percent shareholders are also required by SEC rules to furnish the
Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms that they file.
Based solely upon a review of copies of such forms filed on Forms 3, 4, and 5, and amendments thereto furnished to us, we
believe that as of December 31, 2015, our executive officers, directors and greater than 10 percent beneficial owners have complied on a
timely basis with all Section 16(a) filing requirements, with the exception of our officers, directors and greater than 10 percent beneficial
owners listed in the table below:

Name

Number
of
Late
Reports Number of Transactions Not Reported on a Timely Basis

Tony
1
VanBrackle

1 transaction was not reported on a timely basis in connection with the acquisition of shares of common stock on
May 21, 2015.

Jack Scott 3

3 transactions were not reported on a timely basis in connection with the acquisitions of shares of common stock on
January 16, 2015, March 3, 2015 and November 12, 2015.

In addition, each member of our Board of Directors had one transaction that was not reported on a timely basis in connection with the
issuance of options to purchase shares of common stock on December 23, 2015.
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Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for our employees, officers, directors, and advisors. This Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) presents legal and ethical standards of conduct for directors, officers and employees of Spindle,
Inc. This Code is intended to deter wrongdoing and to promote the conduct of all Company business in accordance with high standards of
integrity and in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. The Code is filed as Exhibit 14.1 to this annual report on Form 10-K.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
The following summary compensation table indicates all compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to our principal executive
officer and each of the other two highest paid executive officers, if any, whose total compensation exceeded $100,000 during the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (the “named executive officers”).
Summary Compensation Table

Name and Principal Position

Year

Salary
($)

Bonus
($)

Stock
Awards
($)(1)

William Clark
President and Chief
Executive Officer

2015
2014

200,0002)
197,000(3)

-

John Devlin*
Interim Chief Financial Officer

2015
2014

-

-

60,750(4)
-

Lynn Kitzmann*
Former Chief Financial Officer

2015
2014

72,747
57,000

Christopher Meinerz*
Former Chief Financial Officer
and Former Chief Compliance Officer

2015
2014

25,000(5)
145,000(6)

NonEquity
Incentive
Plan
Compens
ation
($)

Option
Awards
($)(1)

63,700
583,700(3) 262,974

Nonqualified
Deferred
Compens
ation
Earnings
($)

All
Other
Compens
ation
($)

Total
($)

-

-

-

263,700
1,043,674

-

-

-

-

60,750
-

-

13,000 (5)
- 108,651

-

-

-

85,747
165,651

-

4,750 (6)
19,000 (7) 168,113

-

-

-

30,000
332,113

* Mr. Meinerz resigned from his position as Chief Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer effective February 16, 2015 and Ms.
Kitzmann was appointed as Chief Financial Officer effective February 16, 2015. Ms Kitzmann resigned her position as Chief Financial
Officer effective August 31, 2015 and Mr. Devlin was appointed interim Chief Financial Officer effective August 31, 2015.
(1)

The value of the stock and stock option compensation was computed using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The
amount of stock-based compensation recognized during a period is based on the value of the portion of the awards that are
ultimately expected to vest. ASC 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time stock options are granted and warrants are
issued to employees and non-employees, and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those
estimates. The term “forfeitures” is distinct from “cancellations” or “expirations” and represents only the unvested portion of
the surrendered stock option or warrant. The Company estimates forfeiture rates for all unvested awards when calculating the
expense for the period. In estimating the forfeiture rate, the Company monitors both stock option and warrant exercises as well
as employee termination patterns. The resulting stock- based compensation expense for both employee and non-employee
awards is generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award.
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(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

In lieu of $59,373 of compensation, Mr. Clark was issued 439,800 shares of common stock which had an aggregate grant date
fair value of $59,325.
In lieu of $97,000 of compensation, Mr. Clark was issued 194,000 shares of common stock which had an aggregate grant date
fair value of $342,300. The incremental grant date fair value of stock in excess of compensation of $245,300 is reflected in the
Stock awards column.
In relation to his role as Interim Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Devlin was awarded 30,000 shares of common stock per month.
135,000 shares were accrued at a value of $60,750 at December 31, 2015. The shares were issued to Mr. Devlin in March of
2016.
Ms. Kitzmann was issued 100,000 shares of common stock which had an aggregate grant date fair value of $13,000 in relation
to her acceptance of the CFO position with the Company.
In lieu of $2,500 of compensation, Mr. Meinerz was issued 5,000 shares of common stock which had an aggregate grant date
fair value of $7,250. The incremental grant date fair value of stock in excess of compensation of $5,000 is reflected in Stock
Awards column.
In lieu of $10,000 of compensation, Mr. Meinerz was issued 20,000 shares of common stock which had an aggregate grant date
fair value of $29,000. The incremental grant date fair value of stock in excess of compensation of $19,000 is reflected in Stock
Awards column.

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2015
The following table presents certain information concerning outstanding equity awards for our named executive officers at
December 31, 2015. No options were exercised by our named executive officers during the last three fiscal years.

Name

Option Awards
Number of
Number of
securities
securities
underlying
underlying
unexercised
unexercised
options (#)
options (#)
Exercisable
Unexercisable

Option
exercise price ($)

Option
expiration date

500,000(1)
50,000(2)
-

100,000(2)
500,000(3)
150,000(4)

0.50
0.50
0.13

Oct. 28, 2022
Jan. 29, 2024
Dec. 23, 2025

0.13

Dec. 23, 2025

300,000(1)
50,000(2)
-

100,000(2)
150,000(4)

0.50
0.50
0.13

Oct 29, 2022
Jan. 29, 2024
Dec. 23, 2025

Lynn Kitzmann

-

-

-

-

Christopher Meinerz

-

-

-

-

William Clark

John Devlin

(1) The vesting of shares subject to this option occurred on the one-year anniversary of the grant, October 30, 2013 for Mr. Clark and
October 31, 2013 for Mr. Devlin.
(2) The shares subject to this option vest annually over a three-year period beginning on January 31, 2014 in increments of 1/3rd per
year.
(3) The shares subject to this option vest annually over a three-year period beginning on December 23, 2016 in increments of 1/3rd per
year.
(4) The shares subject to this option will vest in full on the one-year anniversary of the grant, December 23, 2016.
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2012 Stock Incentive Plan
On October 29, 2012, our stockholders approved the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) that governs equity awards to our
management, employees, directors and consultants. On November 7, 2013, our stockholders approved an amendment to the Plan which
increased the total authorized amount of common stock issuable under the Plan from 3,000,000 to 6,000,000 shares. There are 6,000,000
shares of common stock currently reserved for issuance under the Plan. As of December 31, 2015, 3,590,000 options to purchase common
stock were granted under the Plan and 2,194,167 were fully vested.
Unless previously terminated, the Plan will terminate 10 years after the earlier of (i) the date the Plan was adopted by the board of
directors, or (ii) the date the Plan was approved by the stockholders. The types of awards permitted under the Plan include qualified
incentive stock options (ISO), non-qualified stock options, and restricted stock. Each option shall be exercisable at such times and subject to
such terms and conditions as the board of directors may specify. Stock options generally vest over three years and expire no later than ten
years from the date of grant.
Compensation of Directors
Each member of our board of directors receives compensation of $2,500 per month. Our directors are also entitled to receive
reimbursement of pre-approved fees and expenses incurred in relation to performing their obligations as directors.
The following table presents information with respect to director compensation, including employee directors.

Name
(a)
William Clark
Christopher Meinerz
John Devlin
Glenn Bancroft
Jack Scott
Tony VanBrackle
Francis Knuettel
Total

Fees
earned
or paid
in cash
($)
(b)
30,000
7,500
30,000
30,000
30,000
30,000
5,000
162,500

Stock
awards
($)(1)
(c)
-

Option
awards
($)(1)
(d)
19,110
19,110
19,110
19,110
19,110
19,110
114,660

Non-equity
incentive plan
compensation
($)
(e)
-

Nonqualified
deferred
compensation
earnings
($)
(f)
-

All other
compensation
($)
(g)
-

-

-

-

Total
($)
(h)
49,110
7,500
49,110
49,110
49,110
49,110
24,110
277,160

(1) The value of the stock option compensation was computed using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The amount of stockbased compensation recognized during a period is based on the value of the portion of the awards that are ultimately expected to
vest. ASC 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time stock options are granted and warrants are issued to employees and
non-employees, and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The term
“forfeitures” is distinct from “cancellations” or “expirations” and represents only the unvested portion of the surrendered stock
option or warrant. The Company estimates forfeiture rates for all unvested awards when calculating the expense for the period. In
estimating the forfeiture rate, the Company monitors both stock option and warrant exercises as well as employee termination
patterns. The resulting stock- based compensation expense for both employee and non-employee awards is generally recognized on
a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award.
Employment Agreements
William Clark, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer, is currently receiving compensation of $200,000 per year.
Mr. Clark received $140,625 in salary and 439,800 shares of Common Stock in lieu of $59,373 of cash compensation.
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In April 2014, the Company entered into an offer letter with Christopher Meinerz to serve as Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Compliance Officer. Pursuant to the offer letter, Mr. Meinerz originally received a cash salary of $180,000 per annum, which increased to
$200,000 per annum as of July 2014. In December 2014, Mr. Meinerz received 20,000 shares of Common Stock in lieu of $10,000 of cash
compensation. Additionally, the Company granted Mr. Meinerz a stock option to purchase up to 90,000 shares of the Company’s Common
Stock at an exercise price of $0.50, vesting annually over a three-year period beginning on April 1, 2014, in increments of 1/3rd per year.
On February 16, 2015, Mr. Meinerz resigned his employment with the Company and the option to purchase shares were forfeited or
canceled.
On February 18, 2015, the Company entered into an offer letter with Lynn Kitzmann to serve as our Chief Financial Officer.
Pursuant to the offer letter, Ms. Kitzmann received a cash salary of $130,000 per annum and, if she remained with the Company for one
year, 100,000 shares of Company Common Stock. The stock award was accelerated and Ms. Kitzmann received the 100,000 shares with a
value of $13,000 in June of 2015. Additionally, the Company had granted Ms. Kitzmann stocks option to purchase up to 45,000 and 60,000
shares of the Company’s Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.50, vesting annually over a three-year period beginning on May 12,
2014 and December 30, 2014, respectively, in increments of 1/3rd per year. Ms. Kitzmann resigned her position with the Company
effective August 31, 2015, and the options to purchase shares were forfeited or canceled.
Except as described above, we are not currently a party to any existing agreements or understandings with any of our executive
officers with respect to compensation for services rendered to us.
Consulting Agreements
The Company entered into a Consulting Services Agreement with David Ide, effective as of March 1, 2013, until February 28,
2014 (the “Ide Agreement”). Pursuant to the Ide Agreement, Mr. Ide agreed to provide services relating to intellectual property, corporate
governance, financial reporting, and mergers and acquisitions activity. Additionally, Mr. Ide agreed to devote approximately forty hours per
week in connection with such services. The Company agreed to pay Mr. Ide 250,000 shares in exchange for his services and reimbursement
of pre-approved travel expenses. These shares were issued to Mr. Ide on December 19, 2014.
The Company entered into a Consulting Services Agreement with Glenn Bancroft, effective as of May 1, 2013 until April 30,
2014 (the “Bancroft Agreement”). Pursuant to the Bancroft Agreement, Mr. Bancroft agreed to provide services relating to general
management, personnel, executive development and coaching, sales team development and organizational behavior assistance. The
Company agreed to pay Mr. Bancroft 100,000 shares in exchange for his services and reimbursement of pre-approved travel expenses.
These shares were issued to Mr. Bancroft on July 31, 2014. The Bancroft Agreement was renewed for an additional twelve months on April
30, 2014 through April 30, 2015 for compensation of 100,000 shares, which were issued to Mr. Bancroft on June 18, 2015. The consulting
agreement with Mr. Bancroft was again renewed for an additional twelve months through April 30, 2016 under the same terms of the
original agreement.
The Company entered into a Consulting Services Agreement with Dr. Jack Scott, effective as of July 1, 2015 until June 30, 2016
(the “Scott Agreement”). Pursuant to the Scott Agreement, Dr. Scott agreed to provide services relating to general business development
analysis and support along with M&A analysis and support. The Company agreed to pay Dr. Scott 350,000 unregistered shares of
Company stock in exchange for his services and reimbursement of pre-approved travel expenses. These shares were issued to Dr. Scott on
November 12, 2015.
The Company entered into a Consulting Services Agreement with John Devlin, effective as of August 17, 2015 until August 16,
2016 (the “Devlin Agreement”). Pursuant to the Devlin Agreement, Mr. Devlin agreed to provide services relating to the function as
Interim Chief Financial Officer of the Company, providing financial oversight and directing the activities of the Public Auditors. The
Company agreed to pay Mr. Devlin 30,000 shares of unregistered shares of Company stock for each month of service as Interim CFO, with
a six-month minimum, along with reimbursement of pre-approved travel expenses. On March 16, 2016, the 180,000 shares were issued to
Mr. Devlin.
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The Company entered into a Consulting Services Agreement with Tony VanBrackle, effective as of November 1, 2015 until
October 31, 2016 (the “VanBrackle Agreement”). Pursuant to the VanBrackle Agreement, Mr. VanBrackle agreed to provide general
consulting services relating to the development of a retail ISO program and direct sales structure, along with M&A analysis and support.
The Company agreed to pay Mr. VanBrackle 500,000 unregistered shares of Company stock in exchange for his services and
reimbursement of pre-approved travel expenses. These shares were issued to Mr. VanBrackle on March 8, 2016.
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control
We currently have no employment agreements nor any compensatory plans or arrangements with any of our executive officers that
may result from the resignation, retirement or any other termination of any of our executive officers, from a change-in-control, or from a
change in any executive officer’s responsibilities following a change-in-control.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
We have only one class of stock outstanding, our common stock. The following table presents certain information as of March 30,
2016, with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock for (i) each director and officer, (ii) all of our directors and officers as a
group, and (iii) each person known to us to own beneficially five percent or more of the outstanding shares of our common stock. As of
March 30, 2016, there were 67,698,740 shares of common stock outstanding.
Shares of common stock subject to options or warrants that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days from March 30,
2016, are considered outstanding and beneficially owned by the person holding the options or warrants for the purpose of computing the
percentage ownership of that person but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other
person. To our knowledge, except as indicated in the footnotes to this table or pursuant to applicable community property laws, the persons
named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares of common stock indicated.
Percent
of
Class(2)
7.0%
4,722,892(3)

Amount of
Beneficial
Ownership

Name, Title and Address of
Beneficial Owner of Shares (1)
William Clark, Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director
John Devlin, Interim Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, Chairman of the Audit
Committee and Director

1,075,778(4)

1.6%

Glen Bancroft, Secretary, chairman of the Compensation Committee and Director

1,197,779(5)

1.8%

Jack Scott, Director

6,359,186(6)

9.5%

Tony VanBrackle, Director

4,780,371(7)

7.1%

Francis Knuettel II, Director

47,037(8)

All Directors and Officers as a group (6 persons)
5% Beneficial Owners
Michael Kelly
*Represents a percentage under 1%.
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*

18,183,042(9)

27.1%

4,000,000

6.0%

(1) The address for the officers and directors of the Company is c/o Spindle, Inc., 8700 E. Vista Bonita Drive, Suite 260, Scottsdale,
Arizona 85255.
(2) As of March 30, 2016, there were 67,698,740 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding. In determining the percentage of
common stock beneficially owned by the selling stockholders as of March 30, 2016, (a) the numerator is the number of shares of
common stock beneficially owned by a selling stockholder (including the shares that he has the right to acquire within 60 days of
March 30, 2016), and (b) the denominator is the sum of (i) the 67,198,740 shares of common stock outstanding on March 30, 2016
and (ii) the number of shares of common stock which the selling stockholder has the right to acquire within 60 days of March 30,
2016.
(3) Includes 3,157,101 shares of common stock, 940,791 shares of Common Stock owned of record by Ameriprise Trust Company
FBO William E. Clark, 25,000 shares of common stock owned of record by Mr. Clark’s wife, 500,000 shares which represent the
vested portion of a stock option purchase up to 500,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share that
expire on October 28, 2022, and 100,000 shares which represented the vested portion of a stock option to purchase 150,000 shares
of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share that expire on January 29, 2024.
(4) Includes 675,778 shares of common stock owned of record by Mr. Devlin, 300,000 shares which represent the vested portion of a
stock option to purchase 300,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share that expire on October 29,
2022, and 100,000 shares which represent the vested portion of a stock option to purchase 150,000 shares of our common stock at
an exercise price of $0.50 per share that expire on January 29, 2024.
(5) Includes 797,779 shares of common stock owned of record by Mr. Bancroft, 300,000 shares which represent the vested portion of a
stock option to purchase 300,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share that expire on October 27,
2022, and 100,000 shares which represent the vested portion of a stock option to purchase 150,000 shares of our common stock at
an exercise price of $0.50 per share that expire on January 29, 2024.
(6) Includes 6,359,186 shares of common stock owned of record by Dr. Scott.
(1) (7). Includes 342,500 shares of common stock owned directly by Mr. VanBrackle, 67,500 shares owned of record by MPP Holdings
LLP and 3,870,371 owned of record by Payment Ventures LLC. MPP Holdings LLP and Payment Ventures LLC are private
investment entities over which Mr. VanBrackle has investment discretion.
(7) Includes 47,037 shares of common stock.
(8) Includes 12,640,172 shares of common stock held by executive officers and directors, 3,962,871 shares of common stock owned by
entities controlled by executive officers and directors, and 1,400,000 shares issuable upon exercise of stock options held by
executive officers and directors.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence.
The following describes all transactions since January 1, 2014 through the date of this report (the “Reporting Period”) and all
proposed transactions in which we are, or we will be, a participant and the amount involved exceeds $120,000 or 1% of the average of our
total assets at year-end for the last two completed fiscal years and in which any related person had or will have a direct or indirect material
interest.
During the year ended December 31, 2011, we issued a Revolving Credit Grid Note to Mr. Ide covering cash advances up to
$60,000. The Note was subsequently amended in May 2012 to increase the principal amount of advances to $250,000. The note is noninterest bearing, unsecured and matured on December 15, 2014; however, as of the date of this report, such note has not been repaid. We
imputed interest at a rate of 2% per annum and recorded a discount in the amount of $17,709 which is amortized to interest expense over
the term of the note. As of December 31, 2015, the outstanding balance of this note is $66,053.
On March 20, 2013, we assumed certain liabilities and acquired substantially all the assets of MeNetwork used in connection with
its business of developing, marketing and licensing a mobile marketing platform for use by merchants and consumers. As consideration for
the assumption of the liabilities and the acquisition of the MeNetwork assets, we authorized the issuance of an aggregate of 3,500,000
shares of common stock to the stockholders of MeNetwork, of which 350,000 shares were held in escrow for a period of one year from the
closing date, and have been released, for the purposes of satisfying any indemnification claims and 750,000 shares of common stock were
issued to Ashton Craig Page, the director and Chief Operating Officer of MeNetwork and formerly a member of our board of directors.
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On December 12, 2014, the Company, and Ashton Craig Page, in his capacity as the representative of MeNetwork and the MeNetwork
Stockholders (the “Representative”), entered into an Amendment and Waiver to Asset Purchase Agreement (the "Amendment), pursuant to
which the Company agreed to issue and the Representative agreed to accept on behalf of MeNetwork and the MeNetwork Stockholders an
acceleration of the issuance of up to an aggregate of 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Earnout Shares”) on or before
December 31, 2014 in full satisfaction of all obligations of the Company to issue the Earnout Shares pursuant to the Purchase Agreement
during the Earnout Period. On December 23, 2014, Mr. Page received 249,626 shares out of the 1,000,000 Earnout Shares.
On January 31, 2014, we issued options for the purchase of 150,000 shares of common stock to William Clark, our Chief
Executive Officer and a director, and to Glenn Bancroft and John Devlin, each of whom is a member of the board of directors and also to
David Ide, whom at the time was a member of the board of directors. We also issued options for the purchase of 50,000 shares of common
stock to each of John Reardon and Ashton Craig Page, who, at the time, were members of our board of directors. The options vest 1/3 over
each of three years, have a 10-year term and an exercise price of $0.50 per share. Messrs. Ide, Reardon and Page’s options were cancelled as
unvested shares upon their resignations from the board of directors.
On April 1, 2014, we issued options for the purchase of 90,000 shares of common stock to Christopher Meinerz, our former Chief
Financial Officer and former Chief Compliance Officer, who was also a member of the board of directors. The options had an exercise
price of $0.50 per share. Mr. Meinerz resigned as Chief Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer on February 16, 2015, and the
options were forfeited or canceled as of December 31, 2015.
On May 12, 2014, and December 30, 2014, we issued options for the purchase of 45,000 and 60,000 shares of common stock,
respectively, to Lynn Kitzmann, our former Chief Financial Officer. The options vested 1/3 over each of three years, had a 10-year term
and an exercise price of $0.50 per share. Ms. Kitzmann was issued 100,000 shares of common stock which had an aggregate grant date fair
value of $13,000 in relation to her acceptance of the CFO position with the Company. In August 2015, Ms. Kitzmann resigned her position
and her options to purchase shares were forfeited or canceled as of December 31, 2015.
On June 30, 2014, the Company issued a promissory note in the amount of $100,000 to William Clark, its Chief Executive
Officer, for amounts previously advanced to the Company for working capital. The note was non-interest bearing, unsecured and matured
on June 30, 2015. The Company imputed interest at a rate of 2% per annum and recorded a discount in the amount of $110 which recorded
to interest expense on our statement of operations. The note was repaid in full as of December 31, 2015.
Pursuant to Glenn Bancroft’s 2013 consulting agreement with the Company, Mr. Bancroft was issued 100,000 shares of our
common stock on July 31, 2014 for his services rendered. Pursuant to Mr. Bancroft’s 2014 consulting agreement, Mr. Bancroft was issued
100,000 shares of our common stock on June 18, 2015 for his services rendered.
Pursuant to David Ide’s consulting agreement, Mr. Ide was issued 250,000 shares of common stock on December 19, 2014 for his
services rendered.
During the fourth quarter 2014 Dr. Jack Scott, John Devlin and Tony VanBrackle, each of whom is a member of the board of
directors, advanced the Company various disbursements totaling $285,000. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2015, Dr. Scott,
Mr. Devlin and Mr. VanBrackle, along with Mr. Clark and Mr. Bancroft, also members of the board of directors, advanced the Company
an additional $870,000. The terms of these advances were not formalized. During the Reporting Period, $1,095,000 was the largest amount
of principal outstanding. As of December 31, 2015, all amounts were paid in full through cash and the issuance of common stock.
Director Independence
Our board of directors has determined using the definition of “independent” in Rule 5605 of the Rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market, we
have determined that Glenn Bancroft, Francis Knuettel II, Dr. Jack Scott, and Tony VanBrackle are independent.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
RBSM, LLP serves as our principal independent registered accounting firm. The following table presents fees for professional
accounting services rendered by our principal accountant for the audit of our annual financial statements for 2015 and 2014, and fees billed
for other services rendered.
SERVICES
Audit fees
Audit-related fees (1)
Tax fees
All other fees
TOTAL

2015
$

2014
38,000
1,500
9,000
48,500

$

$

$

71,000
37,725
6,000
2,250
112,975

(1) Audit related fees consist of fees related to services provided in relation to securities offerings and expert consents provided in
connection with SEC filings.
Each year, the Audit Committee approves the annual audit engagement in advance. The Audit Committee also has established
procedures to pre-approve all non-audit services provided by the principal independent registered public accounting firm. All 2015 and
2014 non-audit services listed above were pre-approved.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
The following exhibits and financial statements are filed as part of, or are incorporated by reference into, this report:
(1) Financial Statements
The following financial statements are filed with this Annual Report and can be found beginning at page F-1 of this report:
·

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated March 30, 2016;

·

Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014;

·

Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and, December 31, 2014;

·

Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2015;

·

Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014; and

·

Notes to Financial Statements.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The following financial statement schedule is filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K and can be found following the Notes
to Financial Statements:
None
All other schedules have been omitted because the information required to be shown in the schedules is not applicable or is
included elsewhere in the financial statements and Notes to Financial Statements.
(3) Exhibits
See “Exhibit Index” following the signature page of this Form 10-K for a description of the documents that are filed as Exhibits to
this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference herein.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, this, 30th day of March 2016.
SPINDLE, INC.
(Registrant)
Signature
/s/ William Clark
William Clark
/s/ John Devlin
John Devlin

Title
President, Chief Executive Officer,
Principal Executive Officer

Date
March 30, 2016

Chief Financial Officer, Principal Financial Officer

March 30, 2016

Power of Attorney
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints
William Clark and John Devlin jointly and severally, his or her attorneys-in-fact, each with the power of substitution, for him or her in any
and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said
attorneys-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ William Clark
William Clark

President, Chief Executive Officer, Principal Executive Officer

March 30, 2016

/s/ John Devlin
John Devlin

Chief Financial Officer,
Principal Financial Officer, Director

March 30, 2016

/s/ Glenn Bancroft
Glenn Bancroft

Director

March 30, 2016

/s/ Tony VanBrackle
Tony VanBrackle

Director

March 30, 2016

/s/ Jack Scott
Jack Scott

Director

March 30, 2016

/s/ Francis Knuettel II
Francis Knuettel II

Director

March 30, 2016
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit No.
2.1
2.2
2.3
3.1
3.2
4.1
10.1
10.2
10.3**
10.5+
10.6
10.7
10.8+
10.9+
10.10+
14.1
21.1
21.1
31.1
31.2
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Description
Asset Purchase Agreements, dated December 2, 2011, by and by and between Coyote Hills Golf, Inc., a Nevada
corporation, Spindle Mobile, Inc., Mitch Powers, Stephanie Erickson, and Kamiar Khatami (2)
Addendum No. 1 to Asset Purchase Agreement entered into on March 29, 2012 between Spindle, Inc., Spindle Mobile,
Inc., Mitch Powers, Stephanie Erickson and Kamiar Khatami (3)
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into on December 10, 2013 between Spindle, Inc. and Y Dissolution, Inc. (1)
Articles of Incorporation, as amended (1)
By-Laws (1)
Specimen Common Stock Certificate of the Company (6)
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into on December 31, 2012 between Spindle, Inc. and Parallel Solutions Inc. (1)
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into on March 1, 2013 between Spindle, Inc. and MeNetwork, Inc. (4)
First Amendment and Waiver to Asset Purchase Agreement entered into on December 12, 2014 between Spindle, Inc. and
Ashton Craig Page (6)
Spindle, Inc. 2012 Stock Incentive Plan (1)
Form of Subscription Agreement in Private Offering*
Form of Securities Purchase Agreement in Private Offering*
Consulting Services Agreement by and between Spindle, Inc. and Glenn Bancroft (6)
Spindle, Inc. 2014 Consultants’ Compensation Plan (7)
Asset Purchase Agreement entered into on June 4, 2015 by and between Spindle, Inc. and C&H Financial Services, Inc.
(5)

Code of Ethics*
List of subsidiaries of Spindle, Inc. (6)
List of subsidiaries of Spindle, Inc. (6)
Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer
Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certifications of the Chief Financial Officer
XBRL Instance*
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema*
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation*
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition*
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label*
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation *

*Filed Herewith
**Schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The Company will furnish supplemental copies
of any omitted schedules as exhibits to the SEC upon request.
+ Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan.
(1)
Incorporated by reference to the registrant's Form 10 Registration Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 25, 2014.
(2)
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the registrant with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on December 6, 2011.
(3)
Incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 filed by the registrant
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2012.
(4)
Incorporated by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 30, 2013 filed by the registrant
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 3, 2013.
(5)
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K/ filed by the registrant with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 10, 2015.
(6)
(7)

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed by the registrant with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 3, 2015.
Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed by the registrant with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 5, 2014.
43

The audited financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are included on the following pages:
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Balance Sheets
Statements of Operations
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements
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F-1
F-2
F-3
F-4
F-5
F-6 to F-18

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Spindle, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Spindle, Inc. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2015. Spindle Inc.’s
management is responsible for these financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial
reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also include examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Spindle, Inc. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year
period ended December 31, 2015 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note
2 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered losses from operations, which raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as
a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
/s/ RBSM, LLP
Las Vegas, Nevada
March 30, 2016
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Spindle, Inc.
Balance Sheets

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Inventory
Total current assets

December 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

$

$

Other assets:
Property and equipment, net
Asset held for sale – residual contract revenue, net
Goodwill, net
Other intangible assets, net
Total other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Advances
Accrued liabilities - related party
Notes payable - related party, net
Total current liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

$

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, no shares
issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
respectively
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized, 64,296,519
and 42,068,773 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014, respectively
Common stock authorized and unissued, 696,853 and 107,853 shares as of
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

$

161,226
105,096
1,789,547
10,579
2,066,448

16,921

22,145

4,636,212
1,422,750
6,075,883
8,142,331

441,970
5,306,205
1,673,736
7,444,056
7,907,713

342,201
190,000
14,437
66,053
612,691

$

$

578,610
215,000
681,655
172,108
1,647,373

-

-

64,297

42,069

697
26,576,761
(19,112,115)
7,529,640
8,142,331

108
21,470,580
(15,252,417)
6,260,340
7,907,713

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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169,807
20,000
82,393
90,810
100,647
463,657

$

Spindle, Inc.
Statements of Operations
Years Ended
December 31,
2015
Revenue:
Sales income
Cost of sales

$

Gross profit
Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization
Promotional and marketing
Consulting
Salaries and wages (including share-based compensation)
Directors fees
Professional fees
General and administrative
Loss on impairment of goodwill
Loss on impairment of long-lived asset
Total operating expenses
Net operating loss
Other expense:
Gain on sale of assets
Interest expense
Interest expense - related party
MeNetwork earnout settlement
Other expense
Total other expense
Loss before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net loss
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
- basic and diluted

$

Net (loss) per share - basic and fully diluted

$

2014
521,037
211,941

868,462
311,364

309,096

557,098

546,785
49,485
436,529
1,601,751
203,900
374,021
261,984
669,993
254,940
4,399,388

592,137
126,215
2,377,212
3,050,064
174,839
1,100,240
566,618
669,993
69,808
8,727,126

(4,090,292)

(8,170,028)

269,817
(1,558)
(55)
(37,610)
230,594

(1,994)
(750,000)
(741,994)

(3,859,698)
-

(8,922,022)
-

(3,859,698)

$

47,564,687
(0.08)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

(8,922,022)
38,349,031

$

(0.23)

Spindle, Inc.
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock

Shares
Balance, December 31, 2013
Shares issued for services
Shares issued for legal services
Shares issued for cash
Shares issued for compensation
Shares issued in litigation settlement
Shares issued in MeNetwork amendment
Asset acquisition with Yowza!!
Shares previously authorized
Stock option amortization
Net loss
Balance, December 31, 2014
Shares issued for services
Shares issued for cash
Shares issued for compensation
Shares issued in HWW License agreement
Shares issued for Catalyst acquisition
Stock option amortization
Net loss
Balance, December 31, 2015

Amount

32,663,065 $32,663
1,195,500
1,196
602,958
603
3,790,000
3,790
513,000
513
1,424,075
1,424
1,000,000
1,000
1,642,000
1,642
662,250
662
42,068,773 $42,069
14,206,080 14,206
350,000
350
371,666
372
7,000,000
7,000
300,000
300
64,296,519 $64,297

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
$11,401,077
2,103,743
815,921
1,941,110
862,737
749,000
3,003,218,
593,774
$21,470,580
2,607,357
174,650
68,894
1,603,000
74,700
577,580
$26,576,761

Common Unamortized
Stock
Equity
Payable Compensation
$662
8
100
(1,424)
(662)
$108
565
24
-

$(48,735)
-

$697

-

48,735
-

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Accumulated
(Deficit)

Total

$(6,330,395) $5,055,272
2,104,947
816,524
1,945,000
863,250
3,132,500
3,004,860
7
642,509
(8,922,022) (8,922,022)
$(15,252,417) $6,260,340
2,622,128
175,000
69,290
1,610,000
75,000
577,580
(3,859,698) (3,859,698)
($19,112,115) $7,529,640

Spindle, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended
December 31,
2015
Operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Shares issued for services
Shares issued for officer compensation
Shares issued for MeNetwork earnout
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of long-lived asset
Goodwill impairment
Amortization of debt discount - related party
Share based compensation expense
Gain on sale of assets
Decrease (increase) in allowance for doubtful accounts
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increased) in prepaid expenses
Decrease (increase) in inventory
Increase in advances
Decrease (increase) in deposits and other assets
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase in expenses - related party
Decrease in accrued interest - related party
Net cash used in operating activities

$

2014

(3,859,698)

$

(8,922,022)

471,351
200,663
546,785
254,940
669,993
55
577,579
(269,817)
-

2,553,973
709,700
750,000
592,135
69,808
669,993
2,999
796,058
283

55,620
(88,737)
90,068
(25,000)
68,966
946,702
(360,530)

89,019
118,430
(39,597)
8,960
375,505
537,988
(5,019)
(1,691,787)

678,366
(515,417)
162,949

(501,367)
(542,362)
(1,043,729)

Financing activities
Net proceeds for advances
Net proceeds (payments) for notes payable - related party
Proceeds from restricted cash account
Proceeds from the sale of common stock
Net cash provided by financing activities

(6,000)
20,000
175,000
189,000

215,000
45,000
1,945,000
2,205,000

Net (decrease) increase in cash
Cash - beginning
Cash - ending

$

(8,581)
169,807
161,226

$

(530,516)
700,323
169,807

Non-cash transactions
Shares issued for services
Shares issued for officer compensation
Shares issued for prepaid expenses
Shares issued for accounts payable
Shares issued for accrued liabilitites
Shares issued for acquisitions
Options granted for share based compensation expense
Shares issued for share based compensation expense
Shares issued for MeNetwork earnout

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

471,351
200,663
305,375
1,714,030
1,685,000
577,579
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,553,973
709,700
37,042
330,454
3,004,861
642,508
73,600
750,000

Investing activities
Acquisition of intellectual property
Sale of residual assets
Additions to capitalized software development
Net cash used in investing activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Spindle, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION OF THE COMPANY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization
We were originally incorporated in the State of Nevada on January 8, 2007 as “Coyote Hills Golf, Inc.” We were previously an online
retailer of golf-related apparel, equipment and supplies. Prior to the acquisition of the assets of Spindle Mobile, Inc. (“Spindle Mobile”), as
described below, we generated minimal revenues from the golf-related business.
On December 2, 2011, we acquired certain assets and intellectual property from Spindle Mobile, a Delaware corporation in the business of
data processing, mobile payments fields and other related fields, in exchange for approximately 80% of the issued and outstanding common
stock of the Company, which shares were distributed to the stockholders of Spindle Mobile, pursuant to the terms and conditions of an
Asset Purchase Agreement (the "Spindle Mobile Agreement").
Concurrent with the closing of the Spindle Mobile Agreement, we amended our articles of incorporation to change our name from "Coyote
Hills Golf, Inc." to "Spindle, Inc." Additionally, we changed our authorized capital from 100,000,000 shares of common stock and
100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value to 300,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value, and 50,000,000
preferred stock, $0.001 par value. The actions were approved on November 11, 2011, by the consent of the majority stockholders who
represented 90% of our issued and outstanding common stock, and were effective on of December 2, 2011.
On December 31, 2012 (the “Parallel Acquisition Closing Date”), pursuant to that certain Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Parallel
Agreement”) by and between the Company and Parallel Solutions Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Parallel”), the Company acquired
substantially all of Parallel’s assets used in connection with its business of facilitating electronic payment processing services to merchants
(the “Parallel Assets”), assumed certain specified liabilities and hired seven employees of Parallel in exchange for 538,570 unregistered
shares of common stock, of which 53,857 shares (the "Parallel Indemnification Escrow") and 100,000 shares (the "Parallel Deferred
Consent Escrow”) were deposited in escrow with our transfer agent. The Parallel Indemnification Escrow was released on January 23,
2014. On October 29, 2013, the Parallel Deferred Consent Escrow was released to Parallel after certain specified contract assignments and
residual revenue streams were assigned to the Company pursuant to the Parallel Agreement. In June of 2015, the Parallel Assets were sold.
On March 20, 2013 (the “MeNetwork Closing Date”), the Company assumed certain liabilities and acquired substantially all of the assets
of MeNetwork, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“MeNetwork”), used in connection with its business of developing, marketing and licensing a
mobile marketing platform for use by merchants and consumers (the “MeNetwork Assets”), pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement dated
March 1, 2013 by and between Spindle and MeNetwork (the “MeNetwork Agreement”). As consideration for the assumption of the
liabilities and the acquisition of the MeNetwork Assets, the Company issued an aggregate of 2,750,000 shares of common stock to the
stockholders of MeNetwork, of which 350,000 were deposited in escrow with our transfer agent for the purposes of satisfying any
indemnification claims. The MeNetwork Indemnification Escrow was released pursuant to the MeNetwork Agreement. On October 7,
2013, the Company issued an additional 750,000 shares of common stock to Ashton Craig Page, the former director and Chief Operating
Officer of MeNetwork and a former director of the Company, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the MeNetwork Agreement. On
December 12, 2014, the Company, and Ashton Craig Page, in his capacity as the representative of MeNetwork and the MeNetwork
Stockholders (the “Representative”), entered into an Amendment and Waiver to Asset Purchase Agreement (the "Amendment), pursuant to
which the Company agreed to issue and the Representative agreed to accept on behalf of MeNetwork and the MeNetwork Stockholders an
acceleration of the issuance of up to an aggregate of 1,000,000 Earnout Shares on or before December 31, 2014 in full satisfaction of all
obligations of the Company to issue the Earnout Shares pursuant to the Purchase Agreement during the Earnout Period. These shares were
issued on December 23, 2014.
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On January 3, 2014 (the “Closing Date”), the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Yowza International Inc. (renamed Y
Dissolution, Inc.) (“Yowza!!) used in connection with its business of providing retail coupons through a mobile application (the “Yowza
Assets”), and assumed certain liabilities of Yowza!! in an amount equal to $15,000 for consideration equal to (1) $500,000 in cash paid to
Yowza!! and certain creditors and holders of outstanding promissory notes issued by Yowza!! and (2) an aggregate of 1,642,000
unregistered shares of our common stock (the “Aggregate Share Consideration”), issuable to the holders of Yowza!!’s outstanding capital
stock. Ten percent of the Aggregate Share Consideration is issuable to certain executive management members and advisors of Yowza!! in
accordance with consulting or employment agreements and subject to certain vesting provisions. In addition, an aggregate of 197,052
shares of common stock (the “Indemnification Escrow”), representing approximately 12% of the Aggregate Share Consideration, was
deposited in escrow for a period of one year from the Closing Date. The Yowza!! Indemnification Escrow was released on January 12,
2015. The Indemnification Escrow is available to compensate Spindle pursuant to the indemnification obligations of Yowza!! under the
Asset Purchase Agreement, and for any necessary accounts receivable adjustment after the Closing Date in the event Spindle is unable to
collect the acquired outstanding accounts receivable of Yowza!! within 120 days after the Closing Date.
On October 23, 2015 (the “Closing Date”) the Company completed the acquisition of specific assets of Catalyst Business Development,
Inc. (“Catalyst”) pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement, dated September 14, 2015, by and between the Company and Catalyst in
exchange for 300,000 unregistered shares of the Company’s common stock issued to the holders of Catalyst stock. The consideration
amounted to $75,000 using a fair value of $0.25 per share at the Closing Date. The assets acquired include a white-labeled license of the
Merchant Partners solution and various assets related to branding, marketing and sales. Spindle will continue to operate the gateway under
the Catalyst brand.
Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ financial statements to conform to the current year presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on previously reported results of operations or retained earnings.
Summary of significant accounting policies
Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers cash and cash equivalents to include all stable, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months
or less from the date of purchase.
Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S.
GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is derived on a per message/notification basis through the Company’s patented technologies and a modular, adaptable platform
designed to create multi-channel messaging gateways for all types of connected devices. The Company also earns revenue for services,
such as programming, licensure on Software as a Service (“SaaS”) basis, and on a performance basis, such as when a client acquires a new
customer through our platform. Revenue is recognized in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101, “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements,” as revised by SAB No. 104. As such, the Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists, title transfer has occurred, the price is fixed or readily determinable, and collectability is probable. Sales are
recorded net of sales discounts.
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Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable primarily represents the net cash due from the Company's credit card and other payment processors for cleared
transactions. The carrying amount of the Company's receivables is reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts that reflects
management's best estimate of amounts that will not be collected. The adequacy of the allowance is based on historical loss experience and
information collected from individual customers. Accounts receivable are charged off against the allowance when it is determined that the
receivable is uncollectible. Interest is not accrued on overdue accounts receivable.
Inventory
Inventories consist of merchandise held for sale in the ordinary course of business, including cost of freight and other miscellaneous
acquisition costs, and are stated at the lower of cost or market. The Company records a write-down for inventories which have become
obsolete or are in excess of anticipated demand or net realizable value. The Company periodically performs a detailed inventory review
that considers multiple factors including demand forecasts, market conditions, product life cycle status, product development plans and
current sales levels. If actual demand or market conditions for the Company’s products are less favorable than forecasted or if unforeseen
changes negatively affect the utility of the Company’s inventory, additional inventory write-downs may be required.
In the fourth quarter of 2015, management’s review determined that the carrying value of inventory included items that were obsolete or
would never be used by the Company. In this respect, equipment in inventory with a total cost of $103,307 was written off and a loss
recorded.
Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Major renewals and improvements are charged to the asset accounts. Replacements,
maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the lives of the respective assets are expensed. At the time property and equipment
are retired or otherwise disposed of, the asset and related accumulated depreciation accounts are relieved of the applicable amounts. Gains
or losses from retirements or sales are credited or charged to income.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line and accelerated methods for financial reporting and income tax reporting purposes based
upon the following estimated useful lives:
Computer Software
Computer Equipment
Office furniture and equipment

3 years
5 years
7 years

Long-lived assets
The Company accounts for its long-lived assets in accordance with ASC Topic 360-10-05, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets.” “ASC Topic 360-10-05” requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the historical cost carrying value of an asset may no longer be appropriate. The Company assesses
recoverability of the carrying value of an asset by estimating the future net cash flows expected to result from the asset, including eventual
disposition. If the future net cash flows are less than the carrying value of the asset, an impairment loss is recorded equal to the difference
between the asset’s carrying value and fair value or disposable value. The Company recorded an impairment to its intellectual property for
the year ended December 31, 2015 as further discussed in Note 6.
Goodwill
The Company accounts for goodwill in accordance with ASC Topic 805-30-25, “Accounting for Business Combinations” (“ASC Topic
805-30”) and “Accounting for Goodwill - Subsequent Measurement” (“ASC Topic 350-20-35”).
ASC Topic 805-30 requires that the acquirer shall recognize goodwill as of the acquisition date as the excess of the fair value of the
consideration transferred over the fair value of the net acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed.
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ASC Topic 350-20-35 requires that goodwill acquired in a purchase and determined to have an indefinite useful life is not amortized, but
instead tested for impairment annually or more frequently when events or circumstances indicates that the carrying value of a reporting unit
more likely than not exceeds its fair value. The Company’s annual goodwill impairment testing date is December 31 of each year. The
Company first assesses qualitative factors to determine whether it’s necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test.
Impairment is the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. If the qualitative assessment
results in an indication that it’s more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then a quantitative
assessment must be performed. Management has determined that the Company has one reporting unit for purposes of testing goodwill.
The quantitative analysis involves estimating the fair value of its reporting unit utilizing a combination of valuation methods including
market capitalization, the income approach and cash flows. Income and cash flow forecasts were used in the evaluation of goodwill based
on management’s estimate of future performance. If goodwill is determined to be impaired as a result of this analysis, an impairment loss is
recorded equal to the difference between the asset’s carrying value and fair value. The Company recorded impairment to its goodwill for
each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 as further discussed in Note 8.
Capitalized software development costs
The Company capitalizes software development costs subsequent to establishing technological feasibility of a software application.
Capitalized software development costs represent the costs associated with the development of the Company’s software applications used
to generate revenue from our customers. Amortization of such costs is recorded on a software application-by-application basis, based on the
greater of the proportion of current year sales to the total of current and estimated future sales for the applications or the straight-line
method over the remaining estimated useful life of the software application. The Company continually evaluates the recoverability of
capitalized software costs and will charge to operations amounts that are deemed unrecoverable for projects it abandons.
Stock-based compensation
The Company accounts for stock-based payments to employees in accordance with ASC 718, “Stock Compensation” (“ASC 718”). Stockbased payments to employees include grants of stock, grants of stock options and issuance of warrants that are recognized in the statement
of operations based on their fair values at the date of grant.
The Company accounts for stock-based payments to non-employees in accordance with ASC 505-50, “Equity-Based Payments to NonEmployees.” (“ASC 505-50”) Stock-based payments to non-employees include grants of stock, grants of stock options and issuances of
warrants that are recognized in the statement of operations based on the value of the vested portion of the award over the requisite service
period as measured at its then-current fair value as of each financial reporting date. The Company calculates the fair value of option grants
and warrant issuances utilizing the Black-Scholes pricing model. The amount of stock-based compensation recognized during a period is
based on the value of the portion of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest. ASC 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the
time stock options are granted and warrants are issued to employees and non-employees, and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The term “forfeitures” is distinct from “cancellations” or “expirations” and represents only
the unvested portion of the surrendered stock option or warrant.
The Company estimates forfeiture rates for all unvested awards when calculating the expense for the period. In estimating the forfeiture
rate, the Company monitors both stock option and warrant exercises as well as employee termination patterns. The resulting stock-based
compensation expense for both employee and non-employee awards is generally recognized on compensation under ASC 505-50, In
accordance with ASC 505-50, the cost of stock-based compensation is measured at the grant date based on the value of the award and is
recognized over the vesting period. The value of the stock-based award is determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing models,
whereby compensation cost is the excess of the fair value of the award as determined by the pricing model at the grant date or other
measurement date over the amount that must be paid to acquire the stock.
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Loss per share
The Company reports earnings (loss) per share in accordance with ASC Topic 260-10, "Earnings per Share." Basic earnings (loss) per share
is computed by dividing income (loss) available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares available.
Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed similar to basic earnings (loss) per share except that the denominator is increased to include
the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the potential common shares had been issued and if the
additional common shares were dilutive. Diluted earnings (loss) per share has not been presented since the effect of the assumed
conversion of warrants and debt to purchase common shares would have an anti-dilutive effect. Potential common shares as of December
31, 2015 that have been excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share amounted to 3,440,000 shares and include 600,000
warrants and 2,840,000 options. Of the 2,840,000 potential common shares at December 31, 2015, 1,245,833 had not vested. Potential
common shares as of December 31, 2014 that have been excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share amounted to 3,710,834
shares and include 250,000 warrants and 3,460,834 options. Of the 3,460,834 potential common shares at December 31, 2014, 1,342,500
had not vested.
Income taxes
The Company accounts for its income taxes under the provisions of “Income Taxes” (“ASC 740”). The method of accounting for income
taxes under ASC 740 is the asset and liability method. The asset and liability method requires the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and
assets for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between tax bases and financial reporting bases of other assets and
liabilities.
Fair value of financial instruments
We account for non-recurring fair value measurements of our non-financial assets and liabilities in accordance with ASC 820-10 Fair Value
Measurement. This guidance defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and addresses required disclosures about
fair value measurements. This standard establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the significant inputs
used to determine fair value. Observable inputs are those which are obtained from market participants external to the Company while
unobservable inputs are generally developed internally, utilizing management’s estimates, assumptions and specific knowledge of the
assets/liabilities and related markets. The three levels are defined as follows:
Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2 - Valuation is determined from quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active, or by model-based techniques in which all significant inputs are observable in the
market.
Level 3 -Valuation is derived from model-based techniques in which at least one significant input is unobservable and based on the
company’s own estimates about the assumptions that market participants would use to value the asset or liability.
If the only observable inputs are from inactive markets or for transactions which the Company evaluates as “distressed”, the use of Level 1
inputs should be modified by the company to properly address these factors, or the reliance of such inputs may be limited, with a greater
weight attributed to Level 3 inputs.
Due to the short-term nature of our financial assets and liabilities, we consider their carrying amounts to approximate fair value.
Recent Accounting Standards
The Company continually assesses any new accounting pronouncements to determine their applicability to the Company. Where it is
determined that a new accounting pronouncement affects the Company’s financial reporting, the Company undertakes a study to determine
the consequence of the change to its financial statements and assures that there are proper controls in place to ascertain that the Company’s
financials properly reflect the change.
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In August 2014, The FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40).” (“ASU
2014-15”) provides guidance for disclosure of uncertainties about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. In doing so,
management will need to perform an evaluation at each interim and annual reporting period to determine whether or not there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within
one year after the date that the financial statements are issued. If these conditions exist, the entity should evaluate whether the doubt is
mitigated by management’s plans or events and should make such required disclosures. This guidance will be effective for the Company for
its interim reporting for the quarter ended March 31, 2017.
NOTE 2 - GOING CONCERN
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. As shown in the
accompanying financial statements, the Company has incurred a net loss of ($3,859,698) and ($8,922,022) for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively and at December 31, 2015, has an accumulated deficit of ($19,112,115).
In order to continue as a going concern, the Company may need, among other things, additional capital resources. There are no assurances
that without generating new revenue in 2016 that the Company will be successful without additional financing. Should revenues not grow
sufficiently and the company will not be able to secure additional financing through the sale of it securities or debt, it would be unlikely for
the Company to continue as a going concern.
The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or the amounts
of and classification of liabilities that might be necessary in the event the Company cannot continue in existence. These conditions raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. These financial statements do not include any adjustments
that might arise from this uncertainty.
NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET
Accounts receivable consist of the following at:
December 31,
2015
Due from customers and vendors
Due from sale of residual assets
Less allowance for bad debts
Total accounts receivable, net

$

26,773
78,323
-105,096

$

December 31,
2014
$

93,643
-(11,250)
82,393

$

NOTE 4 - PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEPOSITS
Prepaid expenses and deposits consist of the following at:
December 31,
2015
Prepaid insurance
Prepaid license and trademark fees
Prepaid consulting fees
Other prepaid expenses
Deposits
Total prepaid expenses and deposits

$

$
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44,275
1,610,000
129,751
5,521
-1,789,547

December 31,
2014
$

$

42,167
-37,042
8,219
3,382
90,810

On May 26, 2015, the Company entered into a loyalty agreement with Help Worldwide, Inc. (“HWW”), which provided that, upon the
terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, the Company will join the HWW network and become a licensed Loyalty Program
Operator (“LPO”) to enable the delivery of a Yowza!! Points program for consumers and merchants in the Yowza!! program. HWW was
also to build a Yowza!! branded Rewards Mall for the redemption of Yowza!! Points. Consideration paid to HWW for the LPO was
3,000,000 unregistered shares of the Company's common stock, which was issued directly to HWW. Pursuant to the Agreement, the
Company and HWW will bundle their respective products to create a bundled package that will combine and co-brand the features of both
parties' products (the “Bundled Package”). HWW will promote the Bundled Package including the co-branded mobile application to 30
million consumers. The consideration paid to HWW for the Bundled Package (“Trademark”) was 4,000,000 unregistered shares of the
Company's Common Stock which was issued directly to HWW. The $690,000 value of the LPO license and the $920,000 value of the
Trademark are reported as prepaid expenses until such time HWW performs its obligations under the agreement or the agreement is
terminated. See Note 15, “Subsequent Events” for additional information on this transaction.
NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property and equipment, net consist of the following at:
December 31,
2015
Office furniture & equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total fixed assets, net

$

December 31,
2014

31,847
(14,926)
16,921

$

$

32,895
(10,750)
22,145

$

During the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company recorded depreciation expense of $5,225 and $5,225,
respectively.
NOTE 6 - OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Other intangible assets, net consist of the following at:

Capitalized software costs
License agreements and contracts
Domain names
Total intellectual property, net

Capitalized software costs
License agreements and contracts
Domain names
Total intellectual property, net

December 31,
2015 Gross

Accumulated
Amortization

December 31,
2015 Net

$

$

$

$

2,048,998
75,000
85,000
2,208,998

$

(763,684)
-(22,564)
(786,248)

$

1,285,314
75,000
62,436
1,422,750

December 31,
2014 Gross

Accumulated
Amortization

December 31,
2014 Net

$

$

$

$

2,182,640
69,808
85,000
2,337,448

$

(582,017)
(69,808)
(11,887)
(663,712)

$

1,600,623
-73,113
1,673,736

During the year ended December 31, 2015, management reviewed the carrying amount of the assets and determined as a result of changes
in the focus of the Company’s current direction, certain costs that had been capitalized to software development would not be used and no
longer had value to the Company. As a result of this analysis, $542,771 in costs were recorded as an impairment loss, net of $287,831 of
amortization related to the assets.
During the year ended December 31, 2014, management reviewed the carrying amount of the assets and determined as a result of
diversification in the Company’s business model due to its acquisitions, the license agreements previously recorded no longer yielded a net
future cash flow. As a result of this analysis, the Company recorded, to other expense, an impairment loss of $69,808 in accordance with
ASC Topic 360-10-05.
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NOTE 7 - RESIDUAL CONTRACTS
During the year ended December 31, 2014, management reviewed the carrying amount of the residual income stream purchased from
Parallel Solutions, Inc. (“PSI”) in 2012. It was determined that as a result of diversification in the Company’s business model due to its
acquisitions, that the previously estimated indefinite life of the asset be revised to reflect the Company’s future business development
goals. The Company estimated a finite remaining useful life of forty-eight months and had recorded amortization expense of $147,324 as of
December 31, 2014.
On June 4, 2015, the Company entered into an agreement to sell the PSI residual income stream for a purchase price of $753,740. As a
result of this transaction, $373,124 was recorded as a gain on sale of assets for the year ended December 31, 2015. As of December 31,
2015, the Company has received $678,366 of the purchase price and the balance of $78,323 is recorded to accounts receivable, net on the
Company’s balance sheet. In 2015, until the date of the sale, the Company recorded an additional $61,385 of amortization expense,
resulting in a total amortization of $208,708.
NOTE 8 - GOODWILL
December 31,
2015
Goodwill
Less: accumulated impairment loss
Total goodwill, net

$
$

5,976,198
(1,339,986)
4,636,212

December 31,
2014
$
$

5,976,198
(669,993)
5,306,205

In connection with the MeNetwork acquisition (as further described in Note 12) on March 20, 2013, the Company assumed certain
liabilities and acquired substantially all of the assets of MeNetwork. The Company recorded goodwill related to this acquisition of
$2,679,970. During its 2014 annual evaluation of goodwill, the Company determined that the carrying amount of goodwill related to
MeNetwork, exceeded its fair value. As a result, the Company recorded an impairment loss, to other expense, of $669,993 during the year
ended December 31, 2014. This charge reflects the impact of partially sun-setting assets acquired from MeNetwork in conjunction with its
integration of Yowza!! The Company again evaluated the carrying amount of goodwill in 2015. From this analysis based future cash
flows and the value of the asset in relation to Company’s new business direction, the Company determined that the fair value is only half of
the original amount, and recorded an additional impairment loss of $669,993 to other expense for the year ended December 31, 2015.
In connection with the acquisition (as further described in Note 12) on January 3, 2014, the Company assumed certain liabilities and
acquired substantially all of the assets of Yowza!!. The Company recorded goodwill related to this acquisition of $3,296,228. During its
annual evaluations of goodwill for both 2015 and 2014, the Company determined that the fair value of goodwill exceeded its carrying
amount and as a result no impairment charge was recorded.
The Company first assesses qualitative factors to determine whether it’s necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test.
Impairment is the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. If the qualitative assessment
results in an indication that it’s more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then a quantitative
assessment must be performed. Management has determined that the Company has one reporting unit for purposes of testing goodwill.
The quantitative analysis involves estimating the fair value of its reporting unit utilizing a combination of valuation methods including
market capitalization, the income approach and cash flows. Income and cash flow forecasts were used in the evaluation of goodwill based
on management’s estimate of future performance. If goodwill is determined to be impaired as a result of this analysis, an impairment loss is
recorded equal to the difference between the asset’s carrying value and fair value. The Company recorded impairment to its goodwill for
each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 as further discussed in Note 8.
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NOTE 9 - NOTES PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY
On December 15, 2011, the Company issued a Promissory Grid Note to a director of the Company whereby formalizing various advances
previously received from the director in the amount of $51,300 and allowing for future advances up to $250,000. The note is non-interest
bearing, unsecured and matures on December 15, 2014. The Company imputed interest at a rate of 2% per annum and recorded a discount
in the amount of $10,640. In connection with one of the previous advances in the amount of $25,000, the Company issued warrants to
purchase up to 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price per share of $1.00 resulting in an additional discount of $17,709.
The total discount attributable to the Grid Note totaled $28,349 and is being amortized to interest expense over the term of the note. During
the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company repaid $6,000 and $55,000 of the principal balance of the loan,
respectively.
During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded a $100,000 note payable to a director of the Company. The note was
non-interest bearing and unsecured. The Company imputed interest at a rate of 2% per annum and recorded a discount in the amount of
$110. This note was paid in full with shares at December 31, 2015.
During the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, interest expense of $55 and $1,994 related to
amortization of the discount and interest on the unpaid notes was recorded.
NOTE 10 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
The Company is authorized to issue up to 300,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001. During the year ended December 31,
2014, the Company:
·
·
·

·
·
·
·

authorized the issuance of 1,642,000 shares with an estimated fair value of $3,004,860 in connection with an asset acquisition. The
Company issued 1,445,000 shares at closing (see Note 12).
authorized the issuance of 3,890,000 shares of its common stock for cash proceeds totaling $1,945,000. As of December 31, 2014,
3,790,000 of these shares were issued and 100,000 of these shares were unissued.
issued a total of 1,253,353 shares of common stock to various individuals and companies for services valued at $2,108,945. Of the
total fair value, $24,750 has been recorded as a reduction to accounts payable, $37,042 is recorded as a prepaid expense and
$2,047,153 was recognized as additional paid-in-capital and consulting expense for the excess of the fair value. As of December
31, 2014, 7,853 of these shares were unissued. Additionally, the Company also canceled 50,000 shares previously issued for
consulting services in 2012 for services valued at $4,000.
issued 602,958 shares of its common stock as payment for previously accrued legal fees. The estimated fair value of these shares
totaled $816,524. Of the total fair value, $305,704 has been recorded as a reduction to accounts payable and $510,820 was
recognized as additional paid-in-capital and professional fees expense for the excess of the fair value.
authorized the issuance of 338,000 shares of common stock valued at $680,700 to the Chief Executive Officer as compensation for
services and bonus.
authorized the issuance of 20,000 shares of common stock valued at $29,000 to the former Chief Financial Officer as compensation
for services.
authorized the issuance of 155,000 shares of common stock valued at $153,550 to various employees as compensation for services
and bonus.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company:
·
·
·
·
·
·

issued 1,100,000 shares of its common stock with a fair value of $300,000 as payment for previously accrued legal fees.
authorized the issuance of 7,000,000 shares of common stock valued at $1,610,000 for the purchase of a license agreement with
HWW as described in Note 7. See Note 14 “Subsequent Events” for more information on these shares.
authorized 14,206,080 shares of its common stock with a fair value of $2,622,128 to consultants, directors and other parties for
services and as repayment of advances to the Company. As of December 31, 2015, 635,000 of these shares were unissued.
authorized the issuance of 350,000 shares of its common stock for cash proceeds totaling $175,000.
authorized the issuance of 300,000 shares of its common stock valued at $75,000 for the Catalyst Acquisition.
authorized the issuance of 371,666 shares of common stock valued at $69,290 to employees for compensation and bonuses
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NOTE 11 - WARRANTS AND OPTIONS
On October 29, 2012, our stockholders approved the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) that governs equity awards to our
management, employees, directors and consultants. On November 7, 2013, our stockholders approved an amendment to the Plan which
increased the total authorized amount of common stock issuable under the Plan from 3,000,000 to 6,000,000 shares.
During 2013 the Company granted 322,000 options to officers, employees and directions to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise
price of $0.50 per share, with grant date fair values of $0.77 to $1.36. The options vest ratably on an annual basis over one to three years.
The options expire ten years from grant date.
During 2014 the Company granted 3,006,000 options to officers, employees and directors to purchase shares of common stock at an
exercise price of $0.50 per share, with grant date fair values of $0.51 to $1.87. The options vest ratably on an annual basis over three years.
The options expire ten years from grant date.
On March 11, 2015, the Board of Directors approved a private placement offering (the “Offering”) comprised of a unit (the “Unit”). Each
Unit consists of one share of the Company’s common stock and one three-year warrant to purchase one share of the Company’s common
stock. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2015, the Company sold 350,000 units under this offering.
During 2015 the Company granted 91,250 options to employees to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share,
with grant date fair values of $0.18 to $0.35. The options vest ratably on an annual basis over three years, and expire ten years from grant
date. In 2015, 73,750 of these shares were cancelled. Also in 2015, options for the purchase of 750,000 shares were granted to directors of
the Company at an exercise price of $0.13 per share, with grant date fair values of $0.13. These options vest in full one year from grant
date, have a ten-year expiration, and were granted outside of the Company’s 2012 Stock Plan.
The estimated fair values of options granted during 2015, 2014 and 2013 were calculated using the following assumptions:
2015
Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Expected term, in years

2014

0.00%
94.42% to 188.60%
1.43% to 1.74%
6.0

2013

0.00%
76.71% to 86.26%
1.49% to 1.78%
6.0

0.00%
63.64% to 72.80%
0.77% to 1.66%
5.5 to 6.0

The following is a summary of the status of all of the Company’s stock warrants and options as of December 31, 2015:
Number of
Warrants and
Options

WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

Weighted Average
Remaining Contractual
Life (in years)

Outstanding at December 31, 2013
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited/Cancelled
Outstanding at December 31, 2014
Exercisable at December 31, 2014

2,976,000
2,392,500
(1,657,666)
3,710,834
2,368,334

$ 0.534
$ 0.553

7.09
6.33

Outstanding at December 31, 2014
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited/Cancelled
Outstanding at December 31, 2015
Exercisable at December 31, 2015

3,710,834
1,191,250
(1,462,084)
3,590,000
2,194,167

$ 0.442
$ 0.557

7.38
6.15
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NOTE 12 - BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
On December 31, 2012 (the “Parallel Acquisition Closing Date”), pursuant to that certain Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Parallel
Agreement”) by and between the Company and Parallel Solutions Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Parallel”), the Company acquired
substantially all of Parallel’s assets used in connection with its business of facilitating electronic payment processing services to merchants
(the “Parallel Assets”), assumed certain specified liabilities and hired seven employees of Parallel in exchange for 538,570 unregistered
shares of common stock, of which 53,857 shares (the “Parallel Indemnification Escrow”) and 100,000 shares (the “Parallel Deferred
Consent Escrow”) were deposited in escrow with our transfer agent. The Parallel Indemnification Escrow was released on January 23,
2014. On October 29, 2013, the Parallel Deferred Consent Escrow was released to Parallel after certain specified contract assignments and
residual revenue streams were assigned to the Company pursuant to the Parallel Agreement.
On March 20, 2013 (the “MeNetwork Closing Date”), the Company assumed certain liabilities and acquired substantially all of the assets
of MeNetwork used in connection with its business of developing, marketing and licensing a mobile marketing platform for use by
merchants and consumers (the “MeNetwork Assets”), pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement dated March 1, 2013 by and between
Spindle and MeNetwork (the “MeNetwork Agreement”). As consideration for the assumption of the liabilities and the acquisition of the
MeNetwork Assets, the Company issued an aggregate of 2,750,000 shares of common stock to the stockholders of MeNetwork, of which
350,000 shares are being held in escrow for a period of one year from the MeNetwork Closing Date for the purposes of satisfying any
indemnification claims. In addition, on October 7, 2013, the Company issued an additional 750,000 shares of common stock to Ashton
Craig Page, the former director and Chief Operating Officer of MeNetwork and a former director of the Company, pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the MeNetwork Agreement. On December 12, 2014, the Company, and Ashton Craig Page, in his capacity as the
representative of MeNetwork and the MeNetwork Stockholders (the “Representative”), entered into an Amendment and Waiver to Asset
Purchase Agreement (the "Amendment), pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and the Representative agreed to accept on behalf
of MeNetwork and the MeNetwork Stockholders an acceleration of the issuance of up to an aggregate of 1,000,000 Earnout Shares on or
before December 31, 2014 in full satisfaction of all obligations of the Company to issue the Earnout Shares pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement during the Earnout Period. These shares were issued on December 23, 2014.
Yowza!! Transaction
As described in Note 1, “Organization of the Company and Significant Accounting Policies” the Company completed the Yowza!!
Transaction on January 3, 2014. This transaction was accounted for as a business combination. As such, the Company has allocated the
purchase price in accordance with ASC Topic 850-30 as previously described in the Company’s significant accounting policies.
Consideration was determined as follows:
Fair Value of
Consideration
Transferred
$
500,000
3,004,860
(13,632)
$
3,491,228

Cash paid to Yowza!!, net of cash acquired
Fair value of Company's shares issued
Cash paid to extinguish debt, net of cash acquired

The fair value of our shares issued in connection with the Yowza!! Transaction was determined to be $1.83, which was the fair value of the
shares on the closing date of the acquisition.
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The Company’s allocation of the purchase price is as follows:
Net assets acquired:
Cash
Accounts receivable
Software development costs
Trademarks
Net liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable
Goodwill
Total purchase price

$

1,368
2,928
200,000
10,000
(15,000)
3,291,932
3,491,228

$

Catalyst Transaction
As described in Note 1, “Organization of the Company and Significant Accounting Policies” the Company completed the Catalyst
Transaction on October 23, 2015. This transaction was accounted for as a purchase of assets. The fair value of our shares issued in
connection with the Catalyst Transaction was determined to be $0.25, which was the fair value of the shares on the closing date of the
acquisition. The total consideration of $75,000, which consists of the Catalyst Gateway license bundled with other contracts is reported on
our balance sheet in “Other intangible assets, net.
NOTE 13 - INCOME TAXES
FASB ASC 740 requires the use of an asset and liability approach in accounting for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recorded based on the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and the tax rates currently in effect.
FASB ASC 740 requires the reduction of deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance, if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is
more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In the Company’s opinion, it is uncertain whether they
will generate sufficient taxable income in the future to fully utilize the net deferred tax asset. Accordingly, a valuation allowance equal to
the deferred tax asset has been recorded. The total deferred tax asset is $477,297, which is calculated by multiplying a 35% estimated tax
rate by the cumulative net operating loss (NOL) adjusted or the following items:

Book loss for the year
Adjustments:
Amortization
Impairment charges
Non-deductible stock compensation
Tax loss for the year
Estimated effective tax rate
Deferred tax asset

$

For the periods ended December 31,
2015
2014
(3,859,697)
$
(8,922,022)
33,638
1,212,763
1,249,590
(1,363,707)
35%
(477,297)

$
$

$
$

37,376
739,801
1,594,245
(6,550,600)
35%
(2,292,710)

The total valuation allowance is $477,297. Details for the last two periods follow:
For the period ended December 31,
2015
2014
Deferred tax asset
Valuation allowance
Current taxes payable
Income tax expense

$

(477,297)
477,297
---

$
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$
$

(2,292,710)
2,292,710
---

The estimated corporate federal net operating loss (NOL) is presented below:
Year
2015
2014

Amount
6,669,766
5,336,059

NOTE 14 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On May 26, 2015, the Company entered into a loyalty agreement with Help Worldwide, Inc. (“HWW”) which provided that the Company
would join the HWW network and become a licensed Loyalty Program Operator (“LPO”) to enable delivery of a Yowza!! Points program
for consumers and merchants in the Yowza!! program. HWW was also to build a Yowza!! branded Rewards Mall for the redemption of
Yowza!! Points. On March 28, 2016, a settlement agreement was signed between the Company and HWW, terminating the LPO license
agreement executed in May 2015. The settlement agreement stipulates that on or about March 31, 2016, HWW will return 6,500,000 of the
7,000,000 shares of Spindle restricted common stock issued to HWW for the license fee. The LPO license agreement was terminated
amicably and not due to default or breach by any party.
During the month of March, 2016, the Company issued 680,000 shares of unregistered stock to two members of our board of directors in
accordance with terms of their consulting agreements. Also in March, 2015, 2,722,221 shares were purchased by and issued to various
investors under the Securities Purchase Agreement in conjunction with our November 17, 2015 private placement offering. These shares
are expected to become freely trading in the public market upon effective registration.
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SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
THIS SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made as of the later date set forth on
the signature pages hereto, by and among Spindle, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), and the purchaser
whose name and address are set forth on the signature page annexed hereto (the “Purchaser”). The foregoing parties
are sometimes referred to hereinafter individually as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.”
RECITALS
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Subscription Application of the Purchaser of even date herewith (each a
“Subscription Application”), and pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “ Securities
Act”), and Rule 506 promulgated thereunder, the Company desires to sell to the Purchaser and the Purchaser desires to
acquire from the Company that number of shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the
“Common Stock”) as are set forth on the Purchaser’s signature page annexed hereto (the " Shares"), at a price of $.135
per share, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the other documents or instruments contemplated
hereby.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties do
hereby covenant and agree as follows:
AGREEMENT
Section 1.

Sale and Issuance of Shares .

1.1
Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company’s board of directors has authorized
the sale and issuance of up to 7,407,408 shares of Common Stock (the “Offering”). At the Closing (as defined below),
the Company shall sell and issue the Shares to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser shall purchase the Shares from the
Company. The Company intends to enter into this same form of purchase agreement with certain other purchasers
(collectively, the “ Other Purchasers”, and collectively with the Purchaser, the “ Purchasers”) and expects to complete
sales of Shares to them. The maximum number of Shares that the Company may sell to the Purchasers is 11,111,112,
unless a higher amount is authorized by the Company’s board of directors in its sole discretion. The Purchaser’s
obligations hereunder are expressly not subject to or conditioned on the purchase of Shares by any or all of such Other
Purchasers.
1.2
The aggregate purchase price for the Shares to be purchased by the Purchaser (the “ Purchase Price”)
shall be the amount set forth on the Purchaser’s signature page hereto.

Section 2.

The Closing.

2.1
The closing of the sale and issuance to the Purchaser (the “ Closing”) shall occur on the date when the
Company receives from the Purchaser (i) this Agreement, Purchaser's Subscription Application and each other
document or instrument contemplated hereby or thereby (collectively, the "Transaction Documents") executed by
Purchaser; and (ii) payment of the Purchase Price, which shall be made contemporaneously with the execution and
delivery of the Transaction Documents, by certified check payable to "Spindle, Inc." or by wire transfer of immediately
available funds, to Wells Fargo Bank in accordance with the following instructions:
Wire Transfer Instructions for Account
Wells Fargo Bank, NA
420 Montgomery
San Francisco, CA 94104
Account Holder; Spindle, Inc.
ABA/Routing Number: XXXXX
Account Number: XXXXXX
2.2
At the Closing, the Company shall instruct its transfer agent to issue and deliver to the Purchaser a
certificate representing the Shares, against receipt by the Company of a certified bank check or wire transfer in an
aggregate amount equal to the Purchase Price for the number of Shares set forth on the Purchaser’s signature page
hereto.
Section 3.

Representations and Warranties of the Company .

The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Purchaser as follows:
3.1
Organization.
The Company is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada
and is qualified to conduct its business as a foreign corporation in each jurisdiction where the failure to be so qualified
would have a material adverse effect on the Company.
3.2

Authorization of Agreement, Etc .

The execution, delivery, and performance by the Company of its obligations under the Transaction Documents
has been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action on the part of the Company; and this Agreement and the
Transaction Documents have been duly executed and delivered by the Company. Each of the Transaction Documents,
when executed and delivered by the Company, constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the Company,
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium, or other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies
generally, and subject, as to enforceability, to general principles of equity (regardless of whether enforcement is sought
in a proceeding at law or in equity).
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3.3

Issuance of Shares.

The Shares are duly authorized and, when paid for and issued in accordance with the Transaction Documents,
will be duly and validly issued, fully paid, and nonassessable, free and clear of all liens.
Section 4.

Representations and Warranties of the Purchaser .

The Purchaser hereby represents and warrants to the Company as follows:
4.1

Authorization of the Documents .

The Purchaser has all requisite power and authority (corporate or otherwise) to execute, deliver, and perform its
obligations under the Transaction Documents, and the execution, delivery, and performance by the Purchaser of its
obligations under the Transaction Documents has been duly authorized by all requisite action on the part of the
Purchaser and each such Transaction Document, when executed and delivered by the Purchaser, shall constitute the
valid and binding obligation of the Purchaser, enforceable against the Purchaser in accordance with its terms, subject to
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium or other similar laws affecting
creditors’ rights and remedies generally, and subject, as to enforceability, to general principles of equity (regardless of
whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at law or in equity).
4.2

Investment Representations.

All of the representations, warranties, and information of the Purchaser as set forth in the Purchaser’s
Subscription Application are incorporated by reference herein, shall be deemed to be a part hereof, and shall be true
and correct at the Closing with the same force and effect as if made by the Purchaser as of the date thereof.
4.3

Access to Company Information .

The Purchaser acknowledges that it has been afforded access and the opportunity to obtain all financial and
other information concerning the Company that such Purchaser desires (including the opportunity to meet with the
Company’s executive officers, either in person or telephonically). The Purchaser has reviewed copies of all reports filed
by the Company (the “Filings”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “ Commission”) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), up to and including the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 (the "2014 Annual Report ") and Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015 (the "2015 Quarterly Report"), all of which are available for
review at www.sec.gov. The Purchaser further acknowledges that it is familiar with the contents of the Filings and that
there is no further information about the Company that the Purchaser desires in determining whether to acquire the
Shares in the Offering.
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4.4

Risk Factors

The Purchaser acknowledges that the Company has recently declared it is no longer is a development stage
company however continues to operate with limited revenues and currently is not operating with positive cash-flow
from operations, and there can be no assurances that the Company will ever develop its operations as currently
contemplated. The Purchaser acknowledges that an investment in the Shares is extremely speculative and that there is a
substantial risk that the investor may lose the Purchaser’s entire investment in the Shares. The Purchaser acknowledges
and understands that as a result of being a former Shell Company, Rule 144 may not be available to the Purchaser and
all other holders of the Common Stock to permit the resale of the Common Stock if the company fails to continue to
report on a timely basis.
Section 5.

Brokers and Finders.

The Company may engage a placement agent in connection with the Offering in its sole discretion, the
Company shall not be obligated to pay any commission, brokerage fee, or finder’s fee based on any alleged agreement
or understanding between the Purchaser and a third person in respect of the transactions contemplated hereby. The
Purchaser hereby agrees to indemnify the Company against any claim by any third person for any commission,
brokerage fee, finder’s fee, or other payment with respect to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby
based on any alleged agreement or understanding between the Purchaser and any such third person, whether express or
implied from the actions of the Purchaser or anyone acting or purporting to act on behalf of the Purchaser.
Section 6.

Indemnification by the Purchaser.

The Purchaser hereby agrees to indemnify and defend (with counsel acceptable to the Company) the Company
and its officers, directors, employees, and agents and hold them harmless from and against any and all liability, loss,
damage, cost, or expense, including costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred on account of or arising from:
(a)
any breach of or inaccuracy in any of the Purchaser’s representations, warranties, or agreements made
herein, in any of the Transaction Documents, or in any document or instrument contemplated hereby or thereby; and
(b)
any action, suit, or proceeding based on a claim that the Purchaser’s representations, warranties or
agreements made herein, in any of the Transaction Documents, or in any document or instrument contemplated hereby
or thereby, were inaccurate or misleading, or otherwise cause for obtaining damages or redress from the Company or
any current or former officer, director, employee, or agent of the Company under the Securities Act.
Section 7.

Successors and Assigns.

This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Company, the Purchaser, and their respective
successors and assigns.
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Section 8.

Entire Agreement.

This Agreement and the other writings and agreements referred to in this Agreement or delivered pursuant to
this Agreement contain the entire understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede
all prior agreements and understandings, whether written or verbal, among the Parties with respect thereto.
Section 9.

Notices.

All notices, demands and requests of any kind to be delivered to any Party in connection with this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or if sent by internationallyrecognized overnight courier or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, addressed
as follows:
if to the Company, to:
Spindle, Inc.
8700 E Vista Bonita Dr., STE 260
Scottsdale, AZ 85255
Attention: William Clark, President and CEO
with a copy to:
Clark-Trevithick
800 Wilshire Boulevard, 12th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90017
Attention: Peter Hogan
if to the Purchaser, to:
at the address of the Purchaser set forth on the Purchaser’s signature page hereto;
or to such other address as the Party to whom notice is to be given may have furnished to the other Parties to this
Agreement in writing in accordance with the provisions of this Section. Any such notice or communication shall be
deemed to have been received (i) in the case of personal delivery, on the date of such delivery, (ii) in the case of
internationally-recognized overnight courier, on the next business day after the date when sent and (iii) in the case of
mailing, on the third business day following that on which the piece of mail containing such communication is posted.
Section 10.

Amendments.

This Agreement may not be modified or amended, nor may any provision of this Agreement be waived, except
as evidenced by a written agreement duly executed by the Company and holders of at least 51% of the Common Stock
purchased by the Purchaser and all Other Purchasers combined, and any such agreement shall be binding on the
Purchaser and all other Purchasers.
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Section 11.

Governing Law; Waiver of Jury Trial .

All questions concerning the construction, interpretation, and validity of this Agreement shall be governed by
and construed and enforced in accordance with the domestic laws of the State of Nevada without giving effect to any
choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether in the State of Nevada or any other jurisdiction) that would cause
the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of Nevada. In furtherance of the foregoing, the
internal law of the State of Nevada will control the interpretation and construction of this Agreement, even if under
such jurisdiction’s choice of law or conflict of law analysis, the substantive law of some other jurisdiction would
ordinarily or necessarily apply.
Section 12.

Submission to Jurisdiction.

Any legal action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement may be brought in the courts of the State of
Arizona and the United States of America located in the Phoenix, Arizona, and, by execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the Company hereby accepts for itself and in respect of its property, generally and unconditionally, the
jurisdiction of the aforesaid courts. The Purchaser hereby irrevocably waives, in connection with any such action or
proceeding, any objection, including, without limitation, any objection to the venue or based on the grounds of forum
non conveniens, which it may now or hereafter have to the bringing of any such action or proceeding in such respective
jurisdictions. The Purchaser hereby irrevocably consents to the service of process of any of the aforementioned courts
in any such action or proceeding by the mailing of copies thereof by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to it
at its address as set forth herein.
Section 13.

Severability.

It is the desire and intent of the Parties that the provisions of this Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent
permissible under the law and public policies applied in each jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought. Accordingly,
in the event that any provision of this Agreement would be held in any jurisdiction to be invalid, prohibited, or
unenforceable for any reason, such provision, as to such jurisdiction, shall be ineffective, without invalidating the
remaining provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any other
jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if such provision could be more narrowly drawn so as not to be invalid,
prohibited, or unenforceable in such jurisdiction, it shall, as to such jurisdiction, be so narrowly drawn, without
invalidating the remaining provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in
any other jurisdiction.
Section 14.

Independence of Agreements, Covenants, Representations and Warranties .

All agreements and covenants hereunder shall be given independent effect so that if a certain action or condition
constitutes a default under a certain agreement or covenant, the fact that such action or condition is permitted by
another agreement or covenant shall not affect the occurrence of such default, unless expressly permitted under an
exception to such covenant.
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In addition, all representations and warranties hereunder shall be given independent effect so that if a particular
representation or warranty proves to be incorrect or is breached, the fact that another representation or warranty
concerning the same or similar subject matter is correct or is not breached will not affect the incorrectness of or a breach
of a representation and warranty hereunder. The exhibits and any schedules annexed hereto are hereby made part of
this Agreement in all respects.
Section 15.

Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and each such counterpart of this Agreement
shall be deemed to be an original instrument, but all such counterparts together shall constitute but one agreement.
Facsimile or PDF counterpart signatures to this Agreement shall be acceptable and binding.
Section 16.

Headings.

The section and paragraph headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not
affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
Section 17.

Expenses.

Each Party shall pay its own fees and expenses incurred in connection with the negotiation, execution, delivery
and performance of this Agreement, the Transaction Documents and any document or instrument contemplated hereby
or thereby.
Section 18.

Preparation of Agreement.

The Company prepared this Agreement and the Transaction Documents solely on its behalf. Each Party to this
Agreement acknowledges that: (i) the Party had the advice of, or sufficient opportunity to obtain the advice of, legal
counsel separate and independent of legal counsel for any other Party hereto; (ii) the terms of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement are fair and reasonable to such Party; and (iii) such Party has voluntarily entered into
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement without duress or coercion. Each Party further acknowledges that
such Party was not represented by the legal counsel of any other Party hereto in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, nor was he or it under any belief or understanding that such legal counsel was
representing his or its interests. Each Party agrees that no conflict, omission, or ambiguity in this Agreement, or the
interpretation thereof, shall be presumed, implied, or otherwise construed against any other Party to this Agreement on
the basis that such Party was responsible for drafting this Agreement.
Section 19.

Use of Proceeds.

The Company shall use the net proceeds from the Offering for general working capital and general corporate
purposes and debt service obligations.
[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , each of the undersigned has duly executed this Securities Purchase
Agreement as of the later date set forth on the signature pages below.
COMPANY:
Date: _______________, 2015

SPINDLE, Inc.

By: /s/ William Clark
Name: William Clark
Title: President and CEO

[Purchaser Signature Page Follows ]
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PURCHASER SIGNATURE PAGE TO SPINDLE, INC.
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
PURCHASER:

Name of Purchaser (Individual or
Institution)

Name of Individual representing
Purchaser (if an Institution)

Signature of Individual Purchaser or
Individual representing Purchaser

Title of Individual representing
Purchaser (if an Institution)

Address:
______________________________
______________________________
______________________________
Telephone:
______________________________
Facsimile:
______________________________
______________________________
Aggregate number of Shares
______________________________
Aggregate Purchase Price
______________________________
Date
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SUBSCRIPTION APPLICATION
(for Accredited Investors Only)
This Subscription Application is being delivered to you in connection with your investment in SPINDLE, INC., a
Nevada corporation (the “Company”). The Company is conducting a private placement offering (the “Offering”) in accordance
with that certain Private Placement Memorandum, dated November 17, 2015 (the “Memorandum”), of up to 7,407,408 units
(each, a “Unit” and collectively, the “Units”), or $1,000,000.00 which shall consist of one share (each, a “Share” and
collectively, the “Shares”) of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”); provided,
however, that the number of Units offered may be increased to 11,111,112 Units, or $1,500,000, by authorization of the
Company’s board of directors, in its sole discretion, without further notice or consent to the prospective investors. All funds
received in the Offering, upon fulfillment of the conditions precedent set forth herein, shall be delivered to the Company, and
thereafter the Units subscribed for as further described below shall be delivered. The Company may continue to offer and sell the
Units and conduct additional closings for the sale of additional Units after the initial closing until the termination of the Offering.
Name of Subscriber
Name of Co-Subscriber, if any
Address of Subscriber (1)
Address of Co-Subscriber (if different) (1)
Aggregate number of Units subscribed to purchase
(2)
Check enclosed (or wire transfer) in the amount of

$

(1)

Permanent legal residence and domicile (other than Post Office Box) if the Subscriber is an individual, or permanent principal
legal executive offices and place of business (other than Post Office Box) if the Subscriber is an entity.

(2)

The price per Unit is $0.135

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL
The undersigned (the “Subscriber”) hereby makes an application to purchase from the Company, the number of Units
set forth above, pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement substantially in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A (the
“Agreement”). The Subscriber understands and agrees that this Subscription Application to purchase the Units isbinding and
irrevocable on the Subscriber’s part, and that acceptance by the Company shall be in its sole discretion and otherwise in
accordance with the terms set forth in this Subscription Application and the Agreement (the Agreement, together with the
exhibits, schedules and attachments thereto, this Subscription Application, and the Memorandum are sometimes referred to
collectively herein as the “Offering Materials”).

[Subscriber Questionnaire Follows]
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1. CONFIDENTIAL SUBSCRIBER INFORMATION
_________________________________________________________________________________
Name of Subscriber
_________________________________________________________________________________
If Subscriber is an Entity Provide Name
Year Formed
State of Formation
_________________________________________________________________________________
Street Address
City
State
Zip
_________________________________________________________________________________
Subscriber SS# or EIN/TIN
Work Phone Number
Home Phone Number
_________________________________________________________________________________
Subscriber’s Age
Date of Birth
_________________________________________________________________________________
Name in which the Shares and the Warrants will be held (check one below)
[ ] Individually [ ] A married man(woman) as his(her) separate property [ ] Community property
[ ] JTWROS [ ] Tenants in common [ ] Other (Describe): ______________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________
Aggregate Number of Units
Amount Invested ($)
_________________________________________________________________________________
Subscriber’s Signature
Date
2. SUBSCRIBER’S ACCREDITED STATUS
(a)
Accredited Investor (Regulation D). The Subscriber is an “Accredited Investor” as that term is defined in
Rule 501 of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), as follows:
(b)

Individuals. (Check all that apply)

[ ] The Subscriber’s individual net worth* or combined net worth* with his or her spouse, excluding the net
value of such person’s or married couple’s primary residence, exceeds $1,000,000;
[ ] The Subscriber’s individual income,** exclusive of any income attributable to his or her spouse, was in
excess of $200,000 for the two most recent calendar years preceding the calendar year of this Subscription Application, and the
Subscriber reasonably expects an income,** exclusive of any income attributable to his or her spouse, in excess of $200,000 in
the current calendar year; and/or the Subscriber’s combined income** with his or her spouse was in excess of $300,000 for the
two most recent calendar years preceding the calendar year of this Subscription Application and the Subscriber and his or her
spouse reasonably expect a combined income** in excess of $300,000 in the current calendar year.
* For purposes of this Subparagraph, the term “net worth” means the excess of total value over total liabilities.
** The Subscriber may determine income by adding to his, her or its adjusted gross income any amounts attributable to tax exempt income
received, losses claimed as a limited partner in any limited partnership, deductions or claims for depletion, contributions to an IRA or
Keogh retirement plan, alimony payments and any amount by which income from long-term capital gains has been reduced in arriving at
adjusted gross income.

3
CONFIDENTIAL

(c)

Entities. (Check all that apply)

[ ] Entity with Value Exceeding $5 Million. The Subscriber is a corporation, partnership (general or
limited), limited liability company, limited liability partnership or Massachusetts or similar business trust which: (1) was not
formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Securities, and (2) has total assets in excess of $5,000,000.
[ ] Entity Comprised of Accredited Investors. The Subscriber is a corporation, partnership (general or
limited), limited liability company, limited liability partnership or Massachusetts or similar business trust in which all of the
Subscriber’s equity owners are Accredited Investors.
[ ] Revocable Trust. The Subscriber is a revocable trust (also commonly known as a family or living trust)
established to facilitate the distribution of the estate of the settlors (grantors): (1) which may be revoked or amended at any time
by the settlors (grantors); (2) which passes all tax benefits of investments made by such trust through to the settlors (grantors)
individually; and (3) in which all of the settlors (grantors) are Accredited Investors.
[ ] Trust Whose Assets Exceed $5 Million . The Subscriber is a trust that has total assets in excess of
$5,000,000, and the person making the investment decision on behalf of the trust has such knowledge and experience in financial
and business matters that such person is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in the Securities.
[ ] Financial Institution as Trustee. The Subscriber is a financial institution which: (1) is a bank, savings and
loan association, or other regulated financial institution; (2) is acting in its fiduciary capacity as trustee; and (3) is subscribing for
the purchase of the Securities on behalf of the subscribing trust.
[ ] Employee Benefit Plan (including Keogh Plan) With Self-Directed Investments and Segregated
Accounts. The Subscriber is an employee benefit plan within the meaning of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, as amended (“ERISA”), and: (1) such plan is self-directed and provides for segregated accounts; (2) the investment
decision to purchase the Securities is being made by a plan participant who is an Accredited Investor; and (3) the investment in
the Securities is being made solely on behalf of such Accredited Investor.
[ ] Employee Benefit Plan (including Keogh Plan) With Financial Institution As Trustee. The Subscriber
is an employee benefit plan within the meaning of ERISA, and the decision to invest in the Securities was made by a plan
fiduciary (as defined in Section 3(21) of ERISA), which is either a bank, savings and loan association, insurance company, or
registered investment adviser.
[ ] Employee Benefit Plan (including Keogh Plan) With Assets Exceeding $5 Million. The Subscriber is
an employee benefit plan within the meaning of ERISA and has total assets in excess of $5,000,000.
[ ] Tax Exempt 501(c)(3) Organization. The Subscriber is an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which organization was not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the
Securities, and which organization has total assets in excess of $5,000,000.
[ ] Bank. The Subscriber is a bank as defined in Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act.
[ ] Savings and Loan Association . The Subscriber is a savings and loan association or other institution as
defined in Section 3(a)(5)(i) of the Securities Act.
[ ] Insurance Company. The Subscriber is an insurance company as defined in Section 2(14) of the Securities
Act.
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[
] Investment Company. The Subscriber is an investment company registered under the Investment
Company Act of 1940.
[ ] Business Development Company. The Subscriber is a business development company as defined in
Section 2(a)(48) of the Investment Company Act of 1940.
[ ] Small Business Investment Company. The Subscriber is a small business investment company licensed
by the U.S. Small Business Administration under Section 301(c) or (d) of the Small Business Investment Act of 1958.
[ ] Private Business Development Company. The Subscriber is a private business development company as
defined in Section 202(a)(22) of the Investment Advisors Act of 1940.
[ ] Registered Broker or Dealer. The Subscriber is a broker or dealer registered pursuant to Section 15 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SUBSCRIBER
The Subscriber and, if the Subscriber is an entity, each of its officers, directors, partners, managers, members, trustees,
beneficial owners, principals and/or agents, hereby represents and warrants to the Company, each of which is deemed to be a
separate representation and warranty, as follows:
()
Residence. The Subscriber’s permanent legal residence and domicile, if the Subscriber is an individual, or
permanent legal executive offices and principal place of business, if the Subscriber is an entity, was and is at the address
designated on the cover page of this Subscription Application at both the time of the “offer” and the time of the “sale” of the
Securities to the Subscriber.
()

Age. The Subscriber, if a natural person, is age twenty-one (21) or over.

(c)
Investment Knowledge and Experience; Sophistication (Regulation D; Blue Sky). The Subscriber (together
with his, her and/or its Advisors (as defined in subsection (f) below)) has such knowledge and experience in business, financial
and tax matters including, in particular, investing in private placements of securities in companies similar to the Company, so as
to enable the Subscriber to utilize the information made available in connection with this offering to: (i) evaluate the merits and
risks of an investment in the Company and to make an informed investment decision with respect thereto; and (ii) to reasonably
be assumed to have the capacity to protect the Subscriber’s own interests in connection with the transaction contemplated by this
Subscription Application.
(d)
Minimum Net Worth (Blue Sky). An investment in the Securities will not exceed ten percent (10%) of the
Subscriber’s net worth if the Subscriber is an entity, or joint net worth with his or her spouse if the Subscriber is a natural person.
(e)
Receipt and Review of Offering Materials and Company Information. The Subscriber: (i) has received the
Offering Materials; and (ii) has read each of the Offering Materials in its entirety and fully understands the matters discussed
therein and the terms of thereof.
(f)
Independent Review of Investment Merits; Due Diligence. During the course of the transactions
contemplated by this offering, and before purchasing the Securities: (i) the Subscriber had the opportunity to engage such
investment professionals and advisors including, without limitation, accountants, appraisers, investment, tax and legal advisors
(collectively, the “Advisors”), each of whom are independent of the Company and its advisors and agents (including its legal
counsel) to:
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(1) review the terms and conditions of this Subscription Application, the Agreement, the Memorandum and the information and
disclosures contained herein and therein; (2) conduct such due diligence review as the Subscriber and/or such Advisors deemed
necessary or advisable, and (3) to provide such opinions as to (A) the investment merits of a proposed investment in the
Securities; (B) the tax consequences of the purchase of the Securities and the subsequent disposition of all or any portion of the
Securities; and (C) the effect of same upon the Subscriber’s personal financial circumstances, as the Subscriber and/or such
Advisors may deem advisable; and (ii) to the extent the Subscriber availed himself, herself or itself of this opportunity, received
satisfactory information and answers from such Advisors.
(g)
Opportunity to Ask Questions and to Review Documents, Books and Records; Opportunity to Meet with
Representatives of the Company; Full Satisfaction. Without limiting the generality of subsections (e) and (f) above, during
the course of the transaction contemplated by this Subscription Application, and before purchasing the Securities, the Subscriber
and/or his, her or its Advisors had the opportunity, to the extent they determined to be necessary or relevant in order to verify the
accuracy of the information contained in the Offering Materials and/or to evaluate the merits of an investment in the Securities:
(i) to be provided with financial and other written information about the Company (in addition to that contained in the Offering
Materials) to the extent the Company has such information in its possession or could acquire it without unreasonable effort or
expense; (ii) to meet with representatives of the Company and to ask questions and receive answers concerning the terms and
conditions of the Offering Materials, an investment in the Securities, and the business of the Company and its finances; (iii) to
review all documents, books and records of the Company, including the periodic filings of the Company; and (iv) to the extent
the Subscriber and/or his, her or its Advisors availed themselves of this opportunity, received satisfactory information and
answers.
(h)
Acceptance of Investment Risks. The Subscriber understands and acknowledges that: (i) an investment in the
Securities: (1) is a speculative investment with a high degree of risk of loss and the Subscriber must, therefore, be able to
presently afford a complete loss of this investment; (2) the Subscriber must be able to hold the Securities indefinitely; and (3) it
may not be possible for the Subscriber to liquidate the Securities in the case of emergency and/or other need and the Subscriber
must, therefore, have adequate means of providing for the Subscriber’s current and future needs and personal contingencies, and
have no need for liquidity in this investment; and (ii) the Subscriber has evaluated the Subscriber’s financial resources and
investment position in view of the foregoing, and is able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Securities.
(i)
Securities Purchased For Subscriber’s Own Account. The Subscriber is purchasing the Securities: (i) as
principal and not by any other person or entity; (ii) with the Subscriber’s own funds and not with the funds of any other person or
entity; and (iii) for the account of the Subscriber, and not as a nominee or agent and not for the account or benefit of any other
person or entity. The Subscriber is purchasing the Securities for investment purposes only for an indefinite period, and not with
a view to the sale or distribution of any part or all thereof, by public or private sale or other disposition. No person or entity other
than the Subscriber will have any interest, beneficial or otherwise, in the Securities, and the Subscriber is not obligated to
transfer the Securities to any other person or entity, nor does the Subscriber have any agreement or understanding to do so. The
Subscriber understands that (1) the Securities may not be sold, hypothecated, pledged, transferred, assigned or disposed of
except in accordance with the substantial restrictions on transfer described herein or that otherwise apply to the Securities, and
(2) the Company is relying, in material part, upon the Subscriber’s representations as set forth in the Agreement and herein for
purposes of claiming the “Federal Exemptions” or “Blue Sky Exemptions” (as those are defined in subsection (l) below), and
that the basis for such exemptions may not be presented if, notwithstanding the Subscriber’s representations, the Subscriber has
in mind merely acquiring the Securities for resale of all or a portion of the Securities upon the occurrence or nonoccurrence of
some predetermined event, and the Subscriber has no such intention.
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(j)
Compliance with Investment Laws. The Subscriber has complied with all applicable investment laws and
regulations in force relating to the legality of an investment in the Securities by the Subscriber in any jurisdiction in which he,
she or it purchases the Securities or is otherwise subject, and has obtained any consent, approval or permission required of him,
her or it for the purchase of the Securities under such investment laws and regulations.
(k)
Unregistered Securities. The Subscriber understands and acknowledges that: (i) the Securities have not been,
and when issued will not be, registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) under Section 5 of
the Securities Act in reliance upon one or more exemptions afforded by the Securities Act and/or rules promulgated by the
Commission pursuant thereto which may be selected by the Company in its sole discretion including, without limitation
(collectively and severally, the “Federal Exemptions”): (1) Section 4(2) of the Securities Act for private offerings; and (2) Rule
506 of Regulation D promulgated under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act for private offerings; and (ii) the Securities have not
been, and when issued will not be, registered or qualified with any applicable state or territorial securities regulatory agency in
reliance upon one or more exemptions afforded from registration or qualification afforded under the securities laws of such state
or territory (the “Blue Sky Laws”) which exemptions may be selected by the Company in its sole discretion (collectively and
severally, the “Blue Sky Exemptions”).
(l)
Resale Restrictions on Securities Pursuant to Securities Laws. The Subscriber understands and acknowledges
that: (i) should the Company elect to rely upon the exemptions afforded by Rule 506 under Regulation D, the Securities will be
classified, pursuant to Rule 502(d) of Regulation D of the Securities Act, as “restricted securities” acquired in a transaction under
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, which cannot be sold without registration under the Securities Act or an exemption therefrom
such as, by way of example and not limitation: (1) Section 4(1) of the Securities Act; (2) the so-called “Section 4(1½)
Exemption” to the Securities Act which, pursuant to Section 4(1) of the Securities Act, exempts from the provisions of the
Securities Act requiring the registration of securities certain “private sales” which are effectuated in a manner similar to private
placements by issuers under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act; and (3) Rule 144 and/or Rule 144A of the Securities Act; (ii) if
the Subscriber is an “Affiliate” of the Company (as such term is defined below), he, she or it generally will not be able to sell,
transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of the Securities except under Rule 144; (iii) the Securities will also be subject to applicable
state securities laws that may require registration or qualification of the Securities in connection with their resale, unless an
exemption from such registration or qualification is available. In general, an “Affiliate” is defined as a person who is a director
or officer of a company, or who directly or indirectly controls a company. As a rule of thumb, ownership of 10% or more of a
company’s voting stock generally will be deemed to constitute control, while ownership of less than 5% of a company’s voting
stock will generally not be deemed to constitute control. In general, assuming that the Company is current in filing reports with
the Commission and that the Subscriber is not an Affiliate, a minimum of six (6) months must elapse following the purchase of
the Securities before the Subscriber may re-sell the Securities under Rule 144 of the Securities Act. As a result of the
Company’s prior status as a “shell company”, stockholders who receive our restricted securities will not be able to sell
them pursuant to Rule 144 without registration until at least one year has elapsed from the time that the issuer filed
current comprehensive disclosure with the Commission reflecting its status as an entity that is not a shell company,
including audited financial statements (“Form 10 Information”) with the Commission (the “One Year Anniversary
Date”); provided, that the Company is subject to the reporting requirements of Sections 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act
and if and for so long as we have complied with our reporting requirements in the 12 months immediately prior to the
One Year Anniversary Date. The Company filed equivalent of Form 10-12G on February 25, 2014 and amended the
filing Form 10-12G/A Information with the Commission on April 28, 2014. As a result, the Company can only provide
assurances that the proper paper filings and wait period have been achieved thus we believe we became eligible for resale
pursuant to the exemption from registration under Rule 144 on April 28, 2015, the date upon which the Company has
been subject to the reporting requirements for one full year, without objection from the Commission; provided that, the
Company remains current in its reporting obligations at the time of any individual sale.
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(m)
Satisfaction of Counsel of Company As to Transfers of Securities. The Subscriber understands and
acknowledges that: (i) prior to any sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, hypothecation or other disposition of the Securities in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the Subscriber must either: (1) furnish the Company with a detailed
explanation of the circumstances surrounding the proposed disposition; furnish the Company with an opinion of legal counsel
(which may be the Company’s), in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Company and its legal counsel, to the
effect that such disposition is exempted from the registration and prospectus delivery requirements under the Securities Act and
the securities laws of the state in which the Subscriber is then resident; and legal counsel for the Company shall have concurred
in such opinion and the Company shall have advised the Subscriber of such concurrence; or (2) satisfy the Company that an
appropriate form of registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to the Securities proposed to be so disposed of
shall then be effective, and that such disposition shall have been appropriately qualified or registered in accordance with the
applicable Blue Sky Laws; and (ii) notwithstanding the foregoing, if in the opinion of counsel for the Company, the Subscriber
has acted in a manner inconsistent with the representations and warranties in this Subscription Application or the Agreement, the
Company may refuse to transfer the Securities until such time as counsel for the Company is of the opinion that such transfer: (1)
will not require registration of the Securities under the Securities Act, and registration or qualification of the Securities under the
applicable Blue Sky Laws; or (2) will otherwise comply with the Securities Act or the applicable Blue Sky Laws with respect to
the sale or transfer of the Securities. The Subscriber understands and agrees that the Company may refuse to acknowledge or
permit any disposition of any portion of the Securities that is not in all respects in compliance with this Subscription Application,
and the Company intends to make an appropriate notation in its records to that effect.
(n)
Legend on Certificates to Comply with Securities Laws. The Subscriber understands and agrees that the
certificate(s) representing the Securities, when issued, shall each bear such restrictive legend as the Company may deem
reasonably necessary or advisable to facilitate compliance with the Securities Act and the securities laws of the state or territory
of the Subscriber’s residence, including, without limitation, substantially the following legend:
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE UNITED
STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “COMMISSION”) UNDER SECTION
5 OF THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”),
IN RELIANCE UPON ONE OR MORE EXEMPTIONS FROM REGISTRATION OR
QUALIFICATION AFFORDED BY THE SECURITIES ACT AND/OR RULES PROMULGATED BY
THE COMMISSION PURSUANT THERETO. THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE
ALSO NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED (AS THE CASE MAY BE) UNDER THE
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR TERRITORY OF THE UNITED STATES (THE “BLUE SKY
LAWS”), IN RELIANCE UPON ONE OR MORE EXEMPTIONS FROM REGISTRATION OR
QUALIFICATION (AS THE CASE MAY BE) AFFORDED UNDER SUCH SECURITIES LAWS.
NEITHER THE COMMISSION NOR ANY SECURITIES REGULATORY AGENCY OF ANY STATE
OR TERRITORY OF THE UNITED STATES HAS REVIEWED OR PASSED UPON OR ENDORSED
THE MERITS OF THE OFFERING CONTEMPLATED HEREBY, AND ANY REPRESENTATION TO
THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. THESE SECURITIES HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR
THE HOLDER’S OWN ACCOUNT FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES ONLY AND NOT WITH A VIEW
FOR RESALE OR DISTRIBUTION.
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THESE SECURITIES ARE “RESTRICTED SECURITIES” WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 144
PROMULGATED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD,
TRANSFERRED, ASSIGNED OR HYPOTHECATED, OR OFFERED FOR SALE, TRANSFER,
ASSIGNMENT OR HYPOTHECATION, WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OF ITS
TERRITORIES OR TO A UNITED STATES PERSON, UNLESS: (i) THE SECURITIES ARE
REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 5 OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND/OR REGISTERED OR
QUALIFIED PURSUANT TO ANY APPLICABLE BLUE SKY LAWS; OR (ii) THE PROPOSED
TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION AND PROSPECTUS DELIVERY
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND THE REGISTRATION AND QUALIFICATION
PROVISIONS OF ANY APPLICABLE BLUE SKY LAWS. AS A RESULT, THESE SECURITIES ARE
SUITABLE ONLY FOR CERTAIN SOPHISTICATED AND QUALIFIED INVESTORS WHO CAN
BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISK OF AN INVESTMENT IN THESE SECURITIES FOR AN INDEFINITE
PERIOD OF TIME.
(o)
Completeness and Accuracy of Information. All information which the Subscriber has heretofore furnished
or furnishes herewith to the Company or its agents is complete and accurate and may be relied upon by the Company in
determining the availability of an exemption from registration under federal and state securities laws in connection with the offer
and sale of the Securities to the Subscriber in particular.
(p)
Material Changes in Information. The Subscriber will notify and supply corrective information to the
Company immediately upon the occurrence of any material change(s) in any information provided by the Subscriber to the
Company occurring prior to the Closing, (as defined in the Agreement), of the purchase by the Subscriber of the Securities.
(q)
Cooperation. Within five (5) days after receipt of a request from the Company, the Subscriber will provide
such information and deliver such documents as may reasonably be necessary to comply with any and all laws and ordinances to
which the Company is subject.
(r)
Offering Representations and Communications. No person has provided any information (other than the
Offering Materials) or made any verbal or written representations or warranties to the Subscriber and/or his, her or its Advisors,
if any, about the Company, the Securities or this Offering, other than as stated in Section 3 of the Agreement.
(s)
Reliance Upon Offering Materials and Information Provided. In evaluating the suitability of an investment
in the Securities, the Subscriber has not relied upon, and agrees that he, she or it may not rely upon, any representation, warranty
or other information (verbal or written) other than as stated in Section 3 of the Agreement.
(t)
No Awareness of Public Advertising . The Subscriber is unaware of, is in no way relying on, and did not
become aware of this Offering, through or as a result of any form of public advertising including, without limitation, any
advertisement, article, notice, leaflet or other communication (whether published in any newspaper, magazine, or similar media
or broadcast over television, internet or radio, or otherwise generally disseminated or distributed).
(u)
No General Solicitation. The Subscriber did not subscribe to purchase the Securities, or become aware of this
offering, through or as the result of any public or promotional seminar or meeting to which the Subscriber was invited by, or any
solicitation of a subscription by, a person not previously known to the Subscriber in connection with investments in securities
generally.
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(v)
Pre-Existing Relationship with Company. The Subscriber represents that he, she or it has a pre-existing
personal or business relationship*** with the Company or any of its managers, officers or controlling persons.
*** The term “pre-existing personal or business relationship” includes any relationship consisting of personal or business contacts of a
nature and duration which would enable a reasonably prudent purchaser to be aware of the character, business acumen and general
business and financial circumstances of the person with whom the relationship exists.

(w)
USA Patriot Act; Anti-Money Laundering . The Subscriber should check the Office of Foreign Assets
Control (“OFAC”) website at <http://www.treas.gov/ofac> before making the following representations:
The Subscriber represents that the amounts invested by it in the Company in the Offering were not and are not directly or
indirectly derived from activities that contravene federal, state or international laws and regulations, including anti-money
laundering laws and regulations. Federal regulations and Executive Orders administered by OFAC prohibit, among other things,
the engagement in transactions with, and the provision of services to, certain foreign countries, territories, entities and
individuals. The lists of OFAC prohibited countries, territories, persons and entities can be found on the OFAC website at
<http://www.treas.gov/ofac>. In addition, the programs administered by OFAC (the “OFAC Programs”) prohibit dealing with
individuals[1] or entities in certain countries regardless of whether such individuals or entities appear on the OFAC lists;
To the best of the Subscriber’s knowledge, none of: (1) the Subscriber; (2) any person controlling or controlled by the
Subscriber; (3) if the Subscriber is a privately-held entity, any person having a beneficial interest in the Subscriber; or (4) any
person for whom the Subscriber is acting as agent or nominee in connection with this investment is a country, territory,
individual or entity named on an OFAC list, or a person or entity prohibited under the OFAC Programs. Please be advised that
the Company may not accept any amounts from a prospective investor if such prospective investor cannot make the
representation set forth in the preceding paragraph. The Subscriber agrees to promptly notify the Company should the
Subscriber become aware of any change in the information set forth in these representations. The Subscriber understands and
acknowledges that, by law, the Company may be obligated to “freeze the account” of the Subscriber, either by prohibiting
additional subscriptions from the Subscriber, declining any redemption requests and/or segregating the assets in the account in
compliance with governmental regulations. The Subscriber further acknowledges that the Company may, by written notice to
the Subscriber, suspend the redemption rights, if any, of the Subscriber if the Company reasonably deems it necessary to do so to
comply with anti-money laundering regulations applicable to the Company or any of the Company’s other service providers.
These individuals include specially designated nationals, specially designated narcotics traffickers and other parties subject to
OFAC sanctions and embargo programs;
To the best of the Subscriber’s knowledge, none of: (1) the Subscriber; (2) any person controlling or controlled by the
Subscriber; (3) if the Subscriber is a privately-held entity, any person having a beneficial interest in the Subscriber; or (4) any
person for whom the Subscriber is acting as agent or nominee in connection with this investment is a senior foreign political
figure,[2] or any immediate family[3] member or close associate[4] of a senior foreign political figure, as such terms are defined
in the footnote below; and
___________
[1] These individuals include specially designated nationals, specially designated narcotics traffickers and other parties subject to OFAC sanctions and
embargo programs.
[2] A “senior foreign political figure” is defined as a senior official in the executive, legislative, administrative, military or judicial branches of a
foreign government (whether elected or not), a senior official of a major foreign political party, or a senior executive of a foreign government-owned
corporation. In addition, a “senior foreign political figure” includes any corporation, business or other entity that has been formed by, or for the benefit
of, a senior foreign political figure.
[3] “Immediate family” of a senior foreign political figure typically includes the figure’s parents, siblings, spouse, children and in-laws.
[4] A “close associate” of a senior foreign political figure is a person who is widely and publicly known to maintain an unusually close relationship with
the senior foreign political figure, and includes a person who is in a position to conduct substantial domestic and international financial transactions on
behalf of the senior foreign political figure.
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If the Subscriber is affiliated with a non-U.S. banking institution (a “Foreign Bank”), or if the Subscriber receives
deposits from, makes payments on behalf of, or handles other financial transactions related to a Foreign Bank, the Subscriber
represents and warrants to the Company that: (1) the Foreign Bank has a fixed address, other than solely an electronic address, in
a country in which the Foreign Bank is authorized to conduct banking activities; (2) the Foreign Bank maintains operating
records related to its banking activities; (3) the Foreign Bank is subject to inspection by the banking authority that licensed the
Foreign Bank to conduct banking activities; and (4) the Foreign Bank does not provide banking services to any other Foreign
Bank that does not have a physical presence in any country and that is not a regulated affiliate.
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The Subscriber has executed and delivered this Subscription Application to Spindle, Inc. as of the date set forth below.
SUBSCRIBER:

By: ___________________________
(Signature)
Name: _________________________
Title: __________________________
Date: __________________________
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EXHIBIT A
FORM OF SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

SPINDLE, INC.
CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
This Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) sets forth legal and ethical standards of conduct for directors, officers
and employees of Spindle, Inc. (the “Company”). This Code is intended to deter wrongdoing and to promote the conduct of all
Company business in accordance with high standards of integrity and in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
If you have any questions regarding this Code or its application to you in any situation, you should contact your supervisor or the
Company’s General Counsel, as set forth below.
Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations
The Company requires that all employees, officers and directors comply with all laws, rules and regulations applicable to the
Company wherever it does business. You are expected to use good judgment and common sense in seeking to comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and to ask for advice when you are uncertain about them.
If you become aware of the violation of any law, rule or regulation by the Company, whether by its officers, employees,
directors, or any third party doing business on behalf of the Company, it is your responsibility to promptly report the matter to
your supervisor or to the Company’s General Counsel or, if you are an executive officer or director, to the Board of Directors.
While it is the Company’s desire to address matters internally, nothing in this Code should discourage you from reporting any
illegal activity, including any violation of the securities laws, antitrust laws, environmental laws or any other federal, state or
foreign law, rule or regulation, to the appropriate regulator y authority. In the event that you do, in fact, report such activity, the
Company requests that you also inform an executive officer of the Company whose actions or omissions are not the subject of
your report. Employees, officers and directors shall not discharge, demote, suspend, threaten, harass or in any other manner
discriminate or retaliate against an employee because he or she reports any such violation, unless it is determined that the report
was made with knowledge that it was false. This Code should not be construed to prohibit you from testifying, participating or
otherwise assisting in any state or federal administrative, judicial or legislative proceeding or investigation.
Conflicts of Interest
Employees, officers and directors must act in the best interests of the Company and should therefore refrain from engaging in
any activity or having a personal interest that presents a “conflict of interest”, unless such activity has been disclosed to and
approved by an executive officer, or with respect to activities of the Company’s Board of Directors. A conflict of interest occurs
when your personal interest interferes, or appears to interfere, with the interests of the Company. A conflict of interest can arise
whenever you, as an officer, director or employee, take action or have an interest that prevents you from performing your
Company duties and responsibilities honestly, objectively and effectively.

Certain examples of activities or transactions which might result in a conflict of interest:
·

Where an employee, officer or director performs services as a consultant, employee, officer, director, advisor or in any
other capacity for, or has a financial interest in, a direct competitor of the Company, other than services performed at the
request of the Company and other than a financial interest representing less than one percent (1%) of the outstanding
shares of a publicly-held company; and

·

Where an employee, officer or director uses his or her position with the Company to influence a transaction with a
supplier or customer in which such person has a personal interest, other than a financial interest representing less than one
percent (1%) of the outstanding shares of a publicly-held company.

It is your responsibility to disclose any transaction or relationship that reasonably could be expected to give rise to a conflict of
interest to the Company’s General Counsel or an executive officer of the Company, or if you are an executive officer or director,
to the Board of Directors, who shall be responsible for determining whether such transaction or relationship constitutes a conflict
of interest.
Insider Trading
Employees, officers and directors who have material non-public information about the Company or other companies, including
our suppliers, customers and intellectual property matters (including the status of pending patent/trademark infringement
lawsuits), as a result of their relationship with the Company are prohibited by law and Company policy from trading in securities
of the Company or such other companies, as well as from communicating such information to others who might trade on the
basis of that information.
If you are uncertain about the constraints on your purchase or sale of any Company securities or the securities of any other
company that you are familiar with by virtue of your relationship with the Company, you should consult with the Company’ s
General Counsel before making any such purchase or sale.
Confidentiality
Employees, officers and directors must maintain the confidentiality of confidential information entrusted to them by the
Company or other companies, including our sup pliers and customers, except when disclosure is authorized by a supervisor or
legally mandated. Unauthorized disclosure of any confidential information is prohibited. Additionally, employees should take
appropriate precautions to ensure that confidential or sensitive business information (including information pertaining to pending
patent/trademark infringement lawsuits with respect to which the Company is a party), whether it is proprietary to the Company
or another company, is not communicated within the Company except to employees who have a need to know such information
to perform their responsibilities for the Company.
Third parties may ask you for information concerning the Company. Subject to the exceptions noted in the preceding paragraph,
employees, officers and directors (other than the Company’s authorized spokespersons) must not discuss internal Company
matters with, or disseminate internal Company information to, anyone outside the Company, except as required in the
performance of their Company duties and, if appropriate, after a confidentiality agreement is in place. This prohibition applies
particularly to inquiries concerning the Company from the media, market professionals (such as securities analysts, institutional
investors, investment advisers, brokers and dealers) and security holders. All responses to inquiries on behalf of the Company
must be made only by the Company’s authorized spokespersons. If you receive any inquiries of this nature, you must decline to
comment and refer the inquirer to your supervisor or one of the Company’s authorized spokespersons.
2

The Company’s policies with respect to public disclosure of internal matters are described more fully in the Company’s
standardized Confidentiality & Non-solicitation Agreement, a copy of which is executed by every Company employee as part of
the employment on-boarding process.
You also must abide by any lawful obligations that you have to your former employer. These obligations may include
restrictions on the use and disclosure of confidential information, restrictions on the solicitation of former colleagues to work at
the Company and non-competition obligations.
Honest and Ethical Conduct and Fair Dealing
Employees, officers and directors should endeavor to deal honestly, ethically and fairly with the Company’s suppliers,
customers, competitors and employees. Statements regarding the Company’s products and services must not be untrue,
misleading, deceptive or fraudulent. You must not take unfair advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of
privileged information, misrepresentation of material facts or any other unfair-dealing practice.
Protection and Proper Use of Corporate Assets
Employees, officers and directors should seek to protect the Company’s assets. Theft, carelessness and waste have a direct
impact on the Company’s financial performance. Employees, officers and directors must use the Company’s assets and services
solely for legitimate business purposes of the Company and not for any personal benefit or the personal benefit of anyone else.
Employees, officers and directors must advance the Company’s legitimate interests when the opportunity to do so arises. You
must not take for yourself personal opportunities that are discovered through your position with the Company or the use of
property or information of the Company.
Gifts and Gratuities
The use of Company funds or assets for gifts, gratuities or other favors to employees or government officials is prohibited,
except to the extent such gifts are in compliance with applicable law, “insignificant” in amount (defined to be $100 or less) and
not given in consideration or expectation of any action by the recipient.
Employees, officers and directors must not accept, or permit any member of his or her immediate family to accept, any gifts,
gratuities or other favors from any customer, sup plier or other person doing or seeking to do business with the Company, other
than items of insignificant value. Any gifts that are not of insignificant value should be returned immediately and reported to
your supervisor. If immediate return is not practical, they should be given to the Company for charitable disposition or

such other disposition as the Company, in its sole discretion, believes appropriate.
Common sense and moderation should prevail in business entertainment engaged in on behalf of the Company. Employees,
officers and directors should provide, or accept, business entertainment to or from anyone doing business with the Company
only if the entertainment is infrequent, modest and intended to serve legitimate business goals.
Bribes and kickbacks are criminal acts, strictly prohibited by law. You must not offer, give, solicit or receive any form of bribe
or kickback anywhere in the world.
Accuracy of Books and Records and Public Reports
Employees, officers and directors must honestly and accurately report all business transactions. You are responsible for the
accuracy of your records and reports. Accurate information is essential to the Company’s ability to meet legal and regulatory
obligations.
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All Company books, records and accounts shall be maintained in accordance with all applicable regulations and standards and
accurately reflect the true nature of the transactions they record. The financial statements of the Company shall conform to
generally accepted accounting rules and the Company’s accounting policies. No undisclosed or unrecorded account or fund shall
be established for any purpose. No false or misleading entries shall be made in the Company’s books or records for any reason,
and no disbursement of corporate funds or other corporate property shall be made without adequate supporting documentation.
It is the policy of the Company to provide full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in reports and documents
filed with, or submitted to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and in other public communications.
Concerns Regarding Accounting or Auditing Matters
Employees with concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters or complaints regarding accounting, internal
accounting controls or auditing matters may confidentially, and anonymously if they wish, submit such concerns or complaints
in writing to the Company’s General Counsel and Chief Executive Officer. See “Reporting and Compliance Procedures.” All
such concerns and complaints will be forwarded to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, whose current contact
information is as follows:
Mr. John Devlin
Chairman of Audit Committee
Spindle, Inc., Inc. Board of Directors
Phone: 215.801.5071
Email: jmdevlinjr@verizon.net or Whistleblower@Spindle.com
In any event, a record of all complaints and concerns received will be provided to the Audit Committee each fiscal quarter. Any
such concerns or complaints may also be communicated, confidentially and, if you desire, anonymously, directly to any member
of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.
The Audit Committee will evaluate the merits of any concerns or complaints received by it and authorize such follow-up actions,
if a y, as it deems necessary or appropriate to address the substance of the concern or complaint.
The Company will not discipline, discriminate against or retaliate against any employee who reports a complaint or concern,
unless it is determined that the report was made with knowledge that it was false.
Dealings with Independent Auditors
No employee, officer or director shall, directly or indirectly, make or cause to be made a materially false or misleading statement
to an accountant in connection with (or omit to state, or cause another person to omit to state, any material fact necessary in order
to make statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading to, an
accountant in connection with) any audit, review or examination of the Company’s financial statements or the preparation or
filing of any document or report with the SEC. No employee, officer or director shall, directly or indirectly, take any action to
coerce, manipulate, mislead or fraudulently influence any independent public or certified public accountant engaged in the
performance of an audit or review of the Company’s financial statements.
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Waivers of this Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
Anyone who seeks an exception to any of these policies should contact the Company’ s General Counsel and present the waiver
request, and the reasons thereof, in writing. Any waiver of these policies or any change to these policies may be made only by
the Board of Directors of the Company and will be disclosed as required by law or stock market regulation.
Reporting and Compliance Procedures
Every employee, officer and director has the responsibility to ask questions, seek guidance, and report suspected violations and
express concerns regarding compliance with this Code. Any employee, officer or director who knows or believes that any other
employee or representative of the Company has engaged or is engaging in Company-related conduct that violates applicable law
or this Code should report such information to his or her supervisor or to the Company’ s General Counsel, as described below.
You may report such conduct openly or anonymously without fear of retaliation. The Company will not discipline, discriminate
against or retaliate against any employee who reports such conduct, unless it is determined that the report was made with
knowledge that it was false, or who cooperates in any investigation or inquiry regarding such conduct. Any supervisor who
receives a report of a violation of this Code must immediately inform the Company’s General Counsel.
You may report violations of this Code, on a confidential or anonymous basis, by contacting the Company’s General Counsel by
mail, e-mail or telephone at:
Clark & Trevithick, 800 Wilshire Blvd, Los Angeles, CA 90017, Attn: Counsel for Spindle Inc. Peter Hogan. Email address:
phogan@clarktrev.com.
In the event the Company’s Counsel withdraws from such role upon notice to the Company, the Company will select an alternate
Counsel. Alternatively, you may report violations of this Code to the Company Chief Executive Officer, President, or Chairman
of the Board of Directors.
If the Company’s Counsel receives information regarding an alleged violation of this Code, he or she shall, as appropriate, (a)
evaluate such information, (b) if the alleged violation involves an executive officer or a director, inform the Chief Executive
Officer and Board of Directors of the alleged violation, (c) determine whether it is necessary to conduct an informal inquiry or a
formal investigation and, if so, initiate such inquiry or investigation and (d) report the results of any such inquiry or investigation,
together with a recommendation as to dis position of the matter, to the Chief Executive Officer for action, or if the alleged
violation involves an executive officer or a director, report the results of any such inquiry or investigation to the Board of
Directors or a committee thereof. Employees, officers and directors are expected to cooperate fully with any inquiry or
investigation by the Company regarding an alleged violation of this Code. Failure to cooperate with any such inquiry or
investigation may result in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.
The Company shall determine whether violations of this Code have occurred and, if so, shall determine the disciplinary
measures to be taken against any employee who has violated this Code. In the event that the alleged violation involves an
executive officer or a director, the Chief Executive Officer and the Board of Directors, respectively, shall determine whether a
violation of this Code has occurred and, if so, shall determine the disciplinary measures to be taken against such executive
officer or director.
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Failure to comply with the standards outlined in this Code will result in disciplinary action including, but not limited to,
reprimands, warnings, probation or suspension without pay, demotions, and reductions in salary, discharge and restitution.
Certain violations of this Code may require the Company to refer the matter to the appropriate governmental or regulator
authorities for investigation or prosecution. Moreover, any supervisor who directs or approves of any conduct in violation of this
Code, or who has knowledge of such conduct and does not immediately report it, also will be subject to disciplinary action, up to
and including discharge.
Dissemination and Amendment
This Code shall be distributed to each new employee, officer and director of the Company upon commencement of his or her
employment or other relationship with the Company and shall also be distributed annually to each employee, officer and director
of the Company, and each employee, officer and director shall certify that he or she has received, read and understood the Code
and has complied with its terms.
The Company reserves the right to amend, alter or terminate this Code at any time for any reason. The most current version of
this Code can be found on the Company’s website. This document is not an employment contract between the Company and any
of its employees, officers or directors. Unless otherwise specified in an employment contract between the Company and an
employee, all employees of the Company are employed on an “at-will” basis and may be terminated for any lawful reason.
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Certification

I, ___________________________________________do hereby certify that:
(Print Name Above)
1. I have received and carefully read the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of Spindle, Inc.
2. I understand the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.
3. I have complied and will continue to comply with the terms of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Date: _________________________________________
_______________________________________________
(Signature)

EACH EMPLOYEE, OFFICER AND DIRECTOR IS REQUIRED TO SIGN, DATE AND RETURN THIS
CERTIFICATION TO THE COMPANY WITHIN FIVE DAYS OF ISSUANCE. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY RESULT
IN DISCIPLINARYACTION.
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Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
and Securities and Exchange Commission Release 34-46427
I, William Clark, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Spindle, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2016
/s/ William Clark
William Clark
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
and Securities and Exchange Commission Release 34-46427
I, John M. Devlin, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Spindle, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
c.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

d.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2016
/s/ John M. Devlin
John M. Devlin
Interim Chief Financial Officer
(Interim Principal Financial Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the report of Spindle, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), we, the undersigned, certify to the best of our knowledge, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of
the Company.
/s/ William Clark
William Clark
Chief Executive Officer
/s/ John M. Devlin
John M. Devlin
Interim Chief Financial Officer
March 30, 2016

